
SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
300 Lakeside Drive, P. O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688

BOARD MEETING AGENDA
April 22, 2010

9:00 a.m.

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors will be held at 9:00 a.m. on Thursday, April 22, 2010,
in the BART Board Room, Kaiser Center 20th Street Mall - Third Floor, 344 - 20th Street, Oakland,
California.

Members of the public may address the Board of Directors regarding any matter on this agenda.

Please complete a "Request to Address the Board" form (available at the entrance to the Board

Room) and hand it to the Secretary before the item is considered by the Board. If you wish to
discuss a matter that is not on the agenda during a regular meeting, you may do so under General
Discussion and Public Comment.

Rules governing the participation of the public at meetings of the Board of Directors and Standing
Committees are available for review on the District's website (http://www.bart.gov/about/bod), in
the BART Board Room, and upon request, in person or via mail, at the Office of the District
Secretary, 23rd Floor, 300 Lakeside Drive, Oakland, California.

Any action requiring more than a majority vote for passage will be so noted.

Items placed under "consent calendar" are considered routine and will be received, enacted,
approved, or adopted by one motion unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is
received from a Director or from a member of the audience.

Please refrain from wearing scented products (perfume, cologne, after-shave, etc.) to these meetings,
as there may be people in attendance susceptible to environmental illnesses.

BART provides service/accommodations upon request to persons with disabilities and individuals
who are limited English proficient who wish to address BART Board matters. A request must be
made within one and five days in advance of Board meetings, depending on the service requested.
Please contact the Office of the District Secretary at (510) 464-6083 for information.

Kenneth A. Duron
District Secretary

Regular Meeting of the
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The purpose of the Board Meeting is to consider and take such action as the Board may
desire in connection with:

1. CALL TO ORDER

A. Roll Call.
B. Pledge of Allegiance.
C. Introduction of Special Guests.

1. James Kennedy, Redevelopment Director , Contra Costa County
Department of Conservation and Development (Director Murray's
request).



D. PUBLIC HEARING: Proposed East Bay Paratransit Fare Increase and
East Bay Paratransit Policy Changes Regarding Billing the Rider for
Rider Fault No-Shows and Charging Two Times the ADA Fare for
Special Non-ADA Group Trip Service for Social Service Agencies.

2. CONSENT CALENDAR

A. Approval of Minutes of the Meeting of January 28, 2010.* Board
requested to authorize.

B. Award of Contract No. 6M3066A, Furnish and Install Replacement Glass
Systemwide as Needed.* Board requested to authorize.

C. Award of Agreement No. 6M3149, Glass and Window Washing
Services.* Board requested to authorize.

D. Award of Contract No. 15EI-120A, Substation WSS and CCO 34.5 kV
Transformer Upgrade and Replacement.* Board requested to authorize.

E. Award of Contract No. 15PQ-110, BART Earthquake Safety Program,
Station Structure - C Line, Concord Station .* Board requested to
authorize.

3. ADMINISTRATION ITEMS
Director Blalock, Chairperson

A. San Francisco International Airport Employee Premium Fare Program.*
Board requested to authorize.

B. Issuance and Sale of the District's Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Refunding
Series 2010, and the Execution and Delivery of the Required
Documents.* Board requested to authorize.

C. Approval of Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Phase III
Agreements for the Lodi Energy Center , Adoption of Related
Environmental Findings and Designation of Official Responsible for
Appointing District Representatives .* Board requested to authorize.

4. ENGINEERING AND OPERATIONS ITEMS
Director Keller, Chairperson

A. Change Order to Contract No. 42EL-210B , Procurement of C-1 Car
Auxiliary Power Supply Equipment , with Bombardier Transportation
(Holdings) USA, Inc., to Exercise Contract Options A and B (C.O.
No. 1).* Board requested to authorize.

B. Report on New Rail Car Replacement Program and Adoption of Joint
Resolution with the Metropolitan Transportation Commission for
Program Funding.* Board requested to authorize.

* Attachment available 2 of 3



5. PLANNING, PUBLIC AFFAIRS, ACCESS, AND LEGISLATION ITEMS
Director Ward Allen, Chairperson

NO REPORT.

6. GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT

NO REPORT.

7. BOARD MATTERS

A. Roll Call for Introductions.
B. Report of the Finance, Budget & Internal Audit Ad Hoc Committee. For

information.

8. GENERAL DISCUSSION AND PUBLIC COMMENT

9. CLOSED SESSION (Room 303, Board Conference Room)

A. PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT:
Title: Chief of Police
Gov't Code Section: 54957

* Attachment available 3 of 3



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

ERAL MANAG R PR A : GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
Approve and Forward to E&O Committee

DATE : BOARD I I • No

Ori nator re by Larry Fisher Genera Cou Co le r u r District Secretary
e t: Maint a and E ineering

Si n r /Dt t 1^a u e a e : ] ] [ ] ]

Status : Routed Date re d : 03/24/2010
ITLE:

Award of Contract 6M3066A for Furnish and Install Replacement Glass Systemwide as
Needed

NARRATIVE:

Purpose:
To authorize the General Manager to award Contract No. 6M3066A for furnishing and installing
replacement glass for all District stations and facilities to Best Contracting Services, Inc., of
Hayward, California.

Discussion:
The Scope of Work of this Contract includes furnishing all labor, materials and equipment for
glass replacement systemwide as needed and as directed by the District's representative. The
representative will assign the Work by issuing Task Orders during the term of the Contract. This
is a Public Works Construction Contract with no mimimum requirements. Estimated quantites
are for bidding purposes only and historically actual expenditures have been well below the Total
Bid Price. The bid consists of fourteen (14) line items of estimated quantities of glass, glazing
materials and installation labor hours for the one year base contract and three additional one-year
extensions. On February 26, 2009 the Board of Directors authorized Contract 6M3066 for
replacement glass to be awarded to the apparent low bidder. This company was subsequently
discovered to have submitted a nonresponsive bid, disqualifying the company from receiving the
award. The second low bidder's bid had expired. Consequently, the Invitation to Bid for this
work was reissued under Contract 6M3066A.

Advance Notice to Bidders was mailed on February 2, 2010 to twenty-three (23) prospective
bidders as well as to twenty-four (24) Plan Rooms and Minority Assistance Organizations. On
February 11, 2010, the 6M3066A Contract Book was advertised. A Pre-Bid Meeting was
conducted on March 4, 2010. Eight (8) prospective bidders attended the meeting. Five (5) firms
purchased copies of the Bid Documents and subsequently the District received four bids which
were opened on March 16, 2010. One of the bids was found to be non-responsive, based on the
failure to provide adequate bid security. The other three bids were found to all have arithmetic
errors in their unit bid extensions. The Instructions to Bidders in the contract book specify that
bid pricing is to be determined based on the unit price bid. After correction of the bid totals
based on the Bidder's unit prices for estimated quantities, the resultant bids are shown as follows:



Bidder's Name

Best Contracting Services, Inc,

Base Year
Price

1st Year
Option

2nd Year
Option

3rd Year
Option

Total Bid Price
including Sales Tax

Hayward, CA
Arrow Glass Company, Inc.,

$148,260 $148,260 $158,260 $168,260 $623,040.00

Albany, CA
East County Glass & Window, Inc.,

$218,168 $233,701 $252,628 $277,690 $982,187.00

Pittsburg, CA

Engineer's Estimate $340,720

$237,316 $249 ,186 $261 ,636 $274,805 $1,022,943.00

Staff has determined that the apparent low bidder, Best Contracting Services, is competent to

service this contract and has submitted a fully responsive bid to this Contract. Furthermore, a
review of this proposer's license, business experience, and financial capabilities has resulted in

the determination that the Bidder is responsible. Staff has also determined that the bid pricing is

fair and reasonable.

Pursuant to the District's Non-Discrimination in Subcontracting Program, the .availability
percentages for this contract are 23% for MBEs and 12% for WBEs. The bidder will not be
subcontracting any work and will do all work with its own forces. Therefore, the District's
Non-Discrimination in Subcontracting Program does not apply.

Fiscal Impact

District expenditures for this contract are estimated as follows:

FY10 $24,710
FYI 1 $148,260
FY 12 $149,926
FY 13 $159,926
FY14 $140,218

Funding for this contract will be provided from the FY10 through FY14 Risk Management
Budget for Vandalism. Funding is currently in place for FY10A expenditures. Funding for the
subsequent years FYI 1-FY14 will be requested in future operating budget cycles.

Alternative:
To not award this Contract will result in longer repair times for broken glass in District facilities
with a greater number of associated customer complaints.

Recommendation:
Staff recommends that the Board adopt the following motion.

Motion : The General Manager is authorized to award Contract No. 6M3066A for Furnish and
Install Replacement Glass Systemwide as Needed for the base period of one year, at the bid price
of $148,260 to Best Contracting Services, Inc., of Hayward CA.,
pursuant to notification to be issued by the General Manager and subject to compliance with the
District's protest procedures. The General Manager is also authorized to exercise the option of
Option Year One for the bid price $148,260, the Option for Option Year Two for

Award of Contract 6M3066A for Furnish and Install Replacement Glass Systemwide as Needed 2



the bid price of $158,260, and the option for Option Year Three for the bid price of $168,260.
Each option consists of a one-year extension for Furnish and Install Replacement Glass

Systemwide as Needed. Exercise of the options shall be subject to the availability of funding.

Award of Contract 6M3066A for Furnish and Install Replacement Glass Systemwide as Needed 3



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

MANAGER APPROVALS GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:

DATE: BOARD INITIATED T : No

Ori nator Pre ared : Larry Fisher General Counsel Control ) r e District Secretary
De t:

4^\3,10 2 3\^`'J
`Aature/ ate : ] [ ] ]

Status : Routed Date Created : 04/02/2010
TITLE:

Agreement No. 6M3149 , Glass and Window Washing Services

NARRATIVE:

Purpose : To obtain Board authorization for the General Manager to award Agreement No.
6M3149 for Glass and Window Washing Services to Delta Window Cleaning of Santa Clara,
CA.

Discussion:
This Agreement will provide for window washing services systemwide on a regular and on-call
basis for a period of three years, with District options to extend the Agreement for two additional
one-year periods. Advance Notice to Proposers was mailed on February 4, 2010. On February 8,
2010 the RFP No. 6M3149 was mailed to twenty-nine (29) prospective proposers, and e-mailed
by the Office of Civil Rights to twenty (20) minority firms. The RFP was advertised in twelve
(12) local and regional news publications. A preproposal conference was held on March 3, 2010
at 300 Lakeside Drive, and was attended by representatives of seventeen (17) companies.
Subsequently, seven (7) proposals were received on March 16, 2010. These were reviewed by a
committee to establish the responsiveness of proposals and evaluate the merits of each technical
proposal. All seven (7) proposals were determined to have met the technical requirements and
were found to be responsive to the general RFP requirements. Price proposals were then opened
and evaluated. Proposed prices are as follows:

Proposer Base 3 Year Allowance 1st year 2nd year Total
Price Option Price Option Price Price Proposal

Delta Window Cleaning,
Santa Clara, CA $104,400 $15,000 $36,000 $37,200 $192,600.00

WWC Window Cleaning,
Los Angeles, CA $108,000 $15,000 $36,000 $36,000 $195,000.00

Big Al 's Construction Cleanup,
Hayward, CA $113,850 $15,000 $37,950 $37,950 $204,750.00
Century Window Cleaning,
Pleasant Hill, CA $146,340 $15,000 $49,980 $51,240 $262,560.00

Universal Building Services,
Richmond, CA $183,744 $15,000 $63,084 $64,980 $326,808.00
Advanced Enterprises, Inc.,
San Francisco, CA $234,000 $15,000 $78,000 $78,000 $405,000.00
Clean Innovation Corporation,
San Francisco, CA $230,940 $15,000 $79,200 $81,600 $406,740.00



Staff has determined that the apparent low proposer, Delta Window Cleaning of Santa Clara, CA,
is technically competent to service this Agreement and has submitted a fully responsive proposal
to this RFP. Furthermore, a review of this proposer's license, business experience, and financial
capabilities has resulted in the determination that the proposer is responsible. Staff has also
determined that the proposal price is fair and reasonable.

Pursuant to the District's Non-Discrimination in Subcontracting Program, the availability
percentages for this contract are 16% for MBEs and 20% for WBEs. The bidder will not be
subcontracting any work and will do all work with its own forces. Therefore, the District's
non-Discrimination in Subcontracting Program does not apply. However the Prime Contractor is
a certified DBE.

Fiscal Impact

District expenditures for this agreement are estimated as follows:

FY10 $5,800
FY11 $37,800
FY12 $37,800
FY13 $38,000
FY14 $39,366
FY15 $33,834
Funding for this agreement will be provided from FY10 through FY15 Operating Budget for
Cost Center 648, Maintenance Support. Funding is currently in place for FY10 expenditures.
Funding for the subsequent years FY11-FYI 5 will be requested in future operating budget cycles.

Alternative:
The Board could choose not to award this Agreement. However this would result in a decrease
in station cleanliness with associated disappointing experiences for patrons and staff. Cleaning
as requested in yard towers and terminal zones also enhances the safe working environment for
staff. District janitorial staff is not equipped to access skylights or windows in elevated
locations.

Recommendation:
Staff recommends that the Board adopt the following motion.

Motion :
The General Manager is authorized to award Agreement No. 6M3149 to provide Glass and
Window Washing Services Districtwide for the base proposal period of three years, for the
proposal price of $104,400 plus a $15,000 Allowance pursuant to notification to be issued by the
General Manager and subject to compliance with the District's protest procedures. The General
Manager is also authorized to exercise the option for Option Year One for the proposal price of
$36,000, and the option for Option Year Two for the proposal price of $37,200, each option
consisting of a one-year extension for Glass and Window Washing Services. Exercise of the

options shall be subject to the availability of funding.

Agreement No. 6M3149, Glass and Window Washing Services 2



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

RAL MANAGE PPR AL : GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REO'D:

DTE : c BOARD INI ATE M No

Originator/Prepared by: Abdulhaque Shaikh Ge eral ou I Contr District Secretary
Dept: Maintenance & Engineering

ignature/Date /2 /L 4` D [ ] ^^r ]
I I I Lt: - I ( (V 1_ [/

Award Contract No.15EI -120A for South San Fran c Substation ("WSS") and Concord
Substation ("CCO") 34.5kV Transformer Upgrade and Replacement.

NARRATIVE:

PURPOSE:

To obtain Board authorization for General Manager to award Contract No. 15EI-120A, for South
San Francisco Substation ("WSS") and Concord Substation ("CCO") 34.5kV Transformer
Upgrade and Replacement, to E.W. Scott Electric Co., Inc.

DISCUSSION:

On November 3, 2007 cast coil transformer XO1 of substation WSS failed. It was determined
that damage was due to defects in manufacturing similar to previous cast coil transformer failures
at BART. BART Facility Standards now requires use of natural (biodegradable) oil filled
transformers only for 34.5kV Traction Power Substation applications.

Contract No. 15EI-120A for Substation WSS and CCO 34.5kV Transformer Upgrade and
Replacement will provide for two (2) new, 4-megawatt, natural oil filled traction power
transformers at substation WSS and will provide for the relocation of one (1) used, 4-megawatt,
cast coil transformer to substation CCO. This will bring capacity of substations WSS and CCO to
full level.

The District provided advance notice to 85 prospective Bidders and the Contract books were sent
to 24 plan rooms. The Contract was advertised on February 19, 2010. Contract books were
mailed to 24 plan rooms. A summary of the work was also available on the District's website as
an Anticipated Procurement.

A pre-Bid meeting and site tour was held on Tuesday, March 2, 2010. One (1) addendum was
issued. The following five (5) Bids were received and publically opened on March 23, 2010.



Award Contract No. 15E1-120A for South San Francisco Substation ("WSS") and Concord Substation (T CO") 34.5kV

Bidder Total Bid Price

1. E.W. Scott Electric Co., Inc. Petaluma, CA $1,025,000.00
2. Steiny and Company, Inc. Vallejo, CA $1,040,541.00
3. Blocka Construction, Inc. Fremont, CA $1,243,000.00
4. Dahl-Beck Electric Richmond, CA $1,405,920.00
5. Harris Electric Dublin, CA $1,579,000.00

Engineer's Estimate $1,350,000.00

Bids were evaluated and staff determined that the apparent low Bid submitted by E.W. Scott
Electric Co., Inc. of Petaluma, CA, is responsive to this solicitation. Furthermore, examination of
the low Bidder's business experience and financial capabilities has resulted in a determination
that this Bidder is responsible and that the Bid of $1,025,000 submitted by E.W Scott Electric
Co., Inc. is fair and reasonable based upon adequate price competition.

The Office of Civil Rights has reviewed the scope of work for this Contract and determined that
there were no subcontracting opportunities; therefore, no DBE participation goal was set for this
Contract.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Funding of $1,025,000 for the award of Contract 15EI-120 is included in the total project budget
for the FMS #15EI - Traction Power Transformers. The Office of the Controller/Treasurer
certifies that funds are.currently available to meet this obligation. The total cost of $1,025,000
will be funded by FTA and BART.

As of month ending February 28, 2010, the following funding is available for commitment from
these sources:

Funds for Pending Funds For Funds
Fund Grant this Project Committed Commitments This EDD Remaining
47Z - CA-05-0216 -
FY07 Capital
Improvement $1,200,000 $79,800 $0 $595,000 $525,200

50Z - FY06-10 Capital
Maintenance Allocation $1,300,000 $917,561 $0 $382,439 $0
51W - FY07- 11 Capital

Allocation $271,930 $74,569 $0 $47,561 $149,800
Total $1,025,000

There is no fiscal impact on available unprogrammed District Reserves.



Award Contract No. 15E1-120A for South San Francisco Substation ("WSS") and Concord Substation ("CCO") 34.5kV

ALTERNATIVE:

The Board may decline to authorize award of this Contract. However, if the Contract is not
awarded, the traction power system reliability on W line and C line will remain below normal
operating level.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

On the basis of analysis by staff, it is recommended that the Board adopt the following motion:

MOTION:

The General Manager is authorized to award Contract No. 15EI-120A, South San Francisco
Substation ("WSS") and Concord Substation ("CCO") 34.5kV Transformer Upgrade and
Replacement, to E.W. Scott Electric Co., Inc. for the Bid price of $1,025,000, including
applicable taxes, subject to the District's protest procedures and FTA's requirements related to
protest procedures.



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

ERAL MANA PRO GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
Approve and Forward to the Board of Directors

DATE: BOARD "TI ij.FM: No

Originator/Prepared by: Shirley J Ng
TSDD t

General Couisel t I r r District Secretary
ep :

r\vb^Signature/Date :

DateCreated : 03/02/2010Status: Approved
HTL :

Award of Contract 15PQ-110, Earthquake Safety Program, Station Structure - C Line,
Concord Station

NARRATIVE:

PURPOSE:
To obtain Board authorization for the General Manager to award Contract No. 15PQ-110, for
BART Earthquake Safety Program, Station Structure - C Line, Concord Station to Robert A.
Bothman, Inc.

DISCUSSION:
Contract No. 15PQ-110 will provide for the seismic strengthening of Concord Station as part of
BART's Earthquake Safety Program. The work consists of the structural retrofit of pile caps,
columns, bent caps and the associated architectural and mechanical/electrical components
impacted by the retrofits.

An Advance Notice to Bidders was mailed on February 10, 2010 to 102 firms. The Contract was
advertised on February 11, 2010 and Contract Books were sent to 22 plan rooms. A total of 30
firms purchased copies of the Bid Documents. A Pre-Bid Meeting was held on February 24,
2010 with a total of 15 potential Bidders in attendance. A site tour was held following the
Pre-Bid meeting on February 24, 2010. Seven bids were received. Bids were opened publicly on
March 30, 2010.

After review by staff, the Bid submitted by Robert A. Bothman, Inc. was determined to be the
low responsive bid. It should be noted that the Bids submitted by Robert A. Bothman, Inc.,
Angotti & Reilly, Inc., LC General Engineering, Inc. and River View Construction, Inc. were
determined to have arithmetical errors in the Bid Item totals and/or in the total Bid Price.
Paragraph 13.B, Evaluation, of the Instructions to Bidders in the Contract clearly states that item
totals are provided by the Bidder for the convenience of the District, and that the District will
independently calculate such prices based on the unit or lump sum prices bid. In the event of a
discrepancy, the District's calculations shall govern. The District's calculations find that Robert
A. Bothman, Inc. is the apparent low bidder. Tabulation of the corrected Bids, including the
Engineer's Estimate, is as follows:



BIDDER LOCATION TOTAL AMOUNT
1. Robert A. Bothman, Inc. San Jose, CA $1,335,325.50
2. Angotti & Reilly, Inc. San Francisco, CA $1,440,636.81
3. Valentine Corporation San Rafael, CA $1,473,369.00
4. LC General Engineering &

Construction, Inc. San Francisco, CA $1,565,457.96
5. River View Construction, Inc. Sacramento, CA $1,919,398.06
6. Albay Construction Company Martinez, CA $1,979,618.00
7. Zovich & Sons, Inc. Hayward, CA $2,384,758.95

Engineer's Estimate $1,660.000.00

The apparent low Bid submitted by Robert A. Bothman , Inc. was determined to be fair and
reasonable and was deemed to be responsive to the solicitation. Examination of the Bidder's
business experience and financial capabilities has resulted in a determination that this Bidder is
responsible.

Pursuant to the District's Non-Discrimation in Subcontracting Program, the availability
percentages for this Contract are 23% for MBEs and 12% for WBEs, The Office of Civil Rights
has determined the apparent low bidder has exceeded both MBE and WBE availability
percentages for this Contract.

FISCAL IMPACT:
Funding for $1,335,326 for award of Contract No. 15PQ-1 10 is included in the total project
budget for the FMS #1 5PQ, ESP - Concord Station. The Office of the Controller/Treasurer
certifies that funds are currently available to meet this obligation.

F/G O1F - Earthquake Safety G.O. Bond: $1,335,326

As of month ending 2/28/10, $4,310,000 is available for commitment from this fund source for
this project and BART has committed $146,243 to date. There are pending commitments of
$2,268,433 in BART's financial management system. This action will commit $1,335,326
leaving an uncommitted balance of $559,998 in this fund source.

There is no fiscal impact on available unprogrammed District Reserves.

ALTERNATIVE:
The Board may decline to authorize award of the Contract. If the Contract is not awarded, BART
will be unable to implement the seismic strengthening of this station at this time.

RECOMMENDATION:
It is recommended that the Board adopt the following motion:

MOTION:
The General Manager is authorized to award Contract No. 15PQ-110, Earthquake Safety
Program, Station Structure - C Line, Concord Station to Robert A. Bothman, Inc. for the Bid

Award of Contract No. 15PQ-110, ESP, Concord Station 2



amount of $1,335,325.50 pursuant to notification to be issued by the General Manager and

subject to the District's protest procedures.

Award of Contract No. 15PQ-110, ESP , Concord Station 3



FUNDING SUMMARY - EARTHQUAKE SAFETY PROGRAM

PROJECT ELEMENT
Baseline

Budget

Current
Forecast

as of
4/12/10 EMARKS

ENVIRONMENTAL. ENGINEERING, AND
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT

GEC (Bechtel Team) $105,000,000 $226,200,000
Other GEC $81,478,000

Subtotal GEC $186,478,000 $226,200,000

CM $61,498,000 $79,000,000
Environmental $1,042,796 $2,198,237

TOTAL E, E & CM $249 ,018,796 $307 , 398,237

CONSTRUCTION

Transbay Tube
Oakland Ventilation Structure $1,033,000 $1,153,096

Oakland Landside $17,970,000 $10,699,433

San Francisco Ferry Plaza
SFTS (including Tube liner) $73,037,000 $5,655,414 .

Marine Vibro Demo $101,285,000 $76,030,000
Stitching $82,962,000 $0

Aerial Guideways
West Oakland/North Oakland $112,923,000 $90,000,000

Fremont $178,224,000 $117,800,000
Concord $36,500,000 $45,300,000 .

Richmond $80,155,000 $75,800,000
San Francisco/Daly City $36,590,000 $9, 991,645 .

Stations (18) $126,961,000 $118,896,318

Other Structures
LMA $5,529,000 $5 ,267,440

Yds & Shops $12,436,000 $17 ,557,497 .
Parking Structures $14,437,000 $ 13,500,000

At Grade Trackway $22,361,000 $0
34.5kV Replacement $40,000,000

Systems $7 ,066,000 $18,000,000

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION $909,469 ,000 $645 , 650,843

PROGRAM COSTS
Program Costs Hazmat, ROW, Consult, Staff) $159,894,204 $241,801,763

Contingency $32,104,000 $58 ,583,314

TOTAL PROGRAM COSTS $ 191,998 , 204 $300 , 385,077

BASELINE FUNDING $1,350 ,486,000

REVISED FUNDING $1 ,253,434,157

4/12/2010



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

E L MAJJAGER APPROVAL: GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:

DATE: BOARD INITI E,Pjpf o

Originator/Prepared by: Charlotte Strhdm Gene C C Ile istrict Secretary BAR
Dept: Planning & Budget 16

#ko

rT O^ / ^c/'Si t /D t kgna ure a e:
1 1 1 I

Status: Approved
TITLE:

NARRATIVE:

60093v1

Date' c rea ted : 04/09/2010

San Francisco International Airport Employee Premium Fare Program

PURPOSE
To authorize the General Manager to execute Amendment No. 1 to the Lease, Use, and Operating
Agreement for BART Station and Related Facilities and Grant of Easement at San Francisco
International Airport (Lease Amendment) with the San Francisco International Airport (SFO).
This Lease Amendment, together with a letter agreement outlining related projects (Letter
Agreement) and a Memorandum of Understanding Regarding a Media Trade in Support of Each
Agency's Marketing Efforts (MOU), will implement a SFO Employee Premium Fare Program
(Program) so that the amount of the SFO Premium Fare that will be collected from participating
SFO employees will equal $1.50 each way for trips to or from the SFO BART Station for the
remainder of the Lease term.

To ensure that the Program is revenue-neutral to BART, the Program contains various projects
and components, such as requiring SFO to pay for Program implementation and allowing BART
to sell advertising space in the SFO Station, which are addressed in the above-referenced
documents and described more fully below.

DISCUSSION

Background
The Board approved a revenue enhancement package effective July 1, 2009 to help address the
large projected deficit of $54 million for Fiscal Year 2010. The package included an increase to
the SFO Premium Fare, charged for trips to or from the SFO Station, from $1.50 to $4.00.

SFO wishes to offer its employees a transit benefit so that the amount of the SFO Premium Fare
that will be collected from participating SFO employees making trips to or from SFO BART
Station will be equal to $1.50. In addition, the BART Board has directed staff to work with SFO
staff to create a program revenue-neutral to BART that would help lessen the impact of the SFO
Premium Fare increase on Airport employees at SFO. In response, SFO and BART have jointly
created the proposed Program whereby the portion of the SFO Premium Fare that will be



collected from participating SFO employees will equal $1.50 each way for trips to or from the
SFO BART Station for the remainder of the fifty-year lease term between BART and SFO. The
Program includes benefits to BART that serve to underwrite the difference between the SFO
Premium Fare and the amount of the SFO Premium Fare to be paid by the participating SFO
employees.

Proposed Program
Airport employees wishing to participate in the Program will complete an enrollment form on
BART's website. BART will verify the employee's eligibility using an Airport-badged employee
database provided by SFO. BART will then create a smart card with the employee's photo ID
and mail the encoded smart card to the Airport employee. Program participants will have the
amount of the SFO Premium Fare equal to $1.50 deducted at the fare gate when they use the
smart card to pay for trips to or from the SFO BART Station. Airport employees can add value
to the smart card by using debit cards issued by transit pre-tax service providers or by using
personal debit and credit cards.

The Program has various projects and components that are addressed in either the Lease
Amendment, the Letter Agreement or the MOU. Some of the more significant projects and
components, and the documents in which each is addressed, include the following:

Lease Amendment
• Amount of the SFO Premium Fare
The amount of the SFO Premium Fare deducted at the fare gates for trips taken to or from the
SFO BART Station by SFO employees participating in the Program will be equal to $1.50 for the
remainder of the Lease term.

• Advertising
SFO will allow BART to sell advertising in the SFO station for the remaining duration of the

Lease term. This advertising will bring at least $270,000 to BART in the first year, with
increases in guarantee payments and possible revenue share bonuses in subsequent years.

• Monthly Rent Payment
The Lease will be amended to state that BART is allowed to pay its $2.5 million annual rental
payment in twelve equal monthly installments rather than up front as currently stated in the
Lease.

• No Faithful Performance Deposit
The faithful performance deposit language, under which BART could be required to either fund a
$2.3 million security deposit or purchase a letter of credit, will be eliminated.

Letter Agreement
• Implementation Costs
SFO will reimburse BART up to $112,000 to offset the costs of BART's development efforts
required to implement these Program functionalities.

• Shuttle Operation

SFO Employee Premium Fare Program 2



SFO will also cease running the shuttle it is currently operating for Airport employees between
Millbrae Station and SFO.

• BART Information Booth
An information booth to assist airline passengers, BART customers, and the public is planned for
the International Terminal near the entrance of the SFO BART station. The booth will be staffed
seven days per week by personnel trained to administer the BART Travel Voucher Exchange
Program (a program to pre-sell BART ticket vouchers through the travel industry) and to sell
BART tickets. The Airport's administration of the travel voucher program will save BART
about $54,000 per year.

• BART Real-Time Train Information

SFO will own and operate eight Electronic Display Monitors (EDMs) where BART Real Time
Train Information will be displayed along with other Airport information. The EDMs will be
located at the information booths in all terminals. BART also may provide up to four EDMs at
four additional locations at BART's own cost.

MOU
• Joint Marketing Barter Agreement
SFO and BART will trade marketing space to support each other's marketing efforts. SFO will
provide BART with space in its terminals and, in exchange, BART will provide SFO with space
in BART stations and trains. The campaigns will include mutually beneficial messaging.
Agency staff will execute a MOU for this trade. The value to BART is $223,000. In addition, in
consideration of the Program, SFO has agreed that it will not use space in BART stations and
trains during the year 2010.

At the April 22, 2010 BART Board meeting, the Board will be asked to authorize the General
Manager to execute the Lease Amendment. No further Board authority is needed for the General
Manager to execute the Letter Agreement and MOU. SFO staff will bring this matter to the
Airport Commission and San Francisco Board of Supervisors to obtain signatory authority for the
Airport Director.

FISCAL IMPACT
Receiving $ 1.50 of the $4 . 00 SFO Premium Fare under the Program is estimated to result in a
loss of about $300,000 to $400,000 annually. However, the programs in the agreements
described above that have been developed by BART and SFO are estimated to generate revenue
that offsets the estimated annual revenue loss, resulting in a revenue -neutral program for BART.

ALTERNATIVES
Change the amount of the SFO Premium Fare deducted from $1 . 50 to another amount ; direct
staff to negotiate with SFO different programs and/or terms for the programs.

RECOMMENDATION
Adoption of the following motion. The Office of the General Counsel will approve the Lease
Amendment, Letter Agreement, and MOU as to form.

SFO Employee Premium Fare Program 3



MOTION
The General Manager is authorized to execute Amendment No. I to the Lease, Use, and
Operating Agreement for BART Station and Related Facilities and Grant of Easement at San

Francisco International Airport.

SFO Employee Premium Fare Program 4



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

E L MANAGE PP OVAL : GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:

IIATE: c BOARD I TED I M: N

Originator/Prepared by : Scott Schroeder General Co sel Contro as er DI Secret^ry BARC
Dept: Controller-Treasurer (Michaela Morales)

Signature/Date: ] ^' ] i ^^\xI 1 ^' [ ]
t: v I -- 1,V (°

TO AUTHORIZE THE ISSUANCE AND SALE THE DISTRICT'S SALES TAX
REVENUE BONDS, REFUNDING SERIES 2010, AND THE EXECUTION AND

DELIVERY OF THE REQUIRED DOCUMENTS

NARRATIVE:

PURPOSE:

To request Board adoption of a resolution, which, among other things, authorizes the issuance of
the Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Refunding Series 2010, and approves the Official Statement for
such debt and authorizes the Controller-Treasurer to (1) award the Bonds to the winning bidder
of a competitive bid process, (2) implement the preparation, execution and delivery of the
necessary documents including the Preliminary Official Statement, the Official Statement,
Eleventh Supplemental Indenture, Official Notice of Sale, Continuing Disclosure Agreement,
and related agreements and, (3) negotiate and commit to or provide for bidder's option bond
insurance or other credit support agreements in connection with the issuance of the Bonds.

DISCUSSION:

In May 2010, the District proposes to issue Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Refunding Series 2010, in
the principal amount of approximately $150,000,000. After setting aside approximately
$400,000 for costs of issuance, the District intends to apply the net proceeds to refund
outstanding 1998 bonds eligible for refunding and any other refunding candidates eligible and
economically feasible.

The proposed Board resolution will authorize the Controller-Treasurer to develop the
competitive bid structure and negotiate the cost of issuance of the Bonds. In addition, the
resolution authorizes the preparation, execution and delivery of the necessary documents
including the Preliminary Official Statement, the Official Statement, Eleventh Supplemental
Indenture, Official Notice of Sale, Continuing Disclosure Agreement, and related agreements,
and the negotiation and commitment to or provision for bidder's option bond insurance or other
credit support agreements in connection with issuance of the Sales Tax Revenue Bonds,
Refunding Series 2010.

The District will utilize a competitive bid process in which interested parties will submit a bid
through an electronic bidding platform . The winning bid will be selected based on the highest
price and lowest yield . All bid submittals must be for the entire amount of the refunding.



TO AUTHORIZE THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE DISTRICT'S SALES TAX REVENUE BONDS, REFUNDING S

A competitive bid process typically works well with well-known and well-understood issuers and
incorporates a simple refunding structure. Costs of issuance may be reduced as well. On the
other hand, competitive bids can restrict flexibility and market timing, resulting in a less than
favorable market environment. Thus, there are advantages and disadvantages to both negotiated
and competitive sales.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The District expects to realize approximately $15,000,000 in net present value debt service
savings over the next twenty years. The total cost for legal counsel, financial advisors, rating
agencies, trustee services, and verification agent should not exceed $400,000. All fees shall be
paid out of bond sale proceeds; therefore, no direct costs will be paid by the District. Interest and
principal debt service on the bonds will be paid in accordance with the provisions of the Eleventh
Supplemental Indenture via allocation from the District's annual adopted operating budget.

ALTERNATIVES:

The District may elect not to issue the Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Refunding Series 2010, which
would preclude securing the debt service savings at this time.

RECOMMENDATION:

Adopton of the following motion.

MOTION:

That the attached resolution be adopted.



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION OF THE SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING TIMELY REFINANCING OF OUTSTANDING DEBT
TO ACHIEVE NET PRESENT VALUE SAVINGS, AND THE DELEGATION TO THE
CONTROLLER/TREASURER POWER TO DETERMINE THE TIMES AND TERMS OF
SUCH REFINANCINGS; AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE
OF SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT SALES TAX REVENUE
BONDS, REFUNDING SERIES 2010; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY
OF A SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE PURSUANT TO WHICH SUCH BONDS ARE TO BE
ISSUED AND A NOTICE OF SALE PURSUANT TO WHICH SUCH BONDS ARE TO BE
SOLD AND THE PUBLICATION OF NOTICE OF INTENTION TO SELL; APPROVING AN
OFFICIAL STATEMENT RELATING TO SUCH BONDS; AUTHORIZING EXECUTION
AND DELIVERY OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS IN CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUANCE,
SALE AND SECURITY OF SUCH BONDS, INCLUDING A CONTINUING DISCLOSURE
AGREEMENT AND AN ESCROW AGREEMENT; DELEGATING TO THE
CONTROLLER/TREASURER OF THE DISTRICT POWER TO DETERMINE FINAL
TERMS OF SUCH BONDS, TO COMPLETE SAID DOCUMENTS AND TO NEGOTIATE
CREDIT SUPPORT FOR SAID BONDS; DECLARING THE DISTRICT'S INTENT TO
REIMBURSE CERTAIN EXPENDITURES FROM THE PROCEEDS OF INDEBTEDNESS;
AND AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETO.

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
(the "Board") recognizes the need to take advantage of rapidly changing market conditions by
implementing refinancings that will lower the cost of debt financing for the San Francisco Bay
Area Rapid Transit District (the "District") and that such refinancings could be better
implemented by reducing the time required to authorize such refinancings;

WHEREAS, the Board desires to establish appropriate delegations that enable the more
efficient and timely execution of such refinancings;

WHEREAS, the District desires to issue San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Refunding Series 2010 (the "Series 2010 Bonds") to provide funds to
refund such portions of the outstanding San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District Sales Tax
Revenue Bonds, Series 1998 (hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Prior Bonds"), as shall
be determined appropriate by the Controller/Treasurer of the District in order to achieve debt
service savings and/or to restructure existing debt service in order to provide more manageable
debt service (such purpose being hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Series 2010
Refunding Plan");

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 4363 of the District, adopted June 28, 1990, the
District heretofore authorized and issued $158,478,429.95 principal amount of the San Francisco
Bay Area Rapid Transit District Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1990 (the "Series
1990 Bonds"), of which $28,775,000 remains outstanding;

OHS West:260811168.6



WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 4683 of the District, adopted December 4, 1997,
the District heretofore authorized and issued $348,510,000 principal amount of San Francisco
Bay Area Rapid Transit District Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 1998 (the "Series 1998
Bonds"), of which $145,450,000 remains outstanding;

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 4804 of the District, adopted June 14, 2001, the
District heretofore authorized and issued $168,650,000 principal amount of San Francisco Bay
Area Rapid Transit District Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2001 (the "Series 2001 Bonds"), of
which $43,765,000 remains outstanding;

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 4953 of the District, adopted July 28, 2005, the
District heretofore authorized and issued $352,095,000 principal amount of San Francisco Bay
Area Rapid Transit District Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Refunding Series 2005 A (the
"Series 2005A Bonds"), of which $296,530,000 remains outstanding;

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 4987 of the District, adopted June 8, 2006, the
District heretofore authorized and issued $64,915,000 principal amount of San Francisco Bay
Area Rapid Transit District Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2006 (the "Series 2006 Bonds"), of
which $64,915,000 remains outstanding;

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 4996 of the District, adopted October 26, 2006,
the District heretofore authorized and issued $108,110,000 principal amount of San Francisco
Bay Area Rapid Transit District Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Refunding Series 2006A, (the
"Series 2006 A Bonds"), and together with the Series 1990 Bonds, the Series 1998 Bonds, the
Series 2001 Bonds, the Series 2005 A Bonds, and the Series 2006 Bonds, referred to herein as
the "Bonds"), of which $107,545,000 remains outstanding;

WHEREAS, the Bonds were issued under and pursuant to an Indenture, dated as of
July 1, 1990, as supplemented and amended by the First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of
August 7, 1990, the Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of August 29, 1991, the Third
Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 7, 1995, the Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as
of April 1, 1997, the Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of March 12, 1998, the Sixth
Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October 7, 1999, the Seventh Supplemental Indenture, dated
as of July 12, 2001, the Eighth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of September 7, 2005, the Ninth
Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 29, 2006, and the Tenth Supplemental Indenture, dated
as of November 30, 2006 (hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Original Indenture"),
between the District and U. S. Bank National Association ("U. S. Bank"), successor by merger to
U. S. Bank Trust National Association, which was successor to First Trust of California,
National Association, which was successor to Bank of America National Trust and Savings
Association, which was successor to Security Pacific National Bank, as trustee (the "Trustee");

WHEREAS, the District desires to issue the Series 2010 Bonds, payable on a parity with
the Bonds, pursuant to the Original Indenture and an Eleventh Supplemental Indenture thereto
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Indenture"), which is proposed to be entered into by
the District and the Trustee;

OHS West: 260811168.6 2



WHEREAS, there has been prepared and submitted to this meeting a proposed form of
Eleventh Supplemental Indenture (such Eleventh Supplemental Indenture, in the form presented
to this meeting, with such changes, insertions and omissions as are made pursuant to this
Resolution, being hereinafter referred to as the "Supplemental Indenture");

WHEREAS, the District desires to sell the Series 2010 Bonds to a bidder or bidders to be
selected pursuant to a competitive sale process;

WHEREAS, there has been prepared and submitted to this meeting a proposed form of
Official Notice of Sale for the Series 2010 Bonds (the "Notice of Sale") and a Notice of Intention
to Sell the Series 2010 Bonds (the "Notice of Intention to Sell") to be published pursuant to
Section 53692 of the California Government Code;

WHEREAS, there has been prepared and submitted to this meeting a proposed form of
Official Statement in preliminary form (the "Preliminary Official Statement") to be used in
connection with the offering and sale of the Series 2010 Bonds;

WHEREAS, in order to assist the purchasers of the Series 2010 Bonds in complying with
Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15(c)2-12(b)(5), there has been prepared and
submitted to this meeting a proposed form of Continuing Disclosure Agreement (such
Continuing Disclosure Agreement, in the form presented to this meeting, with such changes,
omissions and insertions as are made pursuant to this Resolution, being hereinafter referred to as
the "Continuing Disclosure Agreement"), which is proposed to be entered into by the District
and U. S. Bank, as trustee and dissemination agent;

WHEREAS, in order to provide for the refunding of the Prior Bonds, there has been
prepared and submitted to this meeting a proposed form of Escrow Agreement (such Escrow
Agreement, in the form presented to this meeting, with such changes, omissions and insertions as
are made pursuant to this Resolution, being hereinafter referred to as the "Escrow Agreement"),
which is proposed to be entered into by the District and U. S. Bank, as trustee and escrow agent;

WHEREAS, the District may seek commitments from financial institutions or municipal
bond insurance companies to provide credit support for the Series 2010 Bonds;

WHEREAS, Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe, LLP and Lofton & Jennings are acting as
co-bond counsel and co-disclosure counsel, and KNN Public Finance, a Division of Zions First
National Bank, is acting as financial advisor to the District (the "Financial Advisor") with
respect to the Series 2010 Bonds;

WHEREAS, the District intends to design, acquire, construct and improve transit
facilities in connection with the Warm Springs Extension Project and to renovate or replace the
District's revenue vehicle fleet (collectively, the "Project");

WHEREAS, the District expects to pay certain expenditures (the "Reimbursement
Expenditures") in connection with the Project prior to the issuance of indebtedness by the
District or a conduit issuer for the purpose of financing costs associated with the Project on a
long-term basis;

OHS West: 260811168.6 3



WHEREAS, the District reasonably expects that debt obligations in an amount not
expected to exceed $600,000,000 will be issued and that certain of the proceeds of such debt
obligations will be used to reimburse the Reimbursement Expenditures; and

WHEREAS, Section 1.150-2 of the Treasury Regulations (26 CFR 1.150-2) requires the
District to declare its reasonable official intent to reimburse prior expenditures for the Project
with proceeds of a subsequent borrowing;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the San
Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District as follows:

Section 1. The District finds and determines that the foregoing recitals are true and
correct.

Section 2. The issuance by the District of San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit
District Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Refunding Series 2010, payable on a parity with the Bonds,
in an aggregate principal amount sufficient: (i) to refund such portion of the Prior Bonds as shall
be determined appropriate by the Controller/Treasurer of the District in order to achieve the
Series 2010 Refunding Plan, and to direct nominal excess proceeds to be expended pursuant to
the Capital Improvement Program of the District, (ii) to increase the amount on deposit in the
Bond Reserve Fund (as such term is defined in the Indenture) to fund an appropriate reserve for
the Series 2010 Bonds, and (iii) to pay costs of issuance of the Series 2010 Bonds, on the terms
and conditions set forth in, and subject to the limitations specified in, the Supplemental
Indenture, as finally executed and delivered, is hereby approved. The Controller/Treasurer of the
District is hereby authorized and directed to determine the principal amount, interest rate or rates,
reserve funding, and other terms of the Series 2010 Bonds to be issued, including determining
whether such Series 2010 Bonds shall be issued as current interest bonds (subject to the aforesaid
limitations and the limitations hereinafter specified), and to specify said terms in the
Supplemental Indenture. The Controller/Treasurer's determination with regard to the size of the
bond issue shall be based on the funding requirements for the Series 2010 Refunding Plan,
including the availability of debt service savings and more manageable debt service resulting
from the restructuring of existing debt service and expected earnings from the reserve deposit, at
the time the Series 2010 Bonds are sold and which, based on the issue as a whole, shall provide
present value debt service savings in an amount not less than 4% of the principal amount of the
refunded Prior Bonds.

Section 3. The Supplemental Indenture in the form presented to this meeting is
hereby approved. The Controller/Treasurer of the District is hereby authorized and directed to
execute and deliver the Supplemental Indenture in substantially the form presented to this
meeting with such changes, insertions and omissions as may be approved by him, said execution
being conclusive evidence of such approval; and the District Secretary is hereby authorized to
attest to such signature. The proceeds of the Series 2010 Bonds (after payment of the costs of
issuance thereof) will be applied to provide funds for the purposes hereinabove described. The
maximum term of the Series 2010 Bonds shall not exceed thirty years. The maximum rate of
interest to be payable on the Series 2010 Bonds shall not exceed 8% per annum. Optional
redemption of the Series 2010 Bonds shall be provided for at not later than ten years from the
date of issuance at a premium not greater than 3%; provided, however, that the

OHS West:260811168.6 4



Controller/Treasurer of the District is hereby authorized to cause all or any portion of the Series
2010 Bonds to be issued as noncallable bonds. The interest payment dates, denominations,
forms, manner of execution, terms of redemption and other terms of the Series 2010 Bonds shall
be as provided in the Supplemental Indenture as finally executed.

Section 4 . The Notice of Intention to Sell in the form presented to this meeting is
hereby approved . The Controller/Treasurer of the District is hereby authorized and directed to
cause said Notice of Intention to Sell to be published once in The Bond Buyer, a newspaper of
general circulation in the District , at least five days prior to the sale of the Series 2010 Bonds.

Section 5. The Notice of Sale in the form presented to this meeting is hereby
approved. The Controller/Treasurer of the District is hereby authorized and directed to execute
and deliver the Notice of Sale in substantially the form presented to this meeting with such
changes, insertions and omissions as may be approved by him, said execution being conclusive
evidence of such approval. The Financial Advisor is hereby authorized to circulate said Notice
of Sale to potential purchasers of the Series 2010 Bonds. Electronic proposals shall be received
by the Controller/Treasurer of the District up to the hour of 8:00 a.m. California time on May 5,
2010 or on such earlier or later date or time determined by the Controller/Treasurer of the
District as set forth in the Notice of Sale. The bids for the Series 2010 Bonds shall be for the
purchase of the Series 2010 Bonds for cash at not less than ninety-eight percent (98%) of their
principal amount. The Controller/Treasurer of the District is hereby authorized to determine
whether to award the Series 2010 Bonds to the highest responsible bidder resulting in the lowest
true interest cost to the District or to reject any or all bids. The Controller/Treasurer of the
District is further authorized to adjust the principal amounts of the Series 2010 Bonds and the
purchase price thereof in accordance with the Notice of Sale to achieve the Series 2010
Refunding Plan. The proceeds of the sale of the Series 2010 Bonds shall be applied
simultaneously with the delivery of the Series 2010 Bonds, as required by the terms of the
Supplemental Indenture and Escrow Agreement as finally executed.

Section 6. The Preliminary Official Statement in the form presented to this meeting
is hereby approved, and the distribution of the Preliminary Official Statement in connection with
the offering and sale of the Series 2010 Bonds, with such changes, omissions and insertions as
shall be approved by the Controller/Treasurer, is hereby authorized and approved. The
Controller/Treasurer is hereby authorized to review the Preliminary Official Statement and to
certify on behalf of the District that the Preliminary Official Statement is "deemed final" as of its
date, except for certain terms and pricing information permitted to be omitted therefrom pursuant
to Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-12.

The Controller/Treasurer of the District is hereby authorized and directed to prepare a
final version of the Official Statement (such final version of the Official Statement, in the form
of the Preliminary Official Statement, with such changes, insertions and omissions as shall be
approved by the Controller/Treasurer of the District, being hereinafter referred to as the "Official
Statement") and to execute the Official Statement and any amendment or supplement thereto, in
the name of and on behalf of the District, and cause the Official Statement and any such
amendment or supplement to be delivered to the purchasers and distributed in connection with
the sale of the Series 2010 Bonds.

OHS West:260811168.6 5



Section 7. The Continuing Disclosure Agreement in the form presented to this
meeting is hereby approved. The Controller/Treasurer of the District is hereby authorized and
directed to execute and deliver a Continuing Disclosure Agreement in substantially the form
presented to this meeting, with such changes, insertions and omissions as may be approved by
him, said execution being conclusive evidence of such approval.

Section 8. The Escrow Agreement in the form presented to this meeting is hereby
approved. The Controller/Treasurer of the District is hereby authorized and directed to execute
and deliver an Escrow Agreement in substantially the form presented to this meeting, with such
changes, insertions and omissions as may be approved by him, said execution being conclusive
evidence of such approval.

Section 9. The Controller/Treasurer of the District is hereby authorized and directed
to take such actions as are necessary in connection with the investment of funds deposited in the
escrow fund established pursuant to the Escrow Agreement (the "Escrow Fund"), and, if
applicable, U.S. Bank, in its capacity as trustee for the Prior Bonds is hereby authorized and
directed to file such applications and other documents on behalf of the District as may be
required to order and obtain U.S. Treasury Obligations - State and Local Government Series to
be purchased with proceeds of the Series 2010 Bonds and other funds deposited in the Escrow
Fund.

Section 10. The Controller/Treasurer of the District is hereby authorized to solicit or
cause to be solicited proposals from financial institutions or municipal bond insurance
companies, and, if the Controller/Treasurer of the District determines that it is in the best interest
of the District to arrange for the issuance of a bond insurance policy, or an irrevocable letter of
credit in connection with the Series 2010 Bonds, and the Controller/Treasurer of the District is
hereby authorized to execute and deliver all documents necessary in connection therewith or may
provide for bidder's option insurance pursuant to the Notice of Sale.

Section 11. The Controller/Treasurer of the District is hereby authorized and directed,
if necessary, to solicit proposals from financial institutions, as applicable, in order to secure an
irrevocable letter of credit or a surety bond (both a "Reserve Facility Instrument") in order to
increase the amount on deposit in the Bond Reserve Fund upon the issuance of the Series 2010
Bonds and, if the Controller/Treasurer determines that it is in the best interest of the District to
utilize a Reserve Facility Instrument to increase the amount on deposit in the Bond Reserve
Fund, the Controller/Treasurer of the District is authorized to select and secure a Reserve Facility
Instrument on such terms as the Controller/Treasurer of the District determines are appropriate in
order to increase the amount on deposit in the Bond Reserve Fund and to execute and deliver all
documents necessary in connection with such Reserve Facility Instrument.

Section 12. The Controller/Treasurer of the District is hereby authorized to enter into
or to instruct the Trustee to enter into one or more investment agreements, float contracts, swaps
or other hedging products (hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Investment Agreement")
providing for the investment of moneys in any of the funds and accounts created under the
Indenture or the Escrow Agreement, on such terms as the Controller/Treasurer of the District
shall deem appropriate including providing investments with terms up to the final maturity date
of the Bonds. Pursuant to Section 5922 of the California Government Code, the Board of

OHS West:260811168.6 6



Directors of the District hereby finds and determines that the Investment Agreement will reduce
the amount and duration of interest rate risk with respect to amounts invested pursuant to the
Investment Agreement and is designed to reduce the amount or duration of payment, rate, spread
or similar risk or result in a lower cost of borrowing when used in combination with the Series
2010 Bonds or enhance the relationship between risk and return with respect to investments.

Section 13. The Controller/Treasurer of the District, the District Secretary and any
other proper officer of the District, acting singly, is, and each of them hereby is, authorized and
directed to execute and deliver any and all documents and instruments and to do and cause to be
done any and all acts and things necessary or proper to carry out the transactions contemplated
by the Supplemental Indenture, the Notice of Sale, the Preliminary Official Statement, the
Official Statement, the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, the Escrow Agreement (collectively,
the "Refunding Documents") and by this Resolution, including without limitation, the delivery of
tax certifications, the delivery of any documents necessary in connection with the refunding of
the Prior Bonds, the delivery of any documents relating to the investment of bond proceeds, the
delivery of an agreement for financial advisory services with the Financial Advisor, and the
making of any determinations or submission of any documents or reports which are required by
any governmental entity in connection with the issuance and sale of the Series 2010 Bonds.

Section 14. All actions heretofore taken by the officers, representatives or agents of
the District in connection with the issuance and sale of the Series 2010 Bonds are hereby ratified,
confirmed and approved.

Section 15. The Controller/Treasurer is hereby further authorized and directed, from
time to time, for and in the name and on behalf of the District, to take any and all actions
necessary to refinance any outstanding Bonds if the refinancing transaction will result in net
present value savings of at least 4% of the principal amount of the Bonds being refunded, as
determined by the Controller/Treasurer and which determination shall be final and conclusive.
The Controller/Treasurer is authorized to engage such consultants, bond counsel, underwriters,
or other parties and to execute, acknowledge and deliver, and to prepare and review, as he deems
appropriate, all indentures, official statements and all other documents, certificates, agreements
and information necessary to accomplish such refinancing transactions taking as guidance the
forms and provisions of the Refunding Documents authorized herein.

Section 16. The District hereby declares its official intent to use proceeds of
indebtedness to reimburse itself for Reimbursement Expenditures. This declaration is made
solely for purposes of establishing compliance with the requirements of Section 1.150-2 of the
Treasury Regulations.

This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.

OHS West:260811168.6 7



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
Approve and Place on April 22, 2010 Administration
Committee Agenda
BOARD INITIA ITEM: No

Originator/Prepa
Dept : gperating Bud

Wf"
II s rer District Secretary BARC

1

Signature/Date: ^S ( ] I I 1/r ( l
TITLE: I BY

Approval of Northern'California Power Agency Ph"*e II Agreements for the Lodi Energy
Center and Adoption of Related Environmental Findings

NARRATIVE:

PURPOSE
To authorize the General Manager to execute the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA)
Phase III Agreements that authorize the District's participation in the Lodi Energy Center (LEC)
and to adopt related environmental findings.

DISCUSSION
The LEC is a natural gas generation plant being developed by NCPA with fourteen public agency
participants . On January 10, 2008 , the Board authorized the General Manager to enter into the
NCPA Phase II Agreement for the District to participate in the development of the LEC. The
Phase II development process consists of regulatory permitting, environmental approval and
engineering design . In addition, on November 20, 2008 , the Board approved Amendment No. 1
to the Phase II Agreement that expanded the scope of the Agreement to allow payment for a
deposit on the power generation equipment. The total amount of District funds allocated for
Phase II development costs is $2,352,765.

The District's share of the LEC specified in the Phase II Agreement is 5.9%. This represented
approximately 15.0 megawatt (MW) of the LEC's preliminary estimate of generating capacity of
255 MW. The LEC is currently rated at 280 MW, and BART is currently subscribed at a 6.25%
share. This will provide to BART approximately 17.5 MW or about one third of the District's
annual electric energy need.

Phase II of the Project is nearing completion . The California Energy Commission (CEC) is the
regulatory and environmental licensing agency for the project . Final approval of the license is
expected on April 21, 2010 . All LEC related air emission reduction credits , water supply
agreements , land use agreements, and air permits have been attained and the generating
equipment is ordered . Detailed Project engineering is approximately 50% complete.

In order to proceed with Phase III - Project financing and construction and to provide for Project
operation, all Participants must approve the Phase III power sales and operation agreements and a
final determination of each participants generation share is necessary. Upon such approval,
financing activities will begin, with construction scheduled to start in July 2010 and commercial



Approval of Northern California Power Agency Phase III Agreements for the Lodi Energy Center and Adoption of Rela

operation date targeted for June 2012.

The NCPA Commission is scheduled to approve the Phase III agreements on April 22, 2010.
The power sales agreement contains provisions prescribing how the LEC Project will be
financed, and establishes three separate indenture groups associated with Project financing.
Indenture Group A will consist of the ten NCPA member Project Participants (which includes
BART) plus two non-NCPA Participants. Indenture Group B consists of the California
Department of Water Resources and Indenture Group C consists of the Modesto Irrigation
District. NCPA will separately sell bonds for the share of Project costs represented by Indenture
Group A and Indenture Group B and Modesto will finance its share independently.

Upon financing of the Project, BART will be bound and obligated to pay its share of Project cost
based on billing amounts to be calculated by NCPA each month for a period of thirty years or the
life of the Project, whichever is longer. The first monthly invoice from NCPA will be issued
prior to the June 2012 expected date of LEC commercial operation. In return for such Project
commitment, BART will receive its proportionate share of the electricity produced from the
LEC.

Other key elements of the power sales agreement include:
Option for Independent Fuel Purchase: Participants may provide physical fuel for the

plant or rely on NCPA to obtain such fuel supply. NCPA intends to develop a gas hedging
program separate from the LEC Project in which NCPA Members may elect to participate. In
addition, BART is participating in a NCPA study to examine the feasibility to use biomethane to
provide a portion of the plant's fuel supply.

Step-up Obligations: The "step-up" obligation among Participants in case of payment
default is specific to each of the 3 indenture groups. Indenture Group A, which includes BART,
has a 35% maximum step-up obligation . Prior to exercising these provisions, there would be the
opportunity for voluntary step-ups among all NCPA members. Any defaulting participant
remains liable for all costs despite any step-up by other Participants.

The second Phase III agreement, the plant operating agreement , establishes the roles, obligations
and responsibilities of the participants and NCPA in operating the LEC. A project committee
will be responsible for the governance of Project activities and will act and vote on Project
related matters in an official capacity. The decisions by the committee will be binding upon
Project Participants and upon NCPA as the Project operator. Each Project Participant will have
one representative whose vote will be cast in accordance with the respective Participant 's share
of the plant.

Each Project Participant has the right to adjust downward its share of the plant's capacity prior to
executing the power sales agreement . In order to finance the Project, the LEC's 280 MW
capacity must be fully subscribed. Recognizing that one or more Project Participants may
reduce their level of participation, staff recommends that BART authorize an increase in
generation share up to a maximum of 6.6% (one additional megawatt or about 18.5 MW). This
is in the event that one or more Participants reduce their share and such increase by BART
becomes necessary to assure Project financing and construction. Staff requests delegation of



Approval of Northern California Power Agency Phase I I I Agreements for the Lodi Energy Center and Adoption of Rela

final determination of plant generation share, up to this maximum of 6.6%, be given to the
BART General Manager. Any such change would occur prior to execution of the power sales
agreement.

The Office of General Counsel will approve the Phase III agreements as to form.

Environmental Analysis
The CEC license includes various environmental analysis, findings and mitigation measures that
constitute the equivalent of an environmental impact report for purposes of the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA, Public Resources Code section 21000 et seq .). The CEC in
effect has acted as the "lead agency" for this Project for purposes of environmental analysis. As a
consequence, rather than conducting its own independent environmental analysis under CEQA,
BART is acting as a "responsible agency" under CEQA and is thus responsible for considering
the analysis , findings and mitigation measures of the CEC and reaching its own independent
conclusions on whether and how to approve the LEC Project (CEQA Guidelines section 15096).
Specifically, as a responsible agency, BART must consider the lead agency findings for each
significant effect of the Project and make its own appropriate findings. The attached resolution
makes all necessary findings for BART acting as a responsible agency and specifically accepts
the CEC's prepared environmental documents.

FISCAL IMPACT
The estimated cost of the development and construction of the LEC Project is $375. 3 million,
together with the addition of approximately $76 million in financing related cost , results in total
estimated Project cost of $451 million. The District will be responsible for paying for the
financing costs and the fuel and plant operating expenses necessary to generate the power. For
BART, at a 6 .25% to 6.6% share of the plant's generation capacity , the initial annual power cost
is approximately $11.3 million including transmission and distribution costs. Upon completion,
LEC will be the most efficient gas powered power plant in Northern California . As a result, it is
expected to generate power at an average cost lower than the market alternative . The estimated
savings to the District over market supply is estimated to range from $68 to $218 million over
the life of the plant . The financing, fuel and operating costs would be paid through the District's
annual operating budget, no capital outlay is required.

ALTERNATIVES
The Board may choose to end the District's participation in the LEC. In the absence of
generation from this plant, the District would have to continue to rely on more expensive market
power supply. The development costs that the District has paid so far would be refunded if
another project participant takes up BART's share and the LEC goes into commercial operation.

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that the Board adopt the following motion.

MOTION.
That the Board approves the attached resolution that:
1. Authorizes the General Manager to execute on behalf of BART the NCPA Phase III



Approval of Northern California Power Agency Phase III Agreements for the Lodi Energy Center and Adoption of Rela

Agreements - the Power Sales Agreement and the Plant Management and Operations
Agreement. This includes the delegation of authority for the General Manager to increase
BART's Generation Entitlement Share (GES) as indicated in such agreements up to a maximum
of 6.6% in the event one or more Project Participants reduce their GES and such increase is
necessary to assure Project financing and construction; and,
2. Adopts the CEC environmental analysis, findings, and mitigation measures along with the
Board ' s own findings (Exhibit A attached to the Resolution) regarding the same as responsible
agency for the significant impacts of the LEC Project and directs the BART General Manager, or
designee, to immediately record a Notice of Determination with the County of Alameda;
3. Designates the General Manager as the official responsible for appointing, and from
time-to-time changing as necessary , BART' s representatives on the LEC participant committee.



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

In the Matter of Approving the Lodi Energy Center Power Sales Agreement and the Project
Management and Operation Agreement and Authorizing the General Manager to Execute
These Agreements on Behalf of the District , Subject to Revision of Generation Entitlement
Shares; and Authorizing the General Manager to Designate Representatives to the Project

Participant Committee and Making Findings as a Responsible Agency Under the California
Environmental Quality Act.

Resolution No.

WHEREAS , BART has elected to participate in the 280 MW Lodi Energy Center (LEC)
Project being developed by NCPA, and;

WHEREAS , BART' s Generation Entitlement Share in the Project is 6.25 percent or
approximately 17.50 megawatts and;

WHEREAS , the California Energy Commission (CEC) has approved the project Application
for Certification (AFC) on April 21, 2010 and such approval by the CEC includes various
environmental analysis, findings and mitigation measures under the terms of the Warren-Alquist Act
(Public Resources Code section 25500 et seq.). The CEC's analysis, findings, and mitigation
measures, constitute the equivalent of an environmental impact report for purposes of the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA, Public Resources Code section 21000 et seq.) as a "certified
regulatory program" pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15251(j). The CEC has acted as the "lead
agency" for this Project for purposes of environmental analysis. As a consequence, rather than
conducting its own independent environmental analysis under CEQA, BART is acting as a
"responsible agency" under CEQA and is thus responsible for considering the analysis, findings and
mitigation measures of the CEC and reaching BART's independent conclusions on whether and how
to approve the LEC Project. (CEQA Guidelines section 15096.), and;

WHEREAS, BART acting as a responsible agency has independently considered the
analysis, findings, and mitigation measures prepared by CEC as reflected in Exhibit A attached to
this Resolution, and

WHEREAS, the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) has prepared a Power Sales
Agreement (PSA) which upon execution by all the LEC Project Participants and NCPA will permit
financing, construction and operation of the Project, and;

WHEREAS, the BART Board understands that if one or more other Project Participants
reduce their Generation Entitlement Share (GES), BART may have to increase its GES to a
maximum of 6.6% in order to effectuate Project financing and construction, and;

WHEREAS, the BART is desirous of NCPA managing and operating the LEC Project on its
behalf, and on behalf of other Project participants, and NCPA has prepared a Project Management

I



and Operation Agreement (PMOA) which upon execution by LEC Project Participants and NCPA
provides for Project management and operation by NCPA, and ;

WHEREAS, the BART acknowledges that the PSA forms a Project Participant Committee
(PPC) which will provide Project governance and to establish, and from time to time revise,
directives related to Project capital expenditures, budgets, operations and maintenance, among other
items, and that the BART is to designate a BART official responsible for appointing BART's
representative and alternate representative on the PPC,

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, as follows:

1. That acting in its capacity as a responsible agency for purposes of the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), BART hereby makes the findings as provided in Exhibit A of
this resolution. The BART General Manager or her designee is hereby directed to record a Notice of
Determination in the County of Alameda reflecting these findings.

2. That it hereby approves the Power Sales Agreement and the Project Management and
Operation Agreement, and authorizes its General Manager to execute these agreements on behalf of
BART. It additionally authorizes the General Manager to increase BART's Generation Entitlement
Share as reflected in the PSA and PMOA up to a maximum of 6.6% in the event one or more Project
Participants elects to reduce their GES; and

3. That it designates the BART General Manager as BART's official responsible for
appointing , and from time to time replacing , BART' s representative and alternate representative on
the PPC, and designating such representatives to NCPA.

###

2



LP7
EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

RAL AQANAG R PROV

M (A -A V

GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:

Approve and sward to the Board.

DATE : BOARD IN&IFA EM: No

Origin or/Prepared by: Henry Kolesar General Counsel Contr II u er District Secretary B
De , oiling St & hops

g azure/ ate:

Status : Approved
TITLE:

Date Cr to : 03/29/2010

Change Order No. 1 to Contract No. 42EL-210B, Procurement of C-1 Car Auxiliary Power
Supply Equipment

NARRATIVE:

PURPOSE:
To obtain Board authorization for the General Manager to execute Change Order No. 1 to
Contract No. 42EL-210B, Procurement of C-1 Car Auxiliary Power Supply Equipment (APSE),
with Bombardier Transportation (Holdings) USA, Inc., in the amount of $4,907,600, plus
applicable sales tax.

DISCUSSION:
On October 8, 2009, the Board authorized the General Manager to award Contract No.
42EL-210B to Bombardier Transportation (Holdings) USA, Inc., in the amount of $3,982,860,
plus applicable sales tax, for the Base Bid of 30 APSE units, using funding from the American
Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009. The Contract contains two options (A and B), each for
an additional 20 units. The Bid Price for Option A is $2,508,000, and the Bid Price for Option B
is $2,399,600. The total price for both Options is $4,907,600, plus applicable sales tax. Tier 2
funding of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 has become available in an
amount such that both Options can be exercised at this time.

Pursuant to Board Rule 5-2.4, except for construction and procurement contracts greater than
$200 million, all change orders which involve an expenditure of more than $200,000 require the
approval of the Board of Directors.

The Office of the General Counsel will approve this Change Order as to form, and the
Procurement Department will review this Change Order for compliance with the District's
procurement guidelines, prior to execution.

FISCAL IMPACT:
Funding of $5,386,091 for Change Order No. 1 to Contract No. 42EL-210B is included in the
total project budget for the FMS#42EL - Auxiliary Power Supply Equipment (APSE). The
Office of the Controller/Treasurer certifies that funds are currently available to meet this
obligation.



CA-96-X001 American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009(ARRA) Stimulus Fed.
54K $5,386,091
As of the month ending 03/30/2010, $11,200,000 is available for commitment from this fund
source for this project and BART to date has committed $0. There is $4,371,189 pending
commitment in BART's financial management system. This action will commit an additional
$5,386,091, leaving an uncommitted balance of $1,442,720 in this fund.

There is no fiscal impact on available un-programmed District Reserves.

ALTERNATIVES:

The Board could elect not to exercise the two Options and instead solicit new bids for the 40
APSE units. Stimulus funding, however, is granted under specific time constraints and delays
associated with re-advertising and re-bidding this procurement could jeopardize that funding.

RECOMMENDATION:
On the basis of analysis by Staff, and certification by the Controller/Treasurer that the funds are
available for this purpose, it is recommended that the Board adopt the following motion.

MOTION:
The General Manager is authorized to execute Change Order No. 1 to Contract No. 42EL-2I OB,
Procurement of C-1 Car Auxiliary Power Supply Equipment (APSE), with Bombardier
Transportation (Holdings) USA, Inc., to exercise Contract Options A and B for a total of 40
additional APSE units, in the amount of $4,907,600, plus applicable sales tax, pursuant to
notification to be issued by the General Manager.

Change Order No. 1 to Contract No. 42EL-2106, Procurement of C-1 Car Auxiliary Power Supply Equipment 2



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

G RAL MANAGER APPROVAL: GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
Approve and fo to the Board of Directors

DATE
: f// 4410 (A BOARDI ; I No

Originator/Prepared by: Stacey Perkins General Co el on r District Secretary S
Dept: Capital Development & Control x6160

t,^

W

1

Signature/Date : 1 a 'f I }

Status: Routed Date Cr'e ted: 03/2912010
TITLE:

BART and MTC Joint Resolution for Funding of the Rail Car Replacement Program

NARRATIVE:

Purpose:
To obtain BART Board approval of a Joint Resolution ("Resolution") with the Metropolitan
Transportation Commission ("MTC") for funding of the Rail Car Replacement Program
("Project"), which consists of the replacement of the District's 669 rail cars. The Resolution
provides a Phase 1 funding plan for the first 200 cars and a policy framework for funding of
Phase 2, the remainder of the Project. Additional rail cars needed for system or capacity
expansion are not included in the Resolution.

Discussion:
BART and MTC staff have been working together for several years on the development of a
funding plan for the Project. The primary funding source is MTC's Transit Capital Priorities
("TCP") program which consists of federal formula funds that are available to fund the region's
fixed guideway needs. Expansion and system capacity needs are not an eligible use of TCP
funds, thus additional cars beyond the 669 replacement cars are not included in the Resolution.

The total Project cost is forecast at $3.2 billion in escalated dollars. The Resolution provides a
funding plan for Phase 1, the initial order of 200 cars which is forecast to cost approximately $1
billion, and a policy framework for Phase 2, the balance of the $3.2 billion Project cost of $2.2
billion. Negotiations between BART and MTC staff have focused primarily on the Phase 1 cost
of $1 billion because MTC anticipates being able to fund this amount within their 10 year capital
improvement program ("CIP") which was developed following the adoption of Transportation
2035 ("T2035"), the region's long-term transportation plan. T2035 established the policy that
replacement of revenue vehicles is the highest priority for regional funds. MTC's CIP forecasts
all of the region's high priority replacement and rehabilitation needs over the FY10-19 period,
and projected regional funds would be sufficient to cover Phase 1 of the Project within their CIP
timeframe.

Attachments B-1 and B-2 of the Resolution describe the assumptions and detail the funding plan
for Phase 1 of the Project. This includes $870 million of regional funds, of which $730 million is
federal formula funding and $140 million is FHWA regional funds, otherwise known as STP
funds. Of the $870 million, approximately $103.3 million has already been awarded with $90.7



million of this amount being swapped and placed in an interest bearing reserve account, as the
grants are earned, because it is not yet needed for Project expenses. This method of placing
regional funds in a reserve account which generates interest for the Project is expected to
continue. MTC has established a Vehicle Procurement Reserve Program and has agreed to
program a total of $80 million in federal formula funds for FYI 1 and FY12, with interest
earnings dedicated to the Project and offsetting future programming of STP funds. Annual
programming is expected to continue using this methodology, with amounts of up to $94
million/year programmed through FY19. BART is required to provide the local match to the
regional funds, using primarily High Speed Rail ("HSR") funds totaling $150 million.

The Resolution also includes a framework and principles for funding the remainder of the
Project, Phase 2 which totals $2.2 billion. These are included in Attachment A. It is expected that
a firm commitment of funding for Phase 2 will need to be established in 2015, in advance of the
award of the first contract option in 2017. Although the Phase 1 funding plan includes
approximately 85% from regional funds, Attachment A calls for the region to fund a total of
approximately $2.4 billion, or about 75% of total Project cost for the combined Phase 1 and 2.
BART will be required to fund about 25% of total Project cost or approximately $805 million for
the total Project. The regional share may include federal formula, STP, or any other
MTC-controlled funds. BART's share may include HSR, revenue based STA, parcel tax, or any
other BART-pursued revenue augmentation. Since Attachment A is a preliminary framework, it
is expected that BART and MTC staff will be working together over the next several years on a
funding plan for Phase 2 which will result in a Resolution brought to the Board for approval.

The attached Joint Resolution will be brought before the MTC Commission for approval in May
or June 2010.

Fiscal Impact:
Approval of the Resolution is a requirement for MTC to program the revenues described in the
Phase 1 funding plan. These revenues total $870 million in regional funds. Of the $870 million,
approximately $103.3 million has already been awarded with $90.7 million of this amount being
swapped and placed in an interest bearing reserve account, as the grants are earned, because it is
not yet needed for Project expenses.

Alternatives:
Do not approve the Resolution. Failure to approve the Resolution may result in schedule delays
and cost increases for the Rail Car Replacement Program.

Motion:
The Board of Directors approves the Joint Resolution, a copy of which is attached.

BART and MTC Joint Resolution for Funding of the Rail Car Replacement Program 2



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
AND METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION

JOINT RESOLUTION
MTC Resolution 3918
BART Resolution No.

WHEREAS, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) is the regional
transportation planning agency for the San Francisco Bay Area pursuant to Government Code
66500 et. seq.; and

WHEREAS, the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (BART) is a rapid transit
district providing heavy rail transit service in the San Francisco Bay Area; and

WHEREAS, BART wishes to replace 669 rail cars through its Rail Car Replacement
Program (PROJECT); and

WHEREAS, BART and MTC wish to establish a funding framework and understanding
for the PROJECT; and

WHEREAS, BART and MTC wish to establish a policy-level commitment of funding
toward a PHASE 1 FUNDING PLAN in fiscal years 2011 through 2019 in order for BART to
award a contract for the PROJECT;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that BART and MTC have agreed to the
Principles for Funding Framework BART Car Replacement Program set forth in Attachment A
and incorporated herein; and

RESOLVED, that BART and MTC have agreed to and approve the PHASE 1 FUNDING
PLAN ASSUMPTIONS set forth in Attachment B-I and incorporated herein; and

RESOLVED, that BART and MTC have agreed to and approve the PHASE 1 FUNDING
PLAN set forth in Attachment B-2 and incorporated herein; and

RESOLVED, that BART and MTC agree that MTC's commitment of funding for the
PHASE 1 FUNDING PLAN for the PROJECT is limited to the total amount of MTC Funding
shown in the PHASE 1 FUNDING PLAN ; and

RESOLVED, that MTC agrees to program Federal Transit Administration and Federal
Highway Administration funds as set forth in Attachment B-2, subject to Congressional
authorization and appropriation, availability of funds, and other critical regional transit capital
needs in a timely manner in order to meet PHASE 1 FUNDING PLAN cash flow needs and
minimize financing costs; and



RESOLVED, that MTC may substitute other MTC-controlled funds in place of available
Federal Transit Administration and Federal Highway Administration funds specified in the
PHASE 1 FUNDING PLAN;

RESOLVED, that BART agrees to use its High Speed Rail funds and the BART Car
Replacement Funding Exchange Account funds as shown in Attachment B-2 to meet the local
match requirements of federal funds for the PHASE 1 FUNDING PLAN; and

RESOLVED, that BART agrees to comply with all applicable local, state , and federal
requirements for funds programmed by MTC; and

RESOLVED, that BART and MTC agree to work with the Bay Area Partnership to
ensure that the PROJECT funding plan will be developed and programmed in agreement with the
region's overall approach to the Transit Capital Priorities program; and

RESOLVED, that BART acknowledges that it has received regional funds from MTC to
extend the life of some of its current fleet of rail cars so that they will remain in service while the
replacement cars are being procured and delivered, and agrees to maintain its current fleet of rail
cars so that they will remain in service while the replacement cars are being procured and
delivered; and

RESOLVED, that BART agrees that it will not request regional funds from MTC for a
rehabilitation of its current fleet of railcars; and

RESOLVED, that BART and MTC will work with the Federal Transit Administration
(FTA) to ensure the federal funds are available to the PROJECT.



ATTACHMENT A
PRINCIPLES FOR FUNDING FRAMEWORK

BART CAR REPLACEMENT PROGRAM

1. Project Definition
The BART Car Replacement Program (PROJECT) consists of replacing 669 A, B, Cl and C2
cars at an estimated cost of $3.2 billion (in escalated dollars). The procurement of additional
capacity expansion cars is outside of the scope of these Principles.

The PHASE 1 FUNDING PLAN will address the costs of replacing approximately the first 200
cars at an estimated cost of $1 .0 billion (in escalated dollars).

The PHASE 2 FUNDING PLAN will address the costs of replacing approximately the remaining
469 cars at an estimated cost of $2.2 billion (in escalated dollars).

Due to the long term nature of this project, BART's base contract will be for approximately 200
cars, and there will be options for additional cars. Subject to the availability of funding, BART
anticipates exercising the first option in 2017.

2. Background
The funding plan for the PROJECT will be modeled on MTC Resolution 2672, in which MTC
entered into an agreement with BART as part of a larger regional framework for transit capital
replacement and expansion that provided regional investments to cover 70% of the costs of
BART's A-B Car Rehabilitation project.

Transportation 2035, the region's long- range plan that was adopted in April 2009, includes
$15.1 billion (in escalated dollars) in projected capital replacement and rehabilitation needs for
BART between FY 2009 and FY 2033. The total includes $10.8 billion in Score 16 (the highest
priority for funding under the region's Transit Capital Priorities Process and Criteria) needs and
$4.3 billion in other needs. The Score 16 needs includes the PROJECT at a cost of $2.7 billion,
and Fixed Guideway and other Score 16 needs totaling $8.1 billion.

Transportation 2035 projects that $4.3 billion of Committed Transit Capital Revenues will be
available to meet BART's Score 16 needs. Of this total, approximately $0.6 billion is from
operating funds that BART is projected to contribute to its capital program.

Transportation 2035 projects $23.1 billion in transit capital revenues for all transit capital needs
in the region, including $6.4 billion in Discretionary Revenues. Of the $6.4 billion in
Discretionary Revenues dedicated to Score 16 needs throughout the region, $4.7 billion or 73%
is projected to come from anticipated sources that MTC and its transit operator partners will need
to identify and secure for transit capital needs.



3. Regional Share of Project Costs
Consistent with Resolution 2672 and Transportation 2035, and in order to meet the PROJECT
cost of $3.2 billion, MTC would cover approximately $2.4 billion, or about 75%, of PROJECT
costs. This includes projected FTA 5307 and 5309 FG, FHWA STP, Population-based Spillover
(or successor programs) and/or other anticipated funding sources included in Transportation
2035, as well as funds that have been programmed to the PROJECT prior to the adoption of
Transportation 2035 and projected earnings on the BART Car Replacement Funding Exchange
Account.

Assumptions for Regional Share

• The total cost of the project is $3.2 billion and includes replacement of 669 cars.
• Major transit capital rehabilitation and replacement needs in the Region can be met as

anticipated in the Plan, including 100% of the cost of replacing revenue vehicles and
approximately 60% of the cost of replacing and rehabilitating Fixed Guideway and other
Score 16 assets.

• The Region will receive $13.5 billion in Committed Revenues, including FTA Section 5307
and 5309 (or their successors) and AB664 bridge tolls, between FY 2009 and FY 2033 as
anticipated in Transportation 2035.

• The Region will receive $6.4 billion in Discretionary Revenues, including Anticipated Funds,
FHWA STP (or its successor), and Population-based Spillover, between FY 2009 and FY
2033 as anticipated in Transportation 2035.

• The Region's Score 16 transit capital replacement and rehabilitation needs between FY 2009
and FY 2033 will not exceed $28.6 billion as anticipated in Transportation 2035.

Should these assumptions, including the cost of the PROJECT, change substantively over time,
the terms of this project funding framework will be re-examined and an alternate approach will
be agreed to by MTC and BART that could include extending the timing of fund commitments,
seeking alternate fund sources, or other actions.

4. BART Share of Project Costs
Consistent with Resolution 2672 and Transportation 2035, and in order to meet the PROJECT
cost of $3.2 billion, BART will cover approximately $0.8 billion, or about 25%, of PROJECT
costs. BART will dedicate $150 million of its High Speed Rail funds to the PROJECT, and
BART will either direct future BART-controlled revenue, such as State Transit Assistance
Revenue-Based funds, after meeting revenue sharing and coordination expenses, or raise
additional funds through General Obligation bonds, parcel taxes, fare increases or other means to
help fund its share of PROJECT costs and/or fixed guideway needs.

If necessary, BART can meet this commitment, in whole or in part, by funding a larger share of
its fixed guideway capital needs, and reducing the need for regional investments in BART's
fixed guideway needs below the level currently projected in Transportation 2035.

2



5. Funding Commitment Timeframe
The total PROJECT will be funded in two phases as described in Table 1. MTC and BART
agree to commit to fully funding the Phase 1 Funding Plan as described in Attachments B-1 and
B-2.

The funding framework and assumptions for the Phase 2 Funding Plan, including BART and
MTC shares , will be reconfirmed in the next regional transportation plan, currently planned for
adoption in 2013.

A firm funding commitment for the Phase 2 Funding Plan should be established by 2015, in
advance of BART's anticipated exercise of the first contract option in 2017.

3



Table 1 . BART Car Replacement Project Preliminary Funding Plan
$ millions, escalated

Cost Estimate Proposed Approximate Funding Partici pation Proposed Approximate % Shares
No. of cars T2035 Curren` Reg ional BART Regional % BART %

Total Project 669 $2,697 $3 ,222 $2 , 416 $805 75% 25%

Phase 1 200 1,026 871 155 85% 15%

Phase 2 469 $2,196 $1545 $651 70% 30%

* Current cost estimate for Total project derived from BARTs current estimatefor 700 cars of $3,371 million by prorating (6691700).

4



ATTACHMENT B-1

PHASE 1 FUNDING PLAN ASSUMPTIONS

Background and Prior Actions
BART expects the first phase of the funding plan (PHASE I FUNDING PLAN) for the
PROJECT to pay for approximately 200 rail cars. BART currently estimates the escalated cost
of the PHASE 1 FUNDING PLAN for the PROJECT to be approximately $1 billion over the
period fiscal years 2008 through 2023.

Pursuant to MTC Resolution No. 3738, Revised, MTC has previously approved approximately
$90.7 million in Surface Transportation Program funds (STP) in Fiscal Years 2006, 2007, 2008
and 2009 which have been the subject of a fund exchange and placed in the BART Car
Replacement Funding Exchange Account to be used for the PROJECT.

Pursuant to MTC Resolution No. 3854, Revised, MTC has previously programmed
approximately $12.6 million in Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Fixed Guideway
Modernization Program funds for the PROJECT in FY 2009.

BART has previously provided $4.6 million in funding for pre-construction activities for the
PROJECT.

10-Year Regional Capital Improvement Program (CIP)
MTC will participate in the PHASE I FUNDING PLAN for the PROJECT by programming
funding in fiscal years 2011 through 2019.

In 2009, MTC completed a ten-year Regional Capital Improvement Program (CIP) for the period
FY2010 through 2019, including projections of Score 16 transit capital needs based on data from
the Regional Transit Capital Inventory and transit capital revenues based on the revenue
projections included in Transportation 2035.

The CIP identified Score 16 capped transit needs of $4.1 billion for all Bay Area transit
operators, and assumed $4.1 billion in federal formula transit and highway funds would be
available toward all Bay Area transit capital replacement and rehabilitation needs over the ten-
year period.

Phase 1 Funding Plan Assumptions
The CIP assumed approximately $730 Million in FTA formula funding toward the PHASE I
FUNDING PLAN between FY 2010 and FY 2019.

The PHASE I FUNDING PLAN assumes that any FTA programming not needed for direct
project expenditures in the year of programming will be exchanged for BART funds, which will
be deposited in the BART Car Replacement Funding Exchange Account (as with the STP funds).

The PHASE 1 FUNDING PLAN assumes that a combination of earnings credited to the BART
Car Replacement Funding Exchange Account and, if earnings are insufficient, additional



programming of STP or other funding sources will provide $50 million for the PHASE 1

FUNDING PLAN.

The PHASE 1 FUNDING PLAN assumes that state High Speed Rail Connectivity funds will be
available to BART to meet their $150 million contribution between FY 2011 and FY 2017.

2



ATTACHMENT B-2

PHASE 1 FUNDING PLAN FOR
BART CAR REPLACEMENT PROGRAM

$000

Funding Source Prior to FY10 FY10 - FY19 Total

MTC Funding
FTA Formula Programs 12,565 717,435 730,000

FHWA Regional Discretionary Programs* 90,726 50,274 141,000

Subtotal MTC Funding 103,291 767,709 871,000

BART Funding
BART High Speed Rail Funds 150,000 150,000

Other BART Funds 4,600 4,600

Subtotal BART Funding 4,600 150,000 154,600

Total Funding 107,891 917,709 1,025,600

* Funding from FHWA Regional Discretionary Programs includes BART funds deposited and
earnings credited to the BART Car Replacement Funding Exchange Account.

J:\SECTION\ALLSTAFF\Resolution\TEMP-RES\MTC\May PAC\tmp-3918.doc


	page 1
	page 2
	page 3
	page 4
	page 5
	page 6
	page 7
	page 8
	page 9
	page 10
	page 11
	page 12
	page 13
	page 14
	page 15
	page 16
	page 17
	page 18
	page 19
	page 20
	page 21
	page 22
	page 23
	page 24
	page 25
	page 26
	page 27
	page 28
	page 29
	page 30
	page 31
	page 32
	page 33
	page 34
	page 35
	page 36
	page 37
	page 38
	page 39
	page 40
	page 41
	page 42
	page 43
	page 44
	page 45
	page 46
	page 47




East Bay Paratransit Fare 


Increase Proposal


Public Hearing Presentation


April 22, 2010


1







Background


• East Bay Paratransit blended fare:  AC 


Transit flat fare plus BART distance 


based.


• East Bay Paratransit policy:  ADA 


maximum fare (two times regular adult 


fixed route fare)


• Origin to destination, including transfers


• Direct rides to/from SF in partnership with 


Muni
2







Background
• East Bay Paratransit cost/trip $50


• Current fare/trip $3 to $7


• Total annual cost $31.5M in FY 10


• Fare revenue $2.1M without increase


• Increase would bring $580,000


• BART share of costs and revenues:  31%


• Last EB Paratransit fare increase in 2005


3







Current and Proposed Fares


Current in East Bay


• $3.00 trips 0 to 8 miles


• $4.00 trips >8  to 12 miles


• $5.00 trips >12 to 20 


miles


• $6.00 trips >20 miles


Proposed in East Bay


• $4.00 trips 0 to 12 miles


• $6.00 for trips >12 to 20 


miles


• $7.00 for trips >20 miles


4







Current Fares
For service to / from San Francisco


• $6.00 for destinations up to the Civic 


Center BART station 


• $7.00 for destinations beyond the Civic 


Center BART station


• Trips beyond BART territory into Muni 


territory cost an addition $2 which is the 


Muni paratransit fare


5







Proposed One Way Fares to/from SF


Origin/Destination Zone


Travel Up 


to Civic 


Center 


BART


Travel 


Beyond 


Civic 


Center


Travel to 


Daly City


Zone 1:  Alameda, Berkeley, Emeryville, 


Piedmont, Oakland


$6 $7 $8


Zone 2:  Albany, Castro Valley, El 


Cerrito, El Sobrante, Kensington, Orinda, 


San Leandro San Lorenzo, Richmond, 


San Pablo
$7 $8 $9


Zone 3:  Fremont, Hayward, Hercules, 


Milpitas, Newark, Pleasanton, Pinole, 


Union City $8 $9 $10


Trips beyond BART territory also pay $2 


Muni Fare
6







Other Fare Modifications


• Charge twice the regular ADA paratransit


fare for groups trips, which are not an ADA 


required service


• Charge the regular fare for rider-fault no 


shows where the rider chooses not to take 


the trip and does not cancel in a timely 


fashion


7







Outreach


• Recorded message on the reservation line 


• Recorded message in Spanish and Chinese queues 


• Written materials were available in English, Spanish, and Chinese.  


• 300 letters were mailed to social service agencies, adult day 
programs, senior centers, dialysis centers, etc.


• Information on www.Eastbayparatransit.Org


• Information directly to local paratransit rider advisory committee 
members.


• Letters to all riders with standing orders 


• Letter included in ticket orders


• Newspaper notice of fare hearings


• All written notices were sent in Braille, audio tape, CD, or by email to 
riders requesting accessible formats.


8



http://www.eastbayparatransit.org/





Comments Taken


• Voice mail – a special voice message phone 


number was set up


• Email – a special email address was created


• Fax 


• Written comments


• Posted on website


• Summarized for Board


9







Next Steps


• AC Transit Public Hearing April 14


• BART Public Hearing April 22


• AC Transit Board Action May 12


• BART Board Action May 13


• If approved, new fares July 1, 2010


10








 


 
LEC FOF.DOC 


EXHIBIT A 


 


ENVIRONMENTAL FINDINGS 


 


The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (―BART‖) makes the following findings 


pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (―CEQA‖), Public Resources Code section 


21000 et seq., and the Guidelines implementing CEQA (―CEQA Guidelines‖) Code of 


Regulations, title 14, section 15000 et seq.  


 


1. The California Energy Commission (―CEC‖) is the lead agency for the Lodi Energy 


Center (―the Project‖) under CEQA. 


 


2. The CEC is a certified regulatory agency pursuant to CEQA section 21080.5 and CEQA 


Guidelines sections 15250 – 15253, and has adopted regulations for the implementation 


of CEQA.  The CEC’s guidelines for the implementation of CEQA are found in Title 20 


of the California Code of Regulations, sections 2300-2309. 


 


3. Consistent with its certified regulatory program, the CEC prepared the Presiding 


Member’s Proposed Decision (―PMPD‖) for the Project.  The PMPD is the equivalent of 


an environmental impact report (―EIR‖) pursuant to the CEC’s certified regulatory 


program. 


 


4. The CEC approved the PMPD for the Project on April 21, 2010.  The PMPD concludes 


the Project will, as mitigated through implementation of Conditions of Certification, have 


no significant impacts on the environment and complies with all applicable laws, 


ordinances, regulations, and standards (―LORS‖). 


 


5. BART, acting as a responsible agency for the Project under CEQA, has exercised its 


independent judgment and  reviewed the information contained in the PMPD prepared for 


the Project. 


 


6. BART finds that the PMPD and the CEC’s process satisfy all of the conditions of CEQA 


Guidelines section 15253 that would allow BART to use and rely upon the PMPD as the 


appropriate CEQA documentation for BART’s approvals.  Specifically, BART finds that: 


 


a. The CEC is the first to grant a discretionary approval for the Project. 


 


b. The CEC provided  BART the opportunity to consult with the CEC and to 


comment on the PMPD. 


 


c. The PMPD considers both the significant environmental impacts of the Project 


that are within the jurisdiction of  BART, if any, and considers alternatives to the 


Project. 


 


d. The CEC exercised its powers as lead agency by considering all of the 


environmental impacts of the Project and made the appropriate findings pursuant 


to CEQA Guidelines section 15091 for each significant impact of the Project. 







 


2 
LEC FOF.DOC 


7. Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines 15096 subdivision (f), BART has considered the PMPD 


and the environmental impacts of the Project described in the PMPD.  Based on the 


Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Conditions of Certification, included herewith 


and incorporated herein by this reference, BART concludes that, as conditioned, the 


Project will not have any significant adverse effects on the environment.  Thus, pursuant 


to CEQA Guidelines 15096 subdivision (g), BART finds that there are no alternatives or 


mitigation measures within the powers of BART to adopt that would substantially reduce 


or avoid any significant environmental impact of the Project. 


 


8. Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines 15096 subdivision (h), BART is required to make findings 


pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15091 for each significant impact of the Project.  


BART has considered the PMPD, the description of the Project’s environmental impacts 


contained therein, the findings of fact and conclusions of law contained therein, and the 


conditions of certification contained therein, and, exercising its independent judgment, 


BART finds the following: 


 


a. For all environmental impacts of the Project, changes or alterations have been 


required in, or incorporated into, the Project which will avoid or substantially 


lessen the significant environmental effects as identified in the PMPD. 


 


b. These findings are supported by substantial evidence in the record. 


 


c. The conditions of certification imposed on the Project by the CEC are within the 


authority of the CEC and will be monitored and enforced by the CEC. 


 


10.  That approval of both the Power Sales Agreement and Project Management and 


Operation Agreement, providing for the financing, construction and operation of the 


Project has no impacts on the environment not addressed within the PMPD. 







 


3 
LEC FOF.DOC 


LODI ENERGY CENTER 


FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND 


CONDITIONS OF CERTIFICATION 


 


V.  PUBLIC HEALTH AND SAFETY 


A.  Greenhouse Gas Emissions 


Findings 


1. The GHG emissions from the LEC Project construction are likely to be 


40,654 MTCO2 equivalent (―MTCO2E‖) during the 24-month construction 


period. 


2. There is no numerical threshold of significance under CEQA for 


construction-related GHG emissions. 


3. LEC will use best practices to control its construction-related GHG 


emissions. 


4. Construction-related GHG emissions are less than significant if they are 


controlled with best practices. 


5. State government has a responsibility to ensure a reliable electricity 


supply, consistent with environmental, economic, and health and safety 


goals. 


6. California utilities are obligated to meet whatever demand exists from any 


and all customers. 


7. Under SB 1368 and implementing regulations, California’s electric utilities 


may not enter into long-term commitments with base load power plants 


with CO2 emissions that exceed the Emissions Performance Standard 


(―EPS‖) of 0.500 MTCO2 / MWh. 


8. The maximum annual CO2 emissions from LEC’s operation will be 


936,000 MTCO2, which constitutes an emissions performance factor of 


0.36 MTCO2 / MWh. 


9. The SB 1368 EPS is the only LORS applicable to LEC’s GHG emissions. 


10. AB 32 requires CARB to adopt regulations that will reduce statewide GHG 


emissions, by the year 2020, to the 1990 level. Executive Order S-3-05 


requires a further reduction, by the year 2050, to 80 percent below the 


1990 level. 


11. The California Renewable Portfolio Standard (RPS) requires the state’s 


electric utilities obtain at least 20 percent of the power supplies from 


renewable sources by the year 2020, and recent gubernatorial Executive 


Orders increase the requirement to 33 percent. 


12. California’s power supply loading order requires California utilities to 


obtain their power first from the implementation of all feasible and costeffective 


energy efficiency and demand response, then from renewables 


and distributed generation, and finally from efficient fossil-fired generation 







 


4 
LEC FOF.DOC 


and infrastructure improvement. 


13. Even as more renewables generation is added to the California electricity 


system, gas-fired power plants such as LEC will be necessary to meet 


local capacity requirements and to provide intermittent generation support, 


grid operations support, extreme load and system emergencies support, 


and general energy support. 


14. There is no evidence in the record that construction or operation of LEC 


will be inconsistent with the loading order. 


15. LEC will have a heat rate of approximately 6,824 Btu/kWh. 


16. LEC will be more efficient, and emit fewer GHG emissions during any hour 


of operation than any other new and existing units in San Joaquin County 


and Stanislaus County. 


17. LEC will displace generation from less-efficient (i.e., higher-heat-rate and 


therefore higher-GHG-emitting) power plants. 


18. LEC will probably replace power from coal-fired power plants that will be 


unable to contract with California utilities under the SB 1368 EPS, and 


power plants that must be retired because they currently use once-through 


cooling. 


19. LEC operation will reduce overall GHG emissions from the electricity 


system. 


20. Intermittent solar and wind generation will account for most of the 


installation of renewables in the next few decades. 


21. Intermittent generation needs support from dispatchable generation, such 


as LEC, in order to be integrated effectively into the electricity system. 


22. LEC operation will support the addition of renewable generation into the 


electricity system, which will further reduce system GHG emissions. 


23. The addition of some efficient, dispatchable, natural-gas-fired generation 


will be necessary to integrate renewables into California’s electricity 


system and meet the state’s renewable portfolio and GHG goals, but the 


need for it is limited and will decrease as technology advances make 


round-the-clock availability of renewables generation feasible. 


 


Conclusions 


1. The GHG emissions from a power plant’s operation should be assessed in 


the context of the operation of the entire electricity system of which the 


plant is an integrated part. 


2. LEC’s construction-related GHG emissions will not cause a significant 


adverse environmental impact. 


3. LEC’s operational GHG emissions will not cause a significant adverse 


environmental impact. 


4. LEC’s GHG emissions will meet or exceed the SB 1368 EPS. 


5. LEC’s operation will help California utilities meet their renewable portfolio 


obligations. 


6. LEC’s construction and operation will be consistent with California’s 


loading order for power supplies. 







 


5 
LEC FOF.DOC 


7. LEC’s operation will foster the achievement of the GHG goals of AB 32 


and Executive Order S-3-05. 


8. The GHG emissions of any power plant must be assessed within the 


system on a case-by-case basis. 


9. Any new natural-gas-fired power plant that we certify must: 


• not increase the overall system heat rate for natural gas plants; 


• not interfere with generation from existing renewables or with the 


integration of new renewable generation; and 


• have the ability to reduce system-wide GHG emissions. 


 


B.  Air Quality 


Findings 


Based on the evidence, we find as follows: 


1. The LEC Project is located within the jurisdiction of the San Joaquin Valley 


Air Pollution Control District. 


2. The LEC would include a stationary natural-gas fired CTG (Siemens ―Flex 


Plant 30) with rapid startup technology, in a combined-cycle configuration 


with a HRSG that does not use duct firing; along with an STG and a 


36.5 MMBtu/hr capacity natural gas-fired auxiliary boiler with ultra low NOx 


burners for maintaining heat in the steam generator and steam turbine. 


3. The LEC’s CTG is nominally rated at 200.8 MW at a heat input capacity of 


2,142 MMBtu/hr, in a combined-cycle configuration with the HRSG’s 


condensing steam turbine generator (STG) nominally rated at 95 MW. 


4. The LEC and STIG will share the 12,000-gallon storage tank and unloading 


facilities for anhydrous ammonia; the 230-kilovolt (kV) switchyard and 


interconnect; the fire systems, including fire water storage tanks and dieselfired 


emergency fire pump engine which will contribute to emissions 


reductions for the LEC Project. 


5. Construction of the LEC is expected to take about 24 months. 


6. The project’s construction-related impacts are temporary and short-term in 


nature. 


7. The project’s construction-related impacts are mitigated to below a level of 


significance by measures identified in the Conditions of Certification AQ-SC1 


through AQ-SC5. 


8. The District is classified as non-attainment for the state 1-hour and federal 8- 


hour ozone standards, the state PM10, standards and the state and federal 


PM2.5 standards. The District meets applicable standards for all other 


criteria pollutants. 


9. The project will employ the best available technology (BACT) to control 


emissions of criteria pollutants. 


10. Project nonattainment and nonattainment precursor criteria pollutant 


emissions will be fully offset. 


11. The limit set by the SJVAPCD is adequate mitigation for ammonia slip. 


12. Use of emission reduction credits in this case is appropriate, and is 







 


6 
LEC FOF.DOC 


consistent with applicable federal and state emission control strategies. 


13. The proposed emission offset package contained in Condition of Certification 


AQ-SC7, along with the proposed emissions controls, will mitigate all project 


air quality impacts to a less than significant level. 


14. The District issued a Final Determination of Compliance that finds the LEC 


Project will comply with all applicable District rules for project operation. 


15. The record contains an adequate analysis of the project’s contributions to 


cumulative air quality impacts. 


16. The project’s offset package complies with Public Resources Code, Section 


25523(d)(2). 


 


Conclusions 


1. The mitigation measures imposed are sufficient to ensure that the LEC 


Project will conform with all applicable laws, ordinances, regulations, and 


standards relating to air quality. 


2. Implementation of the Conditions of Certification listed below ensures that 


the LEC Project will not result in any significant direct, indirect, or cumulative 


impacts to air quality. 


 


Conditions of Certification 


AQ-SC1 Air Quality Construction Mitigation Manager (AQCMM): The project 


owner shall designate and retain an on-site AQCMM who shall be 


responsible for directing and documenting compliance with 


Conditions AQ-SC3, AQ-SC4 and AQ-SC5 for the entire project site 


and linear facility construction. The on-site AQCMM may delegate 


responsibilities to one or more AQCMM delegates. The AQCMM and 


AQCMM delegates shall have full access to all areas of construction 


on the project site and linear facilities, and shall have the authority to 


stop any or all construction activities as warranted by applicable 


construction mitigation Conditions. The AQCMM and AQCMM 


delegates may have other responsibilities in addition to those 


described in this Condition. The AQCMM shall not be terminated 


without written consent of the construction project manager (CPM). 


Verification: At least 60 days prior to the start of ground disturbance, the 


project owner shall submit to the CPM for approval the name, resume, 


qualifications, and contact information for the on-site AQCMM and all AQCMM 


delegates. The AQCMM and all delegates must be approved by the CPM before 


the start of ground disturbance. 


AQ-SC2 Air Quality Construction Mitigation Plan (AQCMP): The project owner 


shall provide, for approval, an AQCMP that details the steps to be 


taken and the reporting requirements necessary to ensure 


compliance with Conditions of Certification AQ-SC3, AQ-SC4 and 


AQ-SC5. 







 


7 
LEC FOF.DOC 


Verification: At least 60 days prior to the start of any ground disturbance, the 


project owner shall submit the AQCMP to the CPM for approval. The CPM will 


notify the project owner of any necessary modifications to the plan within 30 days 


from the date of receipt. The AQCMP must be approved by the CPM before the 


start of ground disturbance. 


AQ-SC3 Construction Fugitive Dust Control: The AQCMM shall submit 


documentation to the CPM in each monthly compliance report (MCR) 


that demonstrates compliance with the following mitigation measures 


for purposes of preventing all fugitive dust plumes from leaving the 


project site and linear facility routes. Any deviation from the following 


mitigation measures shall require prior CPM notification and 


approval. 


A. All unpaved roads and disturbed areas in the project and linear 


construction sites shall be watered as frequently as necessary to 


comply with the dust mitigation objectives of AQ-SC4. The 


frequency of watering may be either reduced or eliminated during 


periods of precipitation. 


B. No vehicle shall exceed 15 miles per hour within the construction 


site. 


C. Visible speed limit signs shall be posted at the construction site 


entrances. 


D. All construction equipment vehicle tires shall be inspected and 


washed as necessary to be free of dirt prior to entering paved 


roadways. 


E. Gravel ramps of at least 20 feet in length must be provided at the 


tire washing/cleaning station. 


F. All unpaved exits from the construction site shall be graveled or 


treated to prevent track-out to public roadways. 


G. All construction vehicles shall enter the construction site through 


the treated entrance roadways unless an alternative route has 


been submitted to and approved by the CPM. 


H. Construction areas adjacent to any paved roadway shall be 


provided with sandbags or other equivalently effective measures 


as specified in the Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan 


(SWPPP) to prevent run-off to roadways. 


I. All paved roads within the construction site shall be swept at least 


twice daily (or less during periods of precipitation) on days when 


construction activity occurs to prevent the accumulation of dirt and 


debris. 


J. At least the first 500 feet of any public roadway exiting from the 


construction site shall be swept at least twice daily (or less during 


periods of precipitation) on days when construction activity occurs 


or on any other day when dirt or run-off from the construction site 


is visible on the public roadways. 


K. All soil storage piles and disturbed areas that remain inactive for 


longer than 10 days shall be covered or treated with appropriate 







 


8 
LEC FOF.DOC 


dust suppressant compounds. 


L. All vehicles that are used to transport solid bulk material on public 


roadways and that have the potential to cause visible emissions 


shall be provided with a cover, or the materials shall be sufficiently 


wetted and loaded onto the trucks to provide at least two feet of 


freeboard. 


M. Wind erosion control techniques (such as windbreaks, water, 


chemical dust suppressants, and/or vegetation) shall be used on 


all construction areas that may be disturbed. Any windbreaks 


installed to comply with this Condition shall remain in place until 


the soil is stabilized or permanently covered with vegetation. 


Verification: The project owner shall include in the MCR: (1) a summary of 


all actions taken to maintain compliance with this Condition; (2) copies of any 


complaints filed with the air district in relation to project construction; and (3) any 


other documentation deemed necessary by the CPM and AQCMM to verify 


compliance with this Condition. Such information may be provided via electronic 


format or disk at the project owner’s discretion. 


AQ-SC4 Dust Plume Response Requirement: The AQCMM or an AQCMM 


delegate shall monitor all construction activities for visible dust 


plumes. Observations of visible dust plumes with the potential to be 


transported off the project site, 200 feet beyond the centerline of the 


construction of linear facilities, or within 100 feet upwind of any 


regularly occupied structures not owned by the project owner indicate 


that existing mitigation measures are not providing effective 


mitigation. The AQCMM or delegate shall then implement the 


following procedures for additional mitigation measures in the event 


that such visible dust plumes are observed. 


Step 1: The AQCMM or delegate shall direct more intensive 


application of the existing mitigation methods within 15 minutes of 


making such a determination. 


Step 2: The AQCMM or delegate shall direct implementation of 


additional methods of dust suppression if Step 1 specified above fails 


to result in adequate mitigation within 30 minutes of the original 


determination. 


Step 3: The AQCMM or delegate shall direct a temporary shutdown of 


the activity causing the emissions if Step 2 specified above fails to 


result in effective mitigation within one hour of the original 


determination. The activity shall not restart until the AQCMM or 


delegate is satisfied that appropriate additional mitigation or other site 


conditions have changed so that visual dust plumes will not result 


upon restarting the shutdown source. The owner/operator may 


appeal to the CPM any directive from the AQCMM or delegate to shut 


down an activity, provided that the shutdown shall go into effect within 


one hour of the original determination, unless overruled by the CPM 


before that time. 


Verification: The AQCMP shall include a section detailing how additional 







 


9 
LEC FOF.DOC 


mitigation measures will be accomplished within specified time limits. 


AQ-SC5 Diesel-Fueled Engine Control: The AQCMM shall submit to the CPM, 


in the MCR, a construction mitigation report that demonstrates 


compliance with the following mitigation measures for purposes of 


controlling diesel construction-related emissions. Any deviation from 


the following mitigation measures shall require prior CPM notification 


and approval. 


A. All diesel-fueled engines used in the construction of the facility 


shall have clearly visible tags issued by the on-site AQCMM 


showing that the engine meets the Conditions set forth herein. 


B. All construction diesel engines with a rating of 50 hp or higher shall 


meet, at a minimum, the Tier 3 California Emission Standards for 


Off-Road Compression-Ignition Engines, as specified in California 


Code of Regulations, Title 13, section 2423(b)(1), unless a good 


faith effort that is certified by the on-site AQCMM demonstrates 


that such engine is not available for a particular item of equipment. 


This good faith effort shall be documented with signed written 


correspondence by the appropriate construction contractors along 


with documented correspondence with at least two construction 


equipment rental firms. In the event that a Tier 3 engine is not 


available for any off-road equipment larger than 50 hp, that 


equipment shall be equipped with a Tier 2 engine or an engine that 


is equipped with retrofit controls to reduce exhaust emissions of 


nitrogen oxides (NOx) and diesel particulate matter (DPM) to no 


more than Tier 2 levels unless certified by engine manufacturers or 


the on-site AQCMM that the use of such devices is not practical for 


specific engine types. For purposes of this Condition, the use of 


such devices is ―not practical‖ for the following, as well as other, 


reasons. 


1. There is no available retrofit control device that has been 


verified by either the California Air Resources Board or U.S. 


Environmental Protection Agency to control the engine in 


question to Tier 2 equivalent emission levels and either a Tier 1 


engine or the highest level of available control is being used; or 


2. The construction equipment is intended to be on site for five 


days or less. 


3. The CPM may grant relief from this requirement if the AQCMM 


can demonstrate a good faith effort to comply with this 


requirement and that compliance is not possible; 


4. Equipment owned by specialty subcontractors may be granted 


an exemption, for single equipment items on a case-by-case 


basis, if it can be demonstrated that extreme financial hardship 


would occur if the specialty subcontractor had to rent 


replacement equipment, or if it can be demonstrated that a 


specialized equipment item is not available by rental. 


C. The use of a retrofit control device may be terminated immediately, 







 


10 
LEC FOF.DOC 


provided that the CPM is informed within 10 working days of the 


termination and the AQCMM demonstrates that one of the 


following conditions exists: 


1. The use of the control device is excessively reducing the 


normal availability of the construction equipment due to 


increased down time for maintenance, and/or reduced power 


output due to an excessive increase in back pressure. 


2. The control device is causing or is reasonably expected to 


cause significant engine damage. 


3. The control device is causing or is reasonably expected to 


cause a significant risk to workers or the public. 


4. Any other seriously detrimental cause which has the approval 


of the CPM prior to implementation of the termination. 


D. All heavy earth-moving equipment and heavy duty constructionrelated 


trucks with engines meeting the requirements of (b) above 


shall be properly maintained and the engines tuned to the engine 


manufacturer’s specifications. 


E. All diesel heavy construction equipment shall not idle for more 


than five minutes, to the extent practical. 


F. Construction equipment will employ electric motors when feasible. 


Verification: The project owner shall include in the MCR: (1) a summary of 


all actions taken to maintain compliance with this Condition; (2) a list of all heavy 


equipment used on site during that month, including the owner of that equipment 


and a letter from each owner indicating that the equipment has been properly 


maintained; and (3) any other documentation deemed necessary by the CPM 


and AQCMM to verify compliance with this Condition. Such information may be 


provided via electronic format or disk at the project owner’s discretion. 


AQ-SC6 The project owner shall submit to the CPM for review and approval 


any modification proposed by the project owner to any project air 


permit. The project owner shall submit to the CPM any modification 


to any permit proposed by the District or U.S. EPA, and any revised 


permit issued by the District or U.S. EPA, for the project. 


Verification: The project owner shall submit any proposed air permit 


modification to the CPM within five working days of its submittal either by: 1) the 


project owner to an agency, or 2) receipt of proposed modifications from an 


agency. The project owner shall submit all modified air permits to the CPM 


within 15 days of receipt. 


AQ-SC7 The project owner shall provide emission reductions in the form of 


offsets or emission reduction credits (ERCs) in the quantities of at 


least 152,655 lb NOx, 33,619 lb VOC, 88,124 lb PM10, and 53,852 lb 


SOx emissions. The project owner shall demonstrate that the 


reductions are provided in the form required by the District. 


The project owner shall surrender the ERCs from among those that 


are listed in the District Final Determination of Compliance Conditions 


(SJVAPCD2010a) or a modified list, as allowed by this condition. If 


additional ERCs are submitted, the project owner shall submit an 







 


11 
LEC FOF.DOC 


updated table including the additional ERCs to the CPM. The project 


owner shall request CPM approval for any substitutions, 


modifications, or additions to the listed credits. 


The CPM, in consultation with the District, may approve any such 


change to the ERC list provided that the project remains in 


compliance with all applicable laws, ordinances, regulations, and 


standards, and that the requested change(s) will not cause the project 


to result in a significant environmental impact. The District must also 


confirm that each requested change is consistent with applicable 


federal and state laws and regulations. 


Verification: The project owner shall submit to the CPM records showing that 


the project’s offset requirements have been met prior to initiating construction. If 


the CPM approves a substitution or modification to the list of ERCs, the CPM 


shall file a statement of the approval with the project owner and Commission 


docket. The CPM shall maintain an updated list of approved ERCs for the 


project. 


AQ-SC8 The project owner shall submit to the CPM quarterly operation 


reports that include operational and emissions information as 


necessary to demonstrate compliance with the Conditions of 


Certification. The quarterly operation report shall specifically note or 


highlight incidences of noncompliance. 


Verification: The project owner shall submit quarterly operation reports to the 


CPM and APCO no later than 30 days following the end of each calendar 


quarter. This information shall be maintained on site for a minimum of five years 


and shall be provided to the CPM and District personnel upon request. 


 


C.  Public Health 


Findings 


Based on the persuasive weight of the evidence, the Commission makes the 


following findings and conclusions: 


1. Construction and normal operation of the project will result in the routine 


release of criteria and noncriteria pollutants that have the potential to 


adversely impact public health. 


2. Potential construction-related adverse health effects from diesel emissions 


and fugitive dust will be mitigated to insignificant levels. 


3. Emissions of criteria pollutants, which are discussed in the AIR QUALITY 


section of this Decision, will be mitigated to levels consistent with applicable 


standards. 


4. Applicant performed a health risk assessment, using well-established 


scientific protocol, to analyze potential adverse health effects of toxic air 


contaminants. 


5. The accepted method used by state regulatory agencies in assessing the 


significance for both acute and chronic noncarcinogenic public health effects 


is known as the hazard index method. A similar method is used for 







 


12 
LEC FOF.DOC 


assessing the significance of potential carcinogenic effects. 


6. Application of the hazard index method establishes that emission of noncriteria 


pollutants from the LEC Project will not cause acute or chronic 


adverse public health effects. 


7. The maximum non-cancer and the maximum cancer risks associated with 


the project are substantially below the significance thresholds commonly 


accepted for risk analysis purposes. 


8. Cumulative impacts from noncriteria pollutants were analyzed in accordance 


with the provisions of CEQA. Impacts from the LEC Project’s emissions of 


these pollutants are not expected to be significant. 


9. Emissions from the construction and operation of the proposed natural gasburning 


LEC Project will not have a significant adverse impact on the public 


health of the surrounding population. 


 


Conclusions 


1. Project emissions do not pose a significant direct, indirect, or cumulative 


adverse public health risk. 


2. The project will comply with the applicable laws, ordinances, regulations, and 


standards specified in the appropriate portion of Appendix A of this Decision. 


 


No Conditions of Certification are adopted in connection with this section of the 


Decision. 


 


D.  Worker Safety/Fire Protection 


Findings 


Based on the uncontroverted evidence, the Commission makes the following 


findings: 


1. Industrial workers are exposed to potential health and safety hazards on a 


daily basis. 


2. To protect workers from job-related injuries and illnesses, the project 


owner will implement comprehensive Safety and Health Programs for both 


the construction and the operation phases of the project. 


3. The project will employ an on-site professional Safety Monitor during 


construction and operation. 


4. The LEC Project will include on-site fire protection and suppression 


systems as the first line of defense in the event of a fire. 


5. The Woodbridge Fire Protection District (WFPD) will provide fire protection 


and emergency response services to the project. 


6. Existing fire and emergency service resources are adequate to meet 


project needs. 


 







 


13 
LEC FOF.DOC 


Conclusions 


1. We therefore conclude that the LEC Project will not create significant 


health and safety impacts to workers, and will comply with all applicable 


laws, ordinances, regulations, and standards listed in the appropriate 


portion of Appendix A of this Decision. 


 


Conditions of Certification 


WORKER SAFETY-1 The project owner shall submit to the Compliance Project 


Manager (CPM) a copy of the Project Construction Safety and Health 


Program containing the following: 


• A Construction Personal Protective Equipment Program; 


• A Construction Exposure Monitoring Program; 


• A Construction Injury and Illness Prevention Program; 


• A Construction Emergency Action Plan; and 


• A Construction Fire Prevention Plan. 


The Personal Protective Equipment Program, the Exposure Monitoring 


Program, and the Injury and Illness Prevention Program shall be 


submitted to the CPM for review and approval concerning compliance 


of the program with all applicable safety orders. The Construction 


Emergency Action Plan and the Fire Prevention Plan shall be 


submitted to the Woodbridge Fire Protection District for review and 


comment prior to submittal to the CPM for approval. If no comments 


are received from the Woodbridge Fire Protection District, or the CPM 


within 30 days of submittal, the project owner may proceed with 


preparation of final documents. 


Verification: At least 30 days prior to the start of construction, the project 


owner shall submit to the CPM for review and approval a copy of the Project 


Construction Safety and Health Program. The project owner shall provide a copy 


of a letter to the CPM from the Woodbridge Fire Protection District stating the fire 


department’s comments on the Construction Fire Prevention Plan and 


Emergency Action Plan. The CPM shall approve the final Project Construction 


Safety and Health Program within thirty (30) days of submission. 


WORKER SAFETY-2 The project owner shall submit to the CPM a copy of the 


Project Operations and Maintenance Safety and Health Program 


containing the following: 


• An Operation Injury and Illness Prevention Plan; 


• An Emergency Action Plan; 


• Hazardous Materials Management Program; 


• Fire Prevention Plan (8 Cal Code Regs., § 3221); and 


• Personal Protective Equipment Program (8 Cal Code Regs., 


§§ 3401-3411). 


The Operation Injury and Illness Prevention Plan, Emergency Action 


Plan, and Personal Protective Equipment Program shall be submitted 


to the CPM for review and comment concerning compliance of the 







 


14 
LEC FOF.DOC 


programs with all applicable safety orders. The Fire Prevention Plan 


and the Emergency Action Plan shall also be submitted to the 


Woodbridge Fire Protection District for review and comment. If no 


comments are received from the Woodbridge Fire Protection District, 


or the CPM within 30 days of submittal, the project owner may proceed 


with preparation of final documents. 


Verification: At least 30 days prior to the start of first-fire or commissioning, the 


project owner shall submit to the CPM for approval a copy of the Project 


Operations and Maintenance Safety and Health Program. The project owner 


shall provide a copy of a letter to the CPM from the Woodbridge Fire Protection 


District stating the fire department’s comments on the Operations Fire Prevention 


Plan and Emergency Action Plan. The CPM shall approve the final Project 


Construction Safety and Health Program within thirty (30) days of submission. 


WORKER SAFETY-3 The project owner shall provide a site Construction 


Safety Supervisor (CSS) who, by way of training and/or experience, is 


knowledgeable of power plant construction activities and relevant laws, 


ordinances, regulations, and standards; is capable of identifying 


workplace hazards relating to the construction activities; and has 


authority to take appropriate action to assure compliance and mitigate 


hazards. The CSS shall: 


• Have overall authority for coordination and implementation of all 


occupational safety and health practices, policies, and programs; 


• Assure that the safety program for the project complies with 


Cal/OSHA and federal regulations related to power plant projects; 


• Assure that all construction and commissioning workers and 


supervisors receive adequate safety training; 


• Complete accident and safety-related incident investigations and 


emergency response reports for injuries and inform the CPM of 


safety-related incidents; and 


• Assure that all the plans identified in Conditions of Certification 


WORKER SAFETY-1 and -2 are implemented. 


Verification: At least 30 days prior to the start of site mobilization, the project 


owner shall submit to the CPM the name and contact information for the 


Construction Safety Supervisor (CSS). The contact information of any 


replacement CSS shall be submitted to the CPM within one business day. 


The CSS shall submit in the Monthly Compliance Report a monthly safety 


inspection report which includes: 


• a record of all employees trained for that month (all records shall be 


kept on site for the duration of the project); 


• a summary report of safety management actions and safety-related 


incidents that occurred during the month; 


• a report of any continuing or unresolved situations and incidents that 


may pose danger to life or health; and 


• a report of accidents and injuries that occurred during the month. 


WORKER SAFETY-4 The project owner shall make payments to the Chief 


Building Official (CBO) for the services of a Safety Monitor based upon 







 


15 
LEC FOF.DOC 


a reasonable fee schedule negotiated between the project owner and 


the CBO. Those services shall be in addition to other work performed 


by the CBO. The Safety Monitor shall be selected by, and report 


directly to, the CBO and will be responsible for verifying that the 


Construction Safety Supervisor, as required in Condition of 


Certification WORKER SAFETY-3, implements all appropriate 


Cal/OSHA and Energy Commission safety requirements. The Safety 


Monitor shall conduct on-site (including linear facilities) safety 


inspections at intervals necessary to fulfill those responsibilities. 


Verification: Prior to the start of construction, the project owner shall provide 


proof of its agreement to fund the Safety Monitor services to the CPM for review 


and approval. 


WORKER SAFETY-5 The project owner shall identify and provide a second 


access point for emergency personnel to enter the site. This access 


shall enter from the northeast portion of the site. The method of gate 


operation shall be submitted to the Woodbridge Fire Protection District 


for review and comment and to the CPM for review and approval. 


Verification: At least 30 days prior to the start of site mobilization, the project 


owner shall submit to the CPM for review and approval: a letter and plot-plan 


stating and showing that a second access point (gate) will be maintained during 


construction, commissioning, and operations; and a letter from the Woodbridge 


Fire Protection District with comments on the operation of the second access 


point or a statement that no comments were received. 


 


E.  Hazardous Materials Management 


Findings 


Based on the uncontested evidence , we make the following findings: 


1. The Lodi Energy Center Project will use hazardous materials during 


construction and operation, including anhydrous ammonia and natural gas. 


2. The major public health and safety dangers associated with these hazardous 


materials include the accidental release of anhydrous ammonia as well as fire 


and explosion from natural gas. 


3. Staff’s independent analysis indicates that appropriate design measures to 


contain spilled ammonia are necessary to ensure that no significant off-site 


public health consequences will result from an accidental release. 


4. Compliance with appropriate engineering and regulatory requirements for 


safe transportation, delivery, handling, and storage of anhydrous ammonia 


will reduce potential risks of accidental release to insignificant levels. 


5. The risk of fire and explosion from natural gas will be reduced to insignificant 


levels through adherence to applicable codes and the implementation of 


effective safety management practices. 


6. Potential impacts from the other hazardous substances used on-site are not 


significant since quantities will be limited and appropriate storage will be 


maintained in accordance with applicable law. 







 


16 
LEC FOF.DOC 


7. The project owner will ensure that truck deliveries of anhydrous ammonia are 


restricted to the delivery routes specified in Condition of Certification HAZ-4, 


below. 


8. The likelihood of cumulative impacts originating from simultaneous releases 


of hazardous materials from the LEC Project and nearby facilities is 


statistically remote and considered insignificant. 


9. Local emergency responders are adequately equipped and trained to deal 


with hazardous materials accidents at the LEC Project. 


10. Implementation of the mitigation measures described in the evidence and 


contained in the Conditions of Certification, below, ensures that the project 


will not cause significant impacts to public health and safety as the result of 


handling, use, storage, or transportation of hazardous materials. 


11. With implementation of the Conditions of Certification, below, the LEC Project 


will comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, regulations, and standards 


related to hazardous materials management as identified in the evidentiary 


record and in the pertinent portion of Appendix A of this Decision. 


 


Conclusions 


The Commission concludes, therefore, that the storage, use, and transportation 


of hazardous materials associated with the Lodi Energy Center Project will not 


result in any significant direct or cumulative adverse public health and safety 


impacts. 


 


Conditions of Certification 


HAZ-1 The project owner shall not use any hazardous materials not listed in 


ATTACHMENT A, below, or in greater quantities or strengths than 


those identified by chemical name in ATTACHMENT A, below, unless 


approved in advance by the Compliance Project Manager (CPM). 


Verification: The project owner shall provide to the CPM, in the Annual 


Compliance Report, a list of hazardous materials contained at the facility. 


HAZ-2 The project owner shall develop and implement a Safety Management 


Plan for delivery of anhydrous ammonia and other liquid hazardous 


materials by tanker truck. The plan shall include procedures, 


protective equipment requirements, training, and a checklist. It shall 


also include a section describing all measures to be implemented to 


prevent mixing of incompatible hazardous materials including 


provisions to maintain lockout control by a power plant employee not 


involved in the delivery or transfer operation. This plan shall be 


applicable during construction, commissioning, and operation of the 


power plant. 


Verification: At least 30 days prior to the delivery of any liquid hazardous 


material to the facility, the project owner shall provide a Safety Management Plan 


as described above to the CPM for review and approval. 







 


17 
LEC FOF.DOC 


HAZ-3 The project owner shall direct all vendors delivering anhydrous 


ammonia to the site to use only tanker truck transport vehicles which 


meet or exceed the specifications of DOT Code MC-330 or 331. 


Verification: At least 30 days prior to LEC commissioning, the project owner 


shall submit copies of the notification letter to supply vendors indicating the 


transport vehicle specifications to the CPM for review and approval. 


HAZ-4 The project owner shall direct all vendors delivering any hazardous 


material to the site to use only one of the two routes approved by the 


CPM: (I-5 to North Thornton Road to Frontage Road to North Cord 


Road to the project site, (if coming from the north); or exit at West 


Eight Mile Road and then travel on North Thornton Road to Frontage 


Road to North Cord Road to the project site if coming from the south). 


The project owner shall obtain approval of the CPM if an alternate 


route is desired. 


Verification: At least 60 days prior to LEC commissioning, the project owner 


shall submit copies of the required transportation route limitation direction to the 


CPM for review and approval. 


HAZ-5 Prior to commencing construction, a site-specific Construction Site 


Security Plan for the construction phase shall be prepared and made 


available to the CPM for review and approval. The Construction 


Security Plan shall include the following: 


1. Perimeter security consisting of fencing enclosing the construction 


area; 


2. Security guards; 


3. Site access control consisting of a check-in procedure or tag 


system for construction personnel and visitors; 


4. Written standard procedures for employees, contractors, and 


vendors when encountering suspicious objects or packages on-site 


or off -site; 


5. Protocol for contacting law enforcement and the CPM in the event 


of suspicious activity or emergency; and 


6. Evacuation procedures. 


Verification: At least 30 days prior to commencing construction, the project 


owner shall notify the CPM that a site-specific Construction Security Plan is 


available for review and approval. The CPM shall review and, if acceptable, 


approve the Construction Security Plan within 30 days of submission. 


HAZ-6 The project owner shall prepare a site-specific security plan for the 


commissioning and operational phases that shall be available to the 


CPM for review and approval. The project owner shall implement site 


security measures that address physical site security and hazardous 


materials storage. The level of security implemented shall not be less 


than that which presently exists at the STIG site and shall include any 


additional measures not in existence as described below: 


The Operation Security Plan shall include the following: 


1. Permanent full perimeter fence or wall, at least eight feet high; 


2. Main entrance security gate, either hand operated or motorized; 







 


18 
LEC FOF.DOC 


3. Evacuation procedures; 


4. Protocol for contacting law enforcement and the CPM in the event 


of suspicious activity or emergency; 


5. Written standard procedures for employees, contractors, and 


vendors when encountering suspicious objects or packages onsite 


or off-site; 


6. A. A statement (refer to sample, ATTACHMENT B), signed by the 


project owner certifying that background investigations have 


been conducted on all project personnel. Background 


investigations shall be restricted to determine the accuracy of 


employee identity and employment history and shall be 


conducted in accordance with state and federal laws regarding 


security and privacy; 


B. A statement(s) (refer to sample, ATTACHMENT C), signed by 


the contractor or authorized representative(s) for any 


permanent contractors or other technical contractors (as 


determined by the CPM after consultation with the project 


owner), that are present at any time on the site to repair, 


maintain, investigate, or conduct any other technical duties 


involving critical components (as determined by the CPM after 


consultation with the project owner) certifying that background 


investigations have been conducted on contractors who visit 


the project site; 


7. Site access controls for employees, contractors, vendors, and 


visitors; 


8. A statement(s) (refer to sample, ATTACHMENT D), signed by the 


owners or authorized representative of hazardous materials 


transport vendors, certifying that they have prepared and 


implemented security plans in compliance with 49 CFR 172.880, 


and that they have conducted employee background investigations 


in accordance with 49 CFR Part 1572, subparts A and B; 


9. Closed circuit TV (CCTV) monitoring system, recordable, and 


viewable in the power plant control room and security station (if 


separate from the control room) capable of viewing, at a minimum, 


the main entrance gate and the ammonia storage tank; and 


10. Additional measures to ensure adequate perimeter security 


consisting of either: 


A. Security guard(s) present 24 hours per day, 7 days per week; 


or 


B. Power plant personnel on site 24 hours per day, 7 days per 


week, and all of the following: 


1. The CCTV monitoring system required in item 9, above, 


shall include cameras able to pan, tilt, and zoom, have lowlight 


capability, are recordable, and are able to view 100 


percent of the perimeter fence, the anhydrous ammonia 


storage tank, the outside entrance to the control room, and 







 


19 
LEC FOF.DOC 


the front gate from a monitor in the power plant control 


room; and 


2. Perimeter breach detectors or on-site motion detectors. 


The project owner shall fully implement the security plans and 


obtain CPM approval of any substantive modifications to those 


security plans. The CPM may authorize modifications to these 


measures, or may require additional measures such as protective 


barriers for critical power plant components— transformers, gas 


lines, and compressors—depending upon circumstances unique to 


the facility or in response to industry-related standards, security 


concerns, or additional guidance provided by the U.S. Department 


of Homeland Security, the U.S. Department of Energy, or the North 


American Electrical Reliability Corporation, after consultation with 


both appropriate law enforcement agencies and the project owner. 


Verification: At least 30 days prior to LEC commissioning, the project owner 


shall notify the CPM that a site-specific operations site security plan is available 


for review and approval. The CPM shall review and, if acceptable, approve the 


Operation Security Plan within 30 days of submission. In the annual compliance 


report, the project owner shall include a statement that all current project 


employee and appropriate contractor background investigations have been 


performed, and that updated certification statements have been appended to the 


operations security plan. In the annual compliance report, the project owner shall 


include a statement that the operations security plan includes all current 


hazardous materials transport vendor certifications for security plans and 


employee background investigations. 


 


 


HAZARDOUS MATERIALS 


ATTACHMENT A 


Hazardous Material for Use at the 


LODI ENERGY CENTER 


 







 


20 
LEC FOF.DOC 


 
 


 







 


21 
LEC FOF.DOC 


 
 


 







 


22 
LEC FOF.DOC 


 
 


 







 


23 
LEC FOF.DOC 


 
 







 


24 
LEC FOF.DOC 


 
 


F.  Waste Management 


Findings 


Based on the uncontroverted evidence, the Commission makes the following 


findings: 


1. Applicant’s Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) found no 


evidence of any recognized environmental conditions (RECs) at the 


project site or along the linear corridors. 


2. The project site was previously used for agriculture and for stockpiling 


biosolids/sludge from the adjacent water pollution control treatment ponds, 


indicating the potential for impacts from persistent pesticides or other 


hazardous chemicals not detected at the soil surface. 


3. Applicant provided a Phase II ESA soil sampling analysis, which detected 


residual contaminants at the site in concentrations that exceeded risk 







 


25 
LEC FOF.DOC 


levels for human exposure; however, further review of the analysis 


revealed that the data were misinterpreted and that levels of soil 


contaminants were actually far below the risk threshold. 


4. The Department of Toxic Substances Control issued a Determination of 


No Further Action on December 10, 2009, concluding that the site did not 


appear to pose a risk to health or the environment. 


5. The project owner will implement appropriate characterization, disposal, 


and remediation measures to ensure that the risk of exposure to 


previously undetected contaminated soils at the site or along the linear 


corridors is reduced to insignificant levels. 


6. The project will generate nonhazardous and hazardous wastes during 


excavation, construction, and operation. 


7. The project will recycle nonhazardous and hazardous wastes to the extent 


feasible and in compliance with applicable law. 


8. Hazardous wastes that cannot be recycled will be transported by 


registered hazardous waste transporters to appropriate Class I landfills. 


9. Solid nonhazardous wastes that cannot be recycled will be deposited at 


Class II and III landfills in the local area. 


10. Liquid wastes will be classified for appropriate disposal and managed in 


accordance with the Conditions of Certification listed in the Soil and 


Water Resources section of this Decision. 


11. Disposal of project wastes will not result in any significant direct, indirect, 


or cumulative impacts on existing waste disposal facilities or create 


disproportionate impacts on environmental justice populations. 


 


Conclusions 


1. Implementation of the Conditions of Certification, below, and the waste 


management practices described in the evidentiary record will reduce 


potential impacts to insignificant levels and ensure that project wastes are 


handled in an environmentally safe manner. 


2. The management of project wastes will comply with all applicable laws, 


ordinances, regulations, and standards related to waste management as 


identified in the pertinent portions of Appendix A of this Decision. 


 


Conditions of Certification 


WASTE-1 The project owner shall prepare a Construction Waste 


Management Plan for all wastes generated during construction of 


the facility, and shall submit the plan to the CPM for review and 


approval. The plan shall contain, at a minimum, the following: 


• A description of all construction waste streams, including 


projections of frequency, amounts generated and hazard 


classifications; and 


• Management methods to be used for each waste stream, 







 


26 
LEC FOF.DOC 


including temporary onsite storage, housekeeping and best 


management practices to be employed, treatment methods and 


companies providing treatment services, waste testing methods 


to assure correct classification, methods of transportation, 


disposal requirements and sites, and recycling and waste 


minimization/source reduction plans. 


Verification: The project owner shall submit the Construction Waste 


Management Plan to the CPM for approval no less than 30 days prior to the 


initiation of construction activities at the site. The CPM shall review and approve 


the Construction Waste Management Plan within 30 days of submission. 


WASTE-2 The project owner shall provide the resume of an experienced and 


qualified Professional Engineer or Professional Geologist, who shall 


be available for consultation during site characterization (if needed), 


excavation and grading activities, to the CPM for review and 


approval. The resume shall show experience in remedial 


investigation and feasibility studies. 


The Professional Engineer or Professional Geologist shall be given 


full authority by the project owner to oversee any earth moving 


activities that have the potential to disturb contaminated soil. 


Verification: At least 30 days prior to the start of site mobilization, the project 


owner shall submit the resume to the CPM for review and approval. 


WASTE-3 If potentially contaminated soil is identified during site 


characterization, excavation, or grading at either the site or linear 


facilities, as evidenced by discoloration, odor, detection by 


handheld instruments, or other signs, the Professional Engineer or 


Professional Geologist shall inspect the suspicious material, 


determine the need for sampling to confirm the nature and extent of 


contamination, and provide a written report to the project owner, 


representatives of Department of Toxic Substances Control 


(DTSC), and the CPM describing the recommended course of 


action. 


Depending on the nature and extent of contamination, the 


Professional Engineer or Professional Geologist shall have the 


authority to temporarily suspend construction activity at the 


location(s) where contamination is detected for the protection of 


workers or the public. If, in the opinion of the Professional Engineer 


or Professional Geologist, significant remediation is required, the 


project owner shall contact the CPM and representatives of the 


DTSC for guidance and oversight. 


Verification: The project owner shall submit any final reports filed by the 


Professional Engineer or Professional Geologist to the CPM within five days of 


their receipt. The project owner shall notify the CPM within 24 hours of any 


orders issued to halt construction. 


WASTE-4 The project owner shall obtain a hazardous waste generator 


identification number from the United States Environmental 


Protection Agency prior to generating any hazardous waste during 







 


27 
LEC FOF.DOC 


construction and operations. 


Verification: At least 30 days prior to commencing earth moving activities at 


the site, the project owner shall obtain and keep a copy of the hazardous waste 


generator identification (ID) number on file at the project site and provide the 


number to the CPM in the first Monthly Compliance Report due after receipt of 


the ID number. 


WASTE-5 Upon becoming aware of any impending waste managementrelated 


enforcement action by any local, state, or federal authority, 


the project owner shall notify the CPM of any such action taken or 


proposed to be taken against the project itself, or against any waste 


hauler or disposal facility or treatment operator with which the 


owner contracts. 


Verification: The project owner shall notify the CPM in writing within 10 days 


of becoming aware of an impending enforcement action. The CPM shall notify 


the project owner of any changes that will be required in the way project-related 


wastes are managed. 


WASTE-6 The project owner shall prepare an Operation Waste Management 


Plan for all wastes generated during operation of the facility, and 


shall submit the plan to the CPM for review and approval. The plan 


shall contain, at a minimum, the following: 


• A detailed description of all operation and maintenance waste 


streams, including projections of amounts to be generated, 


frequency of generation, and waste hazard classifications; 


• Management methods to be used for each waste stream, 


including temporary onsite storage, housekeeping and best 


management practices to be employed, treatment methods and 


companies providing treatment services, waste testing methods 


to assure correct classification, methods of transportation, 


disposal requirements and sites, and recycling and waste 


minimization/source reduction plans; 


• Information and summary records of conversations with the 


local Certified Unified Program Agency and the DTSC regarding 


any waste management requirements necessary for project 


activities. Copies of all required waste management permits, 


notices, and/or authorizations shall be included in the plan and 


updated as necessary; 


• A detailed description of how facility wastes will be managed, 


and any contingency plans to be employed, in the event of an 


unplanned closure or planned temporary facility closure; and 


• A detailed description of how facility wastes will be managed 


and disposed upon closure of the facility. 


Verification: The project owner shall submit the Operation Waste 


Management Plan to the CPM for approval no less than 30 days prior to the start 


of project operation. The project owner shall submit any required revisions to the 


CPM within 20 days of notification from the CPM that revisions are necessary. 


The CPM shall review and approve the final Operation Waste Management Plan 







 


28 
LEC FOF.DOC 


within 10 days of submission. 


The project owner shall also document in each Annual Compliance Report the 


actual volume of wastes generated and the waste management methods used 


during the year; provide a comparison of the actual waste generation and 


management methods used to those proposed in the original Operation Waste 


Management Plan; and update the Operation Waste Management Plan as 


necessary to address current waste generation and management practices. 


WASTE-7 The project owner shall ensure that the cooling tower sludge is 


tested pursuant to Title 22, California Code of Regulations, Division 


4.5, section 66262.10 and report the findings to the CPM. 


Verification: No later than 60 days after the start of project operations, the 


project shall provide the results of sludge testing in a report submitted to the 


CPM. If two consecutive tests show that the sludge is nonhazardous, the project 


owner may apply to the CPM to discontinue testing. 


WASTE-8 The project owner shall ensure that all spills or releases of 


hazardous substances, hazardous materials, or hazardous waste 


are reported, cleaned-up, and remediated as necessary, in 


accordance with all applicable federal, state, and local LORS. 


Verification: The project owner shall document all unauthorized releases and 


spills of hazardous substances, materials, or wastes that occur on the project 


property or related pipeline and transmission corridors. The documentation shall 


include, at a minimum, the following information: location of release; date and 


time of release; reason for release; volume released; amount of contaminated 


soil/material generated; how release was managed and material cleaned-up; if 


the release was reported; to whom the release was reported; release corrective 


action and cleanup requirements placed by regulating agencies; level of cleanup 


achieved and actions taken to prevent a similar release or spill; and disposition of 


any hazardous wastes and/or contaminated soils and materials that may have 


been generated by the release. Copies of the unauthorized spill documentation 


shall be provided to the CPM within 30 days of the date the release was 


discovered. 


 


VI.  ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT 


A.  Biological Resources 


Findings 


Based on the uncontroverted record of evidence, we find the following: 


1. The LEC project consists of the 4.4-acre LEC site, four laydown and parking 


areas, totaling 9.8 acres, and a 2.7-mile natural gas pipeline with a 1.1-acre 


laydown area. 


2. The LEC site and four laydown areas are highly disturbed due to grading and 


landscaping done previously for the development of the STIG power plant 


and WPCF sites. 


3. The project would result in temporary disturbance along the 2.7-mile gas 







 


29 
LEC FOF.DOC 


pipeline in agricultural fields and in the already disturbed open space land for 


the laydown areas. 


4. Installation of the gas pipeline would be mitigated by restoring the site to 


agricultural use once installation is complete. 


5. Permanent disturbance would occur with the installation of the LEC and the 


new pole foundations for the electrical interconnection within already 


disturbed/developed areas adjacent to the LEC site. 


6. Special-status plant species are not expected to occur in the project area 


because there is no suitable habitat within the LEC site as a result of ongoing 


disturbance from industrial and adjacent agricultural operations. 


7. Several special-status wildlife species, such as the tricolored blackbird, 


burrowing owl, Swainson’s hawk, white-tailed kite, California black rail, 


western pond turtle, northwestern pond turtle, and giant garter snake, are 


known to utilize the surrounding agricultural habitat and thus have potential to 


occur in the project area. 


8. The evidence contains an analysis of potential adverse impacts of the Lodi 


Energy Project upon biological resources, including special-status species, 


which may potentially be affected by project construction and operation. 


9. Mitigation for impacts to 5.9 acres of giant garter snake habitat and 3.55 


acres of Swainson’s hawk habitat will be compensated by acquiring a 21.25- 


acre conservation easement for SJCOG plus a one-time endowment fee of 


$4,603.74 per acre for the actual acres impacted by the project. 


10. Potential direct impacts to special-status species in the surrounding area can 


be mitigated with implementation of setbacks, habitat compensation, and 


other impact minimization and avoidance measures set forth in the Conditions 


of Certification. 


11. The project owner will implement a construction mitigation management plan 


by educating workers on habitat protection, and designating a qualified 


biologist and biological monitors with authority to halt activities to avoid 


impacts to sensitive biological resources. 


12. The project owner will submit a Biological Resources Mitigation 


Implementation and Monitoring Plan (BRMIMP) incorporating all biological 


mitigation and compliance measures required by applicable local, state, and 


federal LORS. 


13. LEC transmission structures will not pose a significant collision threat to 


resident or migratory bird populations. 


14. Transmission lines will not pose a significant risk of avian collisions and 


electrocutions. 


15. Wildlife species near the LEC site are accustomed to elevated ambient noise 


levels as a result of the existing industrial and agricultural uses and traffic on 


I-5, such that the construction and operation noise of the LEC will not create 


significant impacts to biological resources. 


16. Wildlife species near the LEC site are acclimated to an elevated ambient level 


of night-time lighting such that the construction and operation of the LEC will 


not create significant impacts to wildlife as a result of lighting. 


17. There will be no significant impact to biological resources associated with 







 


30 
LEC FOF.DOC 


hazardous materials. 


 


Conclusions 


1. The project owner will implement appropriate avoidance and mitigation 


measures to prevent significant adverse impacts to all sensitive species. 


2. With implementation of the mitigation measures described in the evidentiary 


record and incorporated into the Conditions of Certification below, as well as 


those in other portions of this Decision, the Lodi Energy Project will not result 


in significant direct, indirect, or cumulative impacts to biological resources. 


3. With implementation of the mitigation measures described in the evidentiary 


record and incorporated into the Conditions of Certification, the Lodi Energy 


Project will conform to all applicable laws, ordinances, regulations, and 


standards related to biological resources as identified in the pertinent portion 


of Appendix A of this Decision. 


 


Conditions of Certification 


Designated Biologist Selection 


BIO-1 The project owner shall assign a Designated Biologist to the project. 


The project owner shall submit the resume of the proposed Designated 


Biologist, with at least three references and contact information, to the 


Energy Commission Compliance Project Manager (CPM) for approval. 


The Designated Biologist must at least meet the following minimum 


qualifications: 


1. Bachelor's Degree in biological sciences, zoology, botany, ecology, 


or a closely related field; and 


2. Three years of experience in field biology or current certification of 


a nationally recognized biological society, such as The Ecological 


Society of America or The Wildlife Society; and 


3. At least one year of field experience with biological resources found 


in or near the project area. 


In lieu of the above requirements, the resume shall demonstrate to the 


satisfaction of the CPM, that the proposed Designated Biologist or 


alternate has the appropriate training and background to effectively 


implement the Conditions of Certification. 


Verification: The project owner shall submit the specified information at least 


90 days prior to the start of any site (or related facilities) mobilization. No site or 


related facility activities shall commence until an approved Designated Biologist 


is available to be on site. 


If a Designated Biologist needs to be replaced, the specified information of the 


proposed replacement must be submitted to the CPM at least 10 working days 


prior to the termination or release of the preceding Designated Biologist. In an 


emergency, the project owner shall immediately notify the CPM to discuss the 


qualifications and approval of a short-term replacement while a permanent 







 


31 
LEC FOF.DOC 


Designated Biologist is proposed to the CPM for consideration. 


Designated Biologist Duties 


BIO-2 The project owner shall ensure that the Designated Biologist performs 


the following during any site (or related facilities) mobilization, ground 


disturbance, grading, construction, operation, and closure activities. 


The Designated Biologist may be assisted by the approved Biological 


Monitor(s), but remains the contact for the project owner and CPM. 


1. Advise the project owner's Construction and Operation Managers 


on the implementation of the biological resources Conditions of 


Certification; 


2. Consult on the preparation of the Biological Resources Mitigation 


Implementation and Monitoring Plan, to be submitted by the project 


owner; 


3. Be available to supervise, conduct and coordinate mitigation, 


monitoring, and other biological resources compliance efforts, 


particularly in areas requiring avoidance or containing sensitive 


biological resources, such as special status species or their habitat; 


4. Clearly mark sensitive biological resource areas and inspect these 


areas at appropriate intervals for compliance with regulatory terms 


and conditions; 


5. Inspect active construction areas where animals may have become 


trapped prior to construction commencing each day. At the end of 


the day, inspect for the installation of structures that prevent 


entrapment or allow escape during periods of construction 


inactivity. Periodically inspect areas with high vehicle activity (i.e. 


parking lots) for animals in harm’s way; 


6. Notify the project owner and the CPM of any non-compliance with 


any biological resources Condition of Certification; 


7. Respond directly to inquiries of the CPM regarding biological 


resource issues; 


8. Maintain written records of the tasks specified above and those 


included in the BRMIMP. Summaries of these records shall be 


submitted in the Monthly Compliance Report and the Annual 


Report; and 


9. Train the Biological Monitors as appropriate, and ensure their 


familiarity with the BRMIMP, Worker Environmental Awareness 


Program (WEAP) training and all permits. 


Verification: The Designated Biologist shall submit in the Monthly Compliance 


Report to the CPM copies of all written reports and summaries that document 


biological resources activities. If actions may affect biological resources during 


operation a Designated Biologist shall be available for monitoring and reporting. 


During project operation, the Designated Biologist shall submit record summaries 


in the Annual Compliance Report unless their duties are ceased as approved by 


the CPM. 


Biological Monitor Qualifications 


BIO-3 The project owner’s CPM-approved Designated Biologist shall submit 







 


32 
LEC FOF.DOC 


the resume, at least three references, and contact information of the 


proposed Biological Monitors to the CPM for approval. The resume 


shall demonstrate to the satisfaction of the CPM, the appropriate 


education and experience to accomplish the assigned biological 


resource tasks. 


Biological Monitor(s) training by the Designated Biologist shall include 


familiarity with the Conditions of Certification and the Biological 


Resources Mitigation Implementation and Monitoring Plan (BRMIMP), 


WEAP and all permits. 


Verification: The project owner shall submit the specified information to the 


CPM for approval at least 30 days prior to the start of any site (or related 


facilities) mobilization. The Designated Biologist shall submit a written statement 


to the CPM confirming that individual Biological Monitor(s) have been trained 


including the date when training was completed. If additional Biological Monitors 


are needed during construction, the specified information shall be submitted to 


the CPM for approval 10 days prior to their first day of monitoring activities. 


Designated Biologist and Biological Monitor Authority 


BIO-4 The project owner’s Construction/Operation Manager shall act on the 


advice of the Designated Biologist and Biological Monitor(s) to ensure 


conformance with the biological resources Conditions of Certification. 


If required by the Designated Biologist and Biological Monitor(s), the 


project owner’s Construction/ Operation Manager shall halt all site 


mobilization, ground disturbance, grading, construction, and operation 


activities in areas specified by the Designated Biologist. 


The Designated Biologist shall: 


1. Require a halt to all activities in any area when determined that 


there would be an unauthorized adverse impact to biological 


resources if the activities continued; 


2. Inform the project owner and the Construction/Operation Manager 


when to resume activities; and 


3. Notify the CPM if there is a halt of any activities, and advise the 


CPM of any corrective actions that have been taken, or will be 


instituted, as a result of the work stoppage. 


If the Designated Biologist is unavailable for direct consultation, the 


Biological Monitor shall act on behalf of the Designated Biologist. 


Verification: The project owner shall ensure that the Designated Biologist or 


Biological Monitor notifies the CPM immediately (and no later than the following 


morning of the incident, or Monday morning in the case of a weekend) of any 


non-compliance or a halt of any site mobilization, ground disturbance, grading, 


construction, and operation activities. The project owner shall notify the CPM of 


the circumstances and actions being taken to resolve the problem. 


Whenever corrective action is taken by the project owner, a determination of 


success or failure will be made by the CPM within five working days after receipt 


of notice that corrective action is completed, or the project owner will be notified 


by the CPM that coordination with other agencies will require additional time 


before a determination can be made. 







 


33 
LEC FOF.DOC 


Worker Environmental Awareness Program 


BIO-5 The project owner shall develop and implement a CPM approved 


Worker Environmental Awareness Program (WEAP) in which each of 


its employees, as well as employees of contractors and subcontractors 


who work on the project site or any related facilities during site 


mobilization, ground disturbance, grading, construction, operation and 


closure are informed about sensitive biological resources associated 


with the project. 


The WEAP must: 


1. Be developed by or in consultation with the Designated Biologist 


and consist of an on-site or training center presentation in which 


supporting written material and electronic media (video or DVD) is 


made available to all participants; 


2. Discuss the locations and types of sensitive biological resources on 


the project site and adjacent areas; 


3. Present the reasons for protecting these resources; 


4. Present the meaning of various temporary and permanent habitat 


protection measures; 


5. Identify whom to contact if there are further comments and 


questions about the material discussed in the program; and 


6. Include a training acknowledgment form to be signed by each 


worker indicating that they received training and shall abide by the 


guidelines. 


The specific program can be administered by a competent individual(s) 


acceptable to the Designated Biologist. 


Verification: At least 60 days prior to the start of any site (or related facilities) 


mobilization, the project owner shall provide to the CPM (for review and 


approval) and the SJCOG, Inc., (SJCOG) Habitat Technical Advisory Committee 


(HTAC) for review and comment, two copies each of the proposed WEAP and all 


supporting written materials and electronic media prepared or reviewed by the 


Designated Biologist and a resume of the person(s) administering the program. 


The project owner shall provide in the Monthly Compliance Report the number of 


persons who have completed the training in the prior month and a running total of 


all persons who have completed the training to date. At least 10 days prior to 


site and related facilities mobilization submit two copies of the CPM approved 


materials. 


The signed training acknowledgement forms from construction shall be kept on 


file by the project owner for a period of at least six months after the start of 


commercial operation. 


During project operation, signed statements for active project operational 


personnel shall be kept on file for six months following the termination of an 


individual's employment. 


Biological Resources Mitigation Implementation and Monitoring Plan 


BIO-6 The project owner shall submit two copies of the proposed Biological 


Resources Mitigation Implementation and monitoring Plan (BRMIMP) 


to the CPM (for review and approval) and to the HTAC (for review and 







 


34 
LEC FOF.DOC 


comment) and shall implement the measures identified in the approved 


BRMIMP. 


The BRMIMP shall be prepared in consultation with the Designated 


Biologist and shall identify: 


1. All biological resources mitigation, monitoring, and compliance 


measures proposed and agreed to by the project owner; 


2. All biological resources Conditions of Certification identified as 


necessary to avoid or mitigate impacts; 


3. All biological resources mitigation, monitoring and compliance 


measures required in the San Joaquin County Multi-Species 


Habitat Conservation and Open Space Plan (SJMSCP) terms and 


conditions, as approved by the HTAC; 


4. All biological resources mitigation, monitoring and compliance 


measures required in local agency permits, such as site grading 


and landscaping requirements; 


5. All sensitive biological resources to be impacted, avoided, or 


mitigated by project construction, operation and closure; 


6. All required mitigation measures for each sensitive biological 


resource; 


7. Required habitat compensation strategy, including provisions for 


acquisition, enhancement, and management for any temporary 


and permanent loss of sensitive biological resources; 


8. A detailed description of measures that shall be taken to avoid or 


mitigate temporary disturbances from construction activities; 


9. All locations on a map, at an approved scale, of sensitive 


biological resource areas subject to disturbance and areas 


requiring temporary protection and avoidance during construction; 


10. Aerial photographs, at an approved scale, of all areas to be 


disturbed during project construction activities - one set prior to 


any site or related facilities mobilization disturbance and one set 


subsequent to completion of project construction. Include planned 


timing of aerial photography and a description of why times were 


chosen; 


11. Duration for each type of monitoring and a description of 


monitoring methodologies and frequency; 


12. Performance standards to be used to help decide if/when 


proposed mitigation is or is not successful; 


13. All performance standards and remedial measures to be 


implemented if performance standards are not met; 


14. A preliminary discussion of biological resources related facility 


closure measures; 


15. Restoration and revegetation plan; 


16. A process for proposing plan modifications to the CPM and 


appropriate agencies for review and approval; and 


17. A copy of all biological resources related permits obtained. 


Verification: The project owner shall provide the specified document at least 







 


35 
LEC FOF.DOC 


60 days prior to start of any site (or related facilities) mobilization. 


The CPM, in consultation with the HTAC and approval by the SJCOG Joint 


Powers Authority (JPA), will determine the BRMIMP’s acceptability within 45 


days of receipt. If there are any permits that have not yet been received when 


the BRMIMP is first submitted, these permits shall be submitted to the CPM and 


the HTAC within five days of their receipt and the BRMIMP shall be revised or 


supplemented to reflect the permit condition within 10 days of their receipt by the 


project owner. Ten days prior to site and related facilities mobilization the 


revised BRMIMP shall be resubmitted to the CPM. 


The project owner shall notify the CPM no less than five working days before 


implementing any modifications to the approved BRMIMP to obtain CPM 


approval. Any changes to the approved BRMIMP must also be approved by the 


CPM and submitted to the HTAC to ensure no conflicts exist. 


Implementation of BRMIMP measures will be reported in the Monthly 


Compliance Reports by the Designated Biologist (i.e. survey results, construction 


activities that were monitored, species observed). Within 30 days after 


completion of project construction, the project owner shall provide to the CPM, 


for review and approval, a written construction closure report identifying which 


items of the BRMIMP have been completed, a summary of all modifications to 


mitigation measures made during the project's site mobilization, ground 


disturbance, grading, and construction phases, and which mitigation and 


monitoring items are still outstanding. 


Impact Avoidance and Minimization Measures 


BIO-7 Any time the project owner modifies or finalizes the project design they 


shall incorporate all feasible measures that avoid or minimize impacts 


to the local biological resources, including: 


1. Design, install and maintain transmission line poles, access roads, 


pulling sites, and storage and parking areas to avoid identified 


sensitive resources; 


2. Design, install and maintain transmission lines and all electrical 


components in accordance with the Avian Power Line Interaction 


Committee (APLIC 2006) Suggested Practices for Raptor 


Protection on Power Lines: The State of the Art in 2006 to reduce 


the likelihood of electrocutions of large birds; 


3. Eliminate any California Exotic Pest Plants of Concern (Cal-IPC 


2007) List A species from landscaping plans; 


4. Prescribe a road sealant that is non-toxic to wildlife and plants; 


5. Design, install, and maintain facility lighting to prevent side casting 


of light towards wildlife habitat; 


6. Use straw wattles or silt fences to prevent sediment from reaching 


irrigation and drainage canals; 


7. Establish buffer zones around active irrigation and drainage canals; 


8. Fence buffer zones during construction to minimize habitat 


disturbance; and 


9. Restore temporarily impacted areas to approximate original site 


conditions. 







 


36 
LEC FOF.DOC 


Verification: All mitigation measures and their implementation methods shall 


be included in the BRMIMP. Implementation of the measures will be reported in 


the Monthly Compliance Reports by the Designated Biologist. Within 30 days 


after completion of project construction, the project owner shall provide to the 


CPM, for review and approval, a written construction termination report 


identifying how measures have been completed. 


Mitigation Management to Avoid Harassment or Harm 


BIO-8 The project owner shall implement the following measures to manage 


their construction site, and related facilities, in a manner to avoid or 


minimize impacts to the local biological resources. 


1. Install temporary fencing and provide wildlife escape ramps for 


construction areas that contain steep walled holes or trenches if 


outside of an approved, permanent exclusionary fence. The 


temporary fence shall be hardware cloth or similar materials that 


are approved by USFWS and CDFG. Before such holes or 


trenches are filled, they should be thoroughly inspected for trapped 


animals by the Designated Biologist or Biological Monitor; 


2. Make certain all food-related trash is disposed of in closed 


containers and removed at least once a week from the project site; 


3. Prohibit feeding of wildlife by Staff and Subcontractors; 


4. Prohibit non-security related firearms or weapons from being 


brought to the site; 


5. Prohibit pets from being brought to the site; 


6. Report all inadvertent deaths of special-status species to the 


appropriate project representative. Injured animals shall be 


reported to CDFG and the project owner shall follow instructions 


that are provided by CDFG. The Sacramento USFWS Office shall 


be notified in writing within three working days of the accidental 


death or injury to giant garter snake during project related activities. 


Contact USFWS and CDFG for specific notification procedures; 


7. Minimize use of rodenticides and herbicides in the project area and 


prohibit the use of chemicals and pesticides known to cause harm 


to amphibians. If rodent control must be conducted, zinc phosphide 


or an equivalent product shall be used; and 


8. Construction activities associated with vegetation removal when 


working within the 200-foot GGS setback, initial ground 


disturbance, and grading would be completed during the active 


season for giant garter snake between May 1 and October 31. 


Verification: All mitigation measures and their implementation methods shall 


be included in the BRMIMP. Implementation of the measures will be reported in 


the Monthly Compliance Reports by the Designated Biologist. Within 30 days 


after completion of project construction, the project owner shall provide to the 


CPM, for review and approval, a written construction termination report 


identifying how all biological resource-related mitigation measures have been 


completed. 


Giant Garter Snake Habitat Compensation 







 


37 
LEC FOF.DOC 


BIO-9 To mitigate impacts to the giant garter snake and its habitat, the project 


owner shall implement impact avoidance and minimization measures 


for construction activities in giant garter snake habitat and provide 


habitat compensation for temporary and permanent impacts to giant 


garter snake at a 3:1 mitigation ratio and a one-time endowment fee of 


$27,161.06 as required by the SJMSCP. 


Verification: All mitigation measures and their implementation methods shall 


be included in the BRMIMP. Within 15 days of site or related facilities 


mobilization, the project owner shall submit written verification to the CPM and 


the HTAC that the transaction for habitat compensation has occurred. A 


discussion of implementation of giant garter snake mitigation and avoidance 


measures shall be provided to the CPM in monthly compliance reports as 


necessary. 


Burrowing Owl Mitigation 


BIO-10 The project owner shall implement all mitigation and impact avoidance 


measures outlined in CDFG’s (1995) Staff Report on Burrowing Owl 


Mitigation. Pre-construction surveys for burrowing owls shall be 


conducted no more than 14 days prior to site mobilization. In the event 


that owls or owl sign are identified in the survey, the project owner 


shall do the following: 


1. Location(s) of owls and owl sign will be mapped and noted. In the 


event an active burrow would be affected by the project, 


replacement burrows will be constructed at a location approved by 


the HTAC and passive relocation of the owls will occur prior to the 


start of construction. Passive relocation would only occur during 


the non-breeding season (September 1 through January 31) ; and 


2. During breeding season (February 1 through August 31) occupied 


burrows shall not be disturbed and shall be provided with a 250-foot 


protective buffer until and unless the HTAC, with the concurrence of 


the permitting agencies or unless the designated biologist approved 


by the permitting agencies verifies through non-invasive means that 


either: 


A. The birds have not begun egg laying; or 


B. Juveniles from the occupied burrows are foraging independently 


and are capable of independent survival. Once the fledglings 


are capable of independent survival, the burrow can be 


destroyed. 


Verification: All mitigation measures and their implementation methods shall 


be included in the BRMIMP. Within 15 days of site or related facilities 


mobilization the project owner shall submit a report on the results of burrowing 


owl surveys to the CPM. A discussion of implementation of burrowing owl 


mitigation and impact avoidance measures shall be submitted to the CPM in the 


monthly compliance reports as necessary. 


Swainson’s Hawk Mitigation 


BIO-11 The project owner shall survey for nesting Swainson’s hawk as part of 


the Applicant’s proposed pre-construction surveys within one mile of 







 


38 
LEC FOF.DOC 


construction activities between March 20 and April 20. If active nests 


are found, mitigation measures consistent with the Staff Report 


Regarding Mitigation for Impacts to Swainson’s Hawks in the Central 


Valley of California (CDFG 1994) shall be implemented as approved by 


the SJCOG HTAC. In addition, the project owner shall provide habitat 


compensation for temporary and permanent impacts at a 1:1 mitigation 


ratio and a one-time endowment fee of $16,342.68 as required by 


SJMSCP. 


Verification: All mitigation measures and their implementation methods shall 


be included in the BRMIMP. Pre-construction Swainson’s hawk survey results 


shall be provided to the CPM within 15 days of completion of surveys. Within 15 


days of site or related facilities mobilization, the project owner shall submit written 


verification to the CPM and the HTAC that the transaction for habitat 


compensation has occurred. A discussion of the implementation of Swainson’s 


hawk mitigation and impact avoidance measures shall be submitted to the CPM 


in monthly compliance reports as necessary. 


Pre-Construction Nest Surveys and Impact Avoidance for Migratory Birds 


BIO-12 The project owner shall implement the following measures to avoid or 


minimize impacts to nesting birds: 


1. Pre-construction nest surveys within 500 feet of boundaries of the 


power plant site and linear facilities if construction activities will 


occur from February 1 through August 1; 


2. At least two pre-construction surveys shall be conducted, separated 


by a minimum 10-day interval. One of the surveys needs to be 


conducted within the 14 day period preceding initiation of 


construction activity. Additional follow-up surveys may be required 


if periods of construction inactivity exceed three weeks in any given 


area, an interval during which birds may establish a nesting territory 


and initiate egg laying and incubation; 


3. If active nests are detected during the survey, schedule work 


outside nesting and fledging periods. If this is not possible, a nodisturbance 


buffer zone (protected areas surrounding the nest, the 


size of which is to be determined by the Designated Biologist in 


consultation with the HTAC and monitoring plan shall be 


developed. Nest locations shall be mapped using GPS technology 


and submitted, along with a monthly report stating the survey 


results to the CPM; and 


4. The Designated Biologist shall monitor the nest until he or she 


determines that nestlings have fledged and dispersed; activities 


that might, in the opinion of the Designated Biologist, disturbed 


nesting activities, shall be prohibited within the buffer zone until 


such a determination is made. 


Verification: All mitigation measures and their implementation methods shall 


be included in the BRMIMP. At least 10 days prior to the start of any projectrelated 


ground disturbance activities, the project owner shall provide the CPM a 


letter-report describing the findings of the pre-construction nest surveys, 







 


39 
LEC FOF.DOC 


including the time, date, and duration of the survey; identity and qualifications of 


the surveyor(s); and a list of species observed. If active nests are detected 


during the survey, the report shall include a map or aerial photo identifying the 


location of the nest and shall depict the boundaries of the no-disturbance buffer 


zone around the nest. A discussion of implementation of migratory bird 


mitigation and impact avoidance measures shall be submitted to the CPM in 


monthly compliance reports as necessary. 


Northwestern and Western Pond Turtle Mitigation 


BIO-13 The project owner shall implement the following measures to avoid or 


minimize impacts to northwestern and western pond turtles: 


1. Concurrent with pre-construction surveys for the giant garter snake, 


surveys will also be conducted for turtles and potential nest 


locations; 


2. Temporary fencing will be installed along the edge of the irrigation 


canal and signs shall be posted identifying the area as 


environmentally sensitive; and 


3. In the event a turtle or nest is identified in the work area, the 


location will be noted and the CDFG will immediately be contacted 


to determine the appropriate mitigation and impact avoidance 


measure to be taken prior to the start of any ground disturbance 


within 300 feet of the nest. 


Verification: All mitigation measures and their implementation methods shall 


be included in the BRMIMP. Within 15 days of site or related facilities 


mobilization the project owner shall submit a report on the results of pond turtle 


surveys to the CPM. A discussion of implementation of northwestern and 


western turtle mitigation and impact avoidance measures shall be submitted to 


the CPM in monthly compliance reports as necessary. 


 


B.  Soil and Water Resources 


Findings 


1. The volume of soil that will be over excavated and recompacted as 


engineered fill will be 19,656 cubic yards (cy) with an additional 8,747 cy 


required to provide a level pad for the LEC facility. 


2. Adherence to the procedures in the construction SWPPP and DESCP will 


limit both erosion and the migration of contaminants that may be disturbed 


by construction from entering adjacent surface water bodies. 


3. The implementation of BMPs contained in Conditions of Certification 


SOIL&WATER-1 and -2 will reduce the impact of water and wind erosion 


to soil resources to a level that is less than significant. 


4. The operation and maintenance of the LEC will not involve soil-disturbing 


activities. 


5. Designing and elevating the LEC site above the base flood elevation 


consistent with the Lodi Municipal Code Title 15 and Title 17 will ensure 


the project will not contribute to upstream and downstream flooding 







 


40 
LEC FOF.DOC 


impacts. 


6. Condition of Certification SOIL&WATER-5 requires the preparation of an 


industrial SWPPP which will render the impacts of storm water runoff 


during LEC operation less than significant. 


7. LEC will use recycled water during construction and operation. 


8. Construction of the LEC to last 24 months and will require approximately 


36,000 gallons per day of recycled water. 


9. LEC’s expected average annual recycled water use, based on a 70-80 


percent facility operation capacity factor (approximately 7,000 hours of 


operation per year), will be 1,651 acre-feet per year, with a maximum 


consumption of 1,800 acre-feet per year (AFY). 


10. The project will result in 4.4 acres of impervious surfaces, which will not 


substantially interfere with groundwater recharge resulting in no potential 


significant impacts to groundwater quality. 


11. LEC will not use groundwater during construction. 


12. To prevent surface water degradation due to dewatering activities, 


Condition of Certification SOIL&WATER-3 will require the project owner to 


comply with CVRWQCB Order No. R5-2008-0081 for Waste Discharge 


Requirements for Dewatering and Other Low Threat Discharges to 


Surface Waters. 


13. Compliance with Conditions of Certification SOIL&WATER-1, -2 and -3 


will reduce construction impacts to water quality to a less-than-significant 


level. 


14. LEC will use groundwater from a new on-site well for all potable water uses 


(eyewash stations, drinking fountains, showers, and toilet flushing). 


15. The overall consumption of potable water by the LEC will be less than 0.4- 


AFY with a maximum pumping rate of less than 1 gpm. 


16. Since the project will use only a small volume of groundwater, the project 


is unlikely to affect groundwater quality. 


17. Compliance with Condition of Certification SOIL&WATER-5, which 


requires the project owner to prepare an industrial SWPPP, will minimize 


impacts to surface and groundwater to a less than significant level. 


18. The low production rate and temporary nature of groundwater use as a 


back-up supply relative to its availability in the basin will have a negligible 


impact on local groundwater levels and will not significantly affect adjacent 


groundwater uses. 


19. Condition of Certification SOIL&WATER-7 limits the use of the 


groundwater from the well. 


20. The project will discharge up to 189 gpm of non-hazardous process 


wastewater to an on-site Class I injection well. 


21. The region surrounding the well site has a very low level of seismic activity 


and contains no active faults within 25 miles. 


22. Deep well injection, permitted by the USEPA, will not cause adverse 


impacts to soil or water resources. 


23. The potential for adverse impacts from sanitary wastewater discharge to 


the WPCF is insignificant. 







 


41 
LEC FOF.DOC 


24. The LEC project will neither cause nor contribute to cumulative impacts to 


soil and water resources. 


 


Conclusions 


1. The LEC will not result in any unmitigated, significant project-specific or 


cumulative adverse impacts to Soil or Water Resources. 


2. The LEC will comply with all applicable LORS with implementation of the 


Conditions of Certification set forth herein. 


3. The LEC will not use fresh water for cooling and is therefore consistent 


with the SWRCB Policy 75-58 and the Energy Commission’s policy of 


discouraging the use of fresh water for power plant cooling. 


 


Conditions of Certification 


SOIL&WATER-1: The project owner shall comply with the requirements of the 


General National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) 


Permit for Discharges of Storm Water Associated with Construction 


Activity (WQO 99-08-DWQ). The project owner shall develop and 


implement a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (construction 


SWPPP) for the LEC site, laydown areas, and on-site linear facilities. 


Verification: Prior to site mobilization, the project owner shall submit to the 


Compliance Project Manager (CPM) a copy of the construction SWPPP and 


retain a copy on-site. The project owner shall submit copies to the CPM of all 


correspondence between the project owner and the Central Valley Regional 


Water Quality Control Board (CVRWQCB) about the construction SWPPP within 


10 days of its receipt or submittal. This information shall include a copy of the 


Notice of Intent and Notice of Termination for the LEC. 


SOIL&WATER 2: Prior to site mobilization activities, the project owner shall 


obtain CPM approval for a site-specific Drainage, Erosion, and 


Sediment Control Plan (DESCP) that ensures protection of water 


quality and soil resources associated with soil disturbing activities 


associated with the LEC site, laydown areas, and on-site linears. The 


DESCP shall address appropriate methods and actions, both 


temporary and permanent, for the protection of water quality and soil 


resources, demonstrate no increase in the rate and volume of storm 


water runoff, and identify all monitoring and maintenance activities. 


The plan shall be consistent with the grading and drainage plan as 


required by Condition of Certification CIVIL-1 and may incorporate by 


reference any SWPPP developed in conjunction with state or municipal 


NPDES permits. The DESCP shall be a separate document that 


contains elements A through I below: 


A. Vicinity Map – Map(s) at a minimum scale 1‖=100’ shall be 


provided indicating the location of all project elements (construction 


site, laydown areas, pipelines, etc.) with depictions of all significant 







 


42 
LEC FOF.DOC 


geographic features including swales, storm drains, and sensitive 


areas. 


B. Site Delineation – All areas subject to soil disturbance for the LEC 


(project site, laydown area, all linear facilities, landscaping areas, 


and any other project elements) shall be delineated showing 


boundary lines of all construction areas and the location of all 


existing and proposed structures, pipelines, roads, and drainage 


facilities. The Site Delineation shall be at a minimum scale 1‖=100’. 


C. Watercourses and Critical Areas – On the Site Delineation, the 


location of all nearby watercourses including swales, storm drains, 


and drainage ditches shall be shown. Indicate the proximity of 


those features to the LEC construction, laydown, and landscape 


areas and all transmission and pipeline construction corridors. 


D. Drainage Map – The DESCP shall provide a topographic site 


map(s) at a minimum scale 1‖=100’ showing all existing, interim 


and proposed drainage systems, and drainage area boundaries. 


On the map, spot elevations are required where relatively flat 


conditions exist. The spot elevations and contours shall be 


extended off-site for a minimum distance of 100 feet. 


E. Drainage Narrative – The DESCP shall include a narrative of the 


drainage measures to be taken to protect the site, downstream 


facilities, and watercourses. The narrative shall include the 


summary pages from the hydrologic and hydraulic analyses 


prepared by a professional engineer or erosion control specialist. 


The narrative shall state the watershed size(s) in acres used in the 


calculation of drainage control measures and text included that 


justifies their selection. The hydrologic and hydraulic analyses 


should be used to support the selection of BMPs and structural 


controls to divert off site and on-site drainage around or through the 


LEC construction and laydown areas. 


F. Clearing and Grading Plans – The DESCP shall provide a 


delineation of all areas to be cleared of vegetation and areas to be 


preserved. The plan shall provide elevations, slopes, locations, 


and extent of all proposed grading as shown by contours, cross 


sections or other means. The on-site locations of any disposal 


areas, fills, or other special features shall also be shown. Illustrate 


existing and proposed topography tying in proposed contours with 


existing topography. 


G. Clearing and Grading Narrative – The DESCP shall include a 


table with the quantities of material excavated or filled for the site 


and all project elements of the LEC (project site, lay down area, 


transmission corridors, and pipeline corridors) whether such 


excavations or fill is temporary or permanent, and the amount of 


such material to be imported or exported. 


H. Best Management Practices – The DESCP shall identify on a 


water pollution control drawing (WPCD) the location of the site 







 


43 
LEC FOF.DOC 


specific BMPs to be employed during each phase of construction 


(initial elevation, grading, linear excavation and construction, and 


final grading/stabilization). Treatment control BMPs used during 


construction should enable testing of storm water runoff prior to 


discharge to the storm water system. BMPs shall include measures 


designed to prevent wind and water erosion in areas with existing 


soil contamination. 


I. Best Management Practices Narrative – The DESCP shall show 


the location (as identified on the WPCD), timing, and maintenance 


schedule of all erosion and sediment control BMPs to be used prior 


to initial grading, site elevation, and all project excavation and 


construction. Text with supporting calculation shall be included for 


each project specific BMP proposed for use prior to initial site 


elevation, grading, and project excavation and construction. Text 


with supporting calculation shall be included for each project 


specific BMP. BMP. Separate BMP implementation schedules 


shall be provided for each project element 


Verification: No later than 60 days prior to site mobilization, the project owner 


shall submit a copy of the DESCP to the CPM for review and approval. The 


DESCP shall include elements A through I for soil disturbing activities associated 


with site elevation, grading, foundation excavation, and site stabilization. 


SOIL&WATER 3: If groundwater is encountered during construction or 


operation of the LEC, the project owner shall comply with the 


requirements of the CVRWQCB Order NO. R5-2008-0081 for Waste 


Discharge Requirements for Dewatering and Other Low threat 


Discharges to Surface Waters. 


Verification: Prior to any groundwater discharge or dewatering activities, the 


project owner shall submit a complete Notice of Intent (NOI) to obtain coverage 


under CVRWQCB Order No. R5-2008-0081. The project owner shall submit 


copies to the CPM of all correspondence between the project owner and the 


CVRWQCB regarding Order No. R5-2008-0081 within 10 days of its receipt or 


submittal. This information shall include a copy of any waste discharge orders or 


other discharge requirements as determined by the CVRWQCB. 


SOIL&WATER 4: The project owner shall comply with the requirements of the 


General National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) 


Permit for Discharges of Storm Water Associated with Industrial 


Activity (WQO 97-03-DWQ). The project owner shall develop and 


implement a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (industrial 


SWPPP) for the operation of the LEC. 


Verification: Prior to commercial operation, the project owner shall submit to 


the CPM a copy of the industrial SWPPP. The project owner shall submit copies 


to the CPM of all correspondence between the project owner and the Central 


Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board regarding the industrial SWPPP 


within 10 days of its receipt or submittal. This information shall include a copy of 


the Notice of Intent for compliance with the General NPDES permit for operation 


of the LEC. 







 


44 
LEC FOF.DOC 


SOIL&WATER 5: The project owner shall comply with the City of Lodi (COL) 


Municipal Codes, Title 15, Chapter 15.60, and Title 17, Chapter 17.51 


regarding construction in a flood hazard zone. 


Verification: Prior to site mobilization, the project owner shall submit to the 


CPM a letter from the COL that states that the project has complied with the 


COL’s flood plain construction and elevation requirements. 


SOIL&WATER 6: The project owner shall provide the CPM two copies of the 


executed Recycled Water Purchase Agreement (agreement) with the 


COL for the long-term supply (30 – 35 years) of tertiary treated 


recycled water to the LEC. The agreement shall specify a maximum 


daily supply of 2.61mgd with a total annual maximum supply of 1,800 


AFY. The agreement shall specify all terms and costs for the delivery 


and use of recycled water by the LEC. The LEC shall not connect to 


the COL’s recycled water pipeline without the final agreement in place 


and submitted to the CPM. The project owner shall comply with the 


requirements of Title 22 and Title 17 of the California Code of 


Regulations and section 13523 of the California Water Code. 


Verification: No later than 60 days prior to the connection to the COL’s 


recycled water pipeline, the project owner shall submit two copies of the 


executed agreement for the supply and on-site use of recycled water at the LEC. 


The project owner shall submit to the CPM a copy of the Engineering Report and 


Cross Connection inspection and approval report from the California Department 


of Public Health prior to the delivery of recycled water from the COL. 


SOIL&WATER 7: Prior to initiation of well construction activities, the project 


owner shall submit a well construction application to the San Joaquin 


County Environmental Health Department (SJCEHD) in accordance 


the COL Municipal Code, Title 8, Chapter 8.08. The application shall 


contain all documentation, plans, and fees normally required for 


SJCEHD’s well permit. Copies shall also be submitted to the CPM for 


review and approval. The project shall not construct a supply well or 


extract and use any groundwater therefrom until the SJCEHD issues 


its written evaluation as to whether the proposed well construction and 


operation activities comply with all applicable county well requirements, 


and the CPM provides approval to construct the well. The project 


owner shall provide documentation to the CPM that the well has been 


properly completed. In accordance with California’s Water Code 


section 13754, the driller of the well shall submit to the Department of 


Water Resources (DWR) a Well Completion Report for each well 


installed. The project owner shall ensure the Well Completion reports 


are submitted. The project owner shall ensure compliance with all 


county water well standards and requirements for the life of the 


existing pumping well and any new pumping wells and shall provide 


the CPM with two (2) copies of all monitoring or other reports required 


for compliance with the SJCEHD’s water well standards and operation 


requirements, as well as any changes made to the operation of the 


well. 







 


45 
LEC FOF.DOC 


Groundwater shall not be used for any facility operation activity that is 


suitable for non-potable water use unless the source of recycled water 


is unavailable in the event of an emergency. For purposes of this 


Condition, the term emergency shall mean the inability for the LEC to 


take or for COL to deliver recycled water to the LEC in a quantity 


sufficient to meet LEC demand due to natural disaster or other 


circumstances beyond the control of the project owner and it is 


necessary for the LEC to continue to operate to serve any regulatory 


mandated requirements. The project owner shall not use potable 


water as an emergency backup supply for more than 14 calendar days 


of plant operation without CPM approval. 


Verification: The project owner shall do all of the following: 


1. No later than 30 days prior to the construction of the on-site water supply well, 


the project owner shall submit two (2) copies to the CPM of the water well 


construction application packet submitted to the SJCEHD. 


2. No later than 15 days prior to the construction of an onsite water supply well, 


the project owner shall submit two (2) copies of the written concurrence 


document from the SJCEHD indicating that the proposed well construction 


activities comply with all county well requirements and meet the requirements 


established by the county’s water well permit program . 


3. No later than 60 days after installation of any water supply well at the project 


site, the project owner shall ensure that the well driller submits a Well 


Completion Report to the DWR with a copy provided to the CPM. The project 


owner shall submit to the CPM together with the Well Completion Report a 


copy of well drilling logs, water quality analyses, and any inspection reports 


that may be completed. 


During well construction and for the operational life of the well, the project owner 


shall: 


1. Submit copies to the CPM any proposed well construction or operation 


changes for the wells. 


2. Submit copies of any water well monitoring reports required by the SJCEHD. 


3. No later than 15 days after completion of onsite water supply well, the project 


owner shall submit documentation to the CPM and the RWQCB that well 


drilling activities were conducted in compliance with Title 23, California Code 


of Regulations, Chapter 15, Discharges of Hazardous Wastes to Land, (23 


CCR, sections 2510 et seq.) requirements and that any onsite drilling sumps 


used for project drilling activities were removed in compliance with 23 CCR 


section 2511(c). 


SOIL&WATER 8: Prior to the use of potable or recycled water for operation of 


the LEC, the project owner shall install and maintain metering devices 


as part of the water supply and distribution system to monitor and 


record in gallons per day the volume of potable and recycled water 


supplied to the LEC. The metering devices shall be operational for the 


life of the project. An annual summary of daily water use by the LEC, 


differentiating between potable and recycled water, shall be submitted 


to the CPM in the annual compliance report. 







 


46 
LEC FOF.DOC 


Verification: At least 60 days prior to use of any water source for LEC 


operation, the project owner shall submit to the CPM evidence that metering 


devices have been installed and are operational on the potable and recycled 


pipelines serving the project. The project owner shall provide a report on the 


servicing, testing, and calibration of the metering devices in the annual 


compliance report. 


The project owner shall submit a water use summary report to the CPM in the 


annual compliance report for the life of the project. The annual summary report 


shall be based on and shall distinguish recorded daily use of potable and 


recycled water. The report shall include calculated monthly range, monthly 


average, and annual use by the project in both gallons per minute and acre-feet. 


After the first year and for subsequent years, this information shall also include 


the yearly range and yearly average recycled and potable water used by the 


project. 


SOIL & WATER 9: The project owner shall provide the CPM with evidence of a 


Class I Nonhazardous UIC Permit for the LEC injection well issued by 


the United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA). The 


project owner must comply with the specific Conditions regarding the 


construction and operation of the injection well including the water 


quality requirements for wastewater, sampling, analysis, and 


monitoring for the deep injection wells. 


Verification: Prior to site mobilization, the project owner will obtain and submit 


to the CPM the final approval of the UIC Class I Permit issued by USEPA Region 


IX for the construction and operation of the LEC deep injection well. Changes to 


the design, construction or operation of the injection well permitted by the UIC 


Class I Permit will be noticed in writing to the CPM and USEPA Region IX. 


During the life of the project, the project owner shall provide the CPM with the 


annual monitoring report summary required by the UIC Class I Permit and shall 


fully explain violations, exceedance, enforcement actions, or corrective actions 


related to permit compliance. The project owner will notify the CPM in writing of 


changes to the UIC Class I Permit that are instituted by either the project owner 


or USEPA Region IX including permit renewals. 


 


C.  Cultural Resources 


Findings 


Based on the uncontroverted evidence, the Commission makes the following 


findings and reaches the following conclusions: 


1. Existing structures within a radius of 0.5 mile of the LEC site were 


constructed less than 45 years ago, so no further survey or evaluation of the 


historical significance of these structures is required. 


2. The ―Sacred Lands‖ database did not indicate the presence of Native 


American cultural resources in the immediate LEC vicinity. 


3. Background research and archaeological field surveys showed an absence 


of prehistoric and historic-period archaeological sites in the LEC Project 







 


47 
LEC FOF.DOC 


area of analysis. 


4. No ethnographic resources have been identified on or near the LEC Project 


areas. 


5. A 100-foot-long segment of the WPRR rail line was the only identified 


potential cultural resource in or near the LEC Project area. 


6. The 100-foot-long segment of the WPRR rail line is not likely to be eligible 


for the CRHR under any of the CRHR criteria because the segment lacks 


integrity due to modern improvements made by UPRR. 


7. There are no known CRHR-eligible archaeological resources, ethnographic 


resources, built-environment resources, historic districts, or cultural 


landscapes in or near the LEC Project areas. 


8. Conditions of Certification CUL-1 through CUL-7 ensure that all impacts to 


cultural resources discovered during construction and operation are 


mitigated below the level of significance. 


9. The incremental effects on cultural resources of the LEC Project will not be 


cumulatively considerable when viewed in conjunction with other projects. 


 


Conclusions 


1. With implementation of the Conditions of Certification below, the LEC 


Project will conform to all applicable laws, ordinances, regulations, and 


standards relating to cultural resources as set forth in the pertinent portion 


of Appendix A of this Decision. 


2. Through implementation of the Conditions of Certification below, the 


project will have no significant environmental impacts. 


 


Conditions of Certification 


CUL-1 Prior to the start of ground disturbance, the project owner shall obtain 


the services of a Cultural Resources Specialist (CRS), and one or 


more alternate CRSs, if alternates are needed. The CRS shall 


manage all monitoring, mitigation, curation, and reporting activities 


required in accordance with the Conditions of Certification 


(Conditions). The CRS may elect to obtain the services of Cultural 


Resources Monitors (CRMs) and other technical specialists, if needed, 


to assist in monitoring, mitigation, and curation activities. The project 


owner shall ensure that the CRS makes recommendations regarding 


the eligibility for listing in the California Register of Historical 


Resources (CRHR) of any cultural resources that are newly discovered 


or that may be affected in an unanticipated manner. No ground 


disturbance shall occur prior to CPM approval of the CRS and 


alternates, unless such activities are specifically approved by the CPM. 


Approval of a CRS may be denied or revoked for reasons including but 


not limited to non-compliance on this or other Energy Commission 


projects. 







 


48 
LEC FOF.DOC 


CULTURAL RESOURCES SPECIALIST 


The resumes for the CRS and alternate(s) shall include information 


demonstrating to the satisfaction of the CPM that their training and 


backgrounds conform to the U.S. Secretary of Interior’s Professional 


Qualifications Standards, as published in Title 36, Code of Federal 


Regulations, part 61. In addition, the CRS shall have the following 


qualifications: 


1. The CRS’s qualifications shall be appropriate to the needs of the 


project and shall include a background in anthropology, 


archaeology, history, architectural history, or a related field; 


2. At least three years of archaeological or historical, as appropriate 


(per nature of predominant cultural resources on the project site), 


resource mitigation and field experience in California; and 


3. At least one year of experience in a decision-making capacity on 


cultural resources projects in California and the appropriate training 


and experience to knowledgably make recommendations regarding 


the significance of cultural resources. 


The resumes of the CRS and alternate CRS shall include the names 


and telephone numbers of contacts familiar with the work of the 


CRS/alternate CRS on referenced projects and demonstrate to the 


satisfaction of the CPM that the CRS/alternate CRS has the 


appropriate training and experience to implement effectively the 


Conditions. 


CULTURAL RESOURCES MONITORS 


CRMs shall have the following qualifications: 


1. a B.S. or B.A. degree in anthropology, archaeology, historical 


archaeology or a related field and one year experience monitoring 


in California; or 


2. an A.S. or A.A. degree in anthropology, archaeology, historical 


archaeology or a related field, and four years experience monitoring 


in California; or 


3. enrollment in upper division classes pursuing a degree in the fields 


of anthropology, archaeology, historical archaeology or a related 


field, and two years of monitoring experience in California. 


CULTURAL RESOURCES TECHNICAL SPECIALISTS 


The resume(s) of any additional technical specialist(s), e.g., historical 


archaeologist, historian, architectural historian, and/or physical 


anthropologist, shall be submitted to the CPM for approval. 


Verification: At least 45 days prior to the start of ground disturbance, the 


project owner shall submit the resume for the CRS, and alternate(s) if desired, to 


the CPM for review and approval. 


At least 10 days prior to a termination or release of the CRS, or within 10 days 


after the resignation of a CRS, the project owner shall submit the resume of the 


proposed new CRS to the CPM for review and approval. At the same time, the 


project owner shall also provide to the proposed new CRS the AFC and all 


cultural resources documents, field notes, photographs, and other cultural 







 


49 
LEC FOF.DOC 


resources materials generated by the project. If there is no alternate CRS in 


place to conduct the duties of the CRS, a previously approved monitor may serve 


in place of a CRS so that project-related ground disturbance may continue up to 


a maximum of three days without a CRS. If cultural resources are discovered 


then ground disturbance will remain halted until there is a CRS or alternate CRS 


to make a recommendation regarding significance. 


At least 20 days prior to ground disturbance, the CRS shall provide a letter 


naming anticipated CRMs for the project and stating that the identified CRMs 


meet the minimum qualifications for cultural resources monitoring required by 


this Condition. If additional CRMs are obtained during the project, the CRS 


shall provide additional letters to the CPM identifying the CRMs and attesting 


to the qualifications of the CRMs, at least five days prior to the CRMs 


beginning on-site duties. 


At least 10 days prior to any technical specialists beginning tasks, the 


resume(s) of the specialists shall be provided to the CPM for review and 


approval. 


At least 10 days prior to the start of ground disturbance, the project owner 


shall confirm in writing to the CPM that the approved CRS will be available for 


onsite work and is prepared to implement cultural resources Conditions. 


CUL-2 Prior to the start of ground disturbance, the project owner shall provide 


to the CRS, if the CRS has not previously worked on the project, 


copies of the AFC, data responses, confidential cultural resources 


reports, all supplements, and the Energy Commission’s Staff 


Assessment (SA) for the project. The project owner shall also provide 


the CRS and the CPM with maps and drawings showing the footprints 


of the power plant, all linear facility routes, all access roads, and all 


laydown areas. Maps shall include the appropriate USGS quadrangles 


and a map at an appropriate scale (e.g., 1:2000 or 1‖ = 200’) for 


plotting cultural features or materials. If the CRS requests 


enlargements or strip maps for linear facility routes, the project owner 


shall provide copies to the CRS and CPM. The CPM shall review map 


submittals and, in consultation with the CRS, approve those that are 


appropriate for use in cultural resources planning activities. No ground 


disturbance shall occur prior to CPM approval of maps and drawings, 


unless such activities are specifically approved by the CPM. 


If construction of the project would proceed in phases, maps and 


drawings not previously provided shall be provided to the CRS and 


CPM prior to the start of each phase. Written notice identifying the 


proposed schedule of each project phase shall be provided to the CRS 


and CPM. 


Weekly, until ground disturbance is completed, the project construction 


manager shall provide to the CRS and CPM a schedule of project 


activities for the following week, including the identification of area(s) 


where ground disturbance will occur during that week. 


The project owner shall notify the CRS and CPM of any changes to the 


scheduling of the construction phases. 







 


50 
LEC FOF.DOC 


Verification: At least 40 days prior to the start of ground disturbance, the 


project owner shall provide copies of the AFC, data responses, confidential 


cultural resources documents, all supplements, and the Energy Commission FSA 


to the CRS (if needed) and copies of the subject maps and drawings to the PG, 


CRS, and CPM. The CPM will review submittals in consultation with the CRS 


and approve maps and drawings suitable for cultural resources planning 


activities. 


At least 15 days prior to the start of ground disturbance, if there are changes to 


any project-related footprint, the project owner shall provide revised maps and 


drawings for the changes to the CRS and CPM. 


At least 15 days prior to the start of each phase of a phased project, the project 


owner shall submit the appropriate maps and drawings, if not previously 


provided, to the CRS and CPM. 


Weekly, during ground disturbance, a current schedule of anticipated project 


activity shall be provided to the CRS and CPM by letter, e-mail, or fax. 


Within five days of changing the scheduling of phases of a phased project, the 


project owner shall provide written notice of the changes to the CRS and CPM. 


CUL-3 Prior to the start of ground disturbance, the project owner shall submit 


the Cultural Resources Monitoring and Mitigation Plan (CRMMP), as 


prepared by or under the direction of the CRS, to the CPM for review 


and approval. The CRMMP shall follow the content and organization 


of the draft model CRMMP, provided by the CPM, and the author’s 


name shall appear on the title page of the CRMMP. The CRMMP shall 


identify general and specific measures to minimize potential impacts to 


sensitive cultural resources and shall incorporate the results of the 


geoarchaeological field study as reported to the CRS in the draft 


technical report for that study. Implementation of the CRMMP shall be 


the responsibility of the CRS and the project owner. Copies of the 


CRMMP shall reside with the CRS, alternate CRS, each CRM, and the 


project owner’s on-site construction manager. No ground disturbance 


shall occur prior to CPM approval of the CRMMP, unless such 


activities are specifically approved by the CPM. 


The CRMMP shall include, but not be limited to, the following elements 


and measures: 


1. The following statement included in the Introduction: ―Any 


discussion, summary, or paraphrasing of the Conditions of 


Certification in this CRMMP is intended as general guidance and as 


an aid to the user in understanding the Conditions and their 


implementation. The Conditions, as written in the Commission 


Decision, shall supersede any summarization, description, or 


interpretation of the conditions in the CRMMP. The Cultural 


Resources Conditions of Certification from the Commission 


Decision are contained in Appendix A.‖ 


2. An archaeological research design, scoped, to the extent feasible, 


to the time periods and the archaeological resource types, if any, 


established by the geoarchaeological field study, that includes a 







 


51 
LEC FOF.DOC 


discussion of research questions and testable hypotheses 


applicable to the project’s construction areas; 


3. A discussion of artifact collection, retention/disposal, and curation 


policies as related to the research questions formulated in the 


research design. A prescriptive treatment plan may be included in 


the CRMMP for limited data types; 


4. A description of the manner in which Native American observers or 


monitors will be included, the procedures to be used to select them, 


and their role and responsibilities; 


5. A statement that all cultural resources encountered shall be 


recorded on Department of Parks and Recreation (DPR) 523 forms 


and mapped and photographed. In addition, all archaeological 


materials retained as a result of the archaeological investigations 


(survey, testing, data recovery) shall be curated in accordance with 


the California State Historical Resources Commission’s Guidelines 


for the Curation of Archaeological Collections, into a retrievable 


storage collection in a public repository or museum; 


6. A statement that the project owner will pay all curation fees for 


artifacts recovered, if any, and for related documentation produced 


during cultural resources investigations conducted for the project. 


The project owner shall identify three possible curation facilities that 


could accept cultural resources materials resulting from project 


activities; 


7. A statement that the CRS has access to equipment and supplies 


necessary for site mapping, photography, and recovery of any 


cultural resource materials that are encountered during ground 


disturbance and cannot be treated prescriptively; and 


8. A description of the contents and format of the final Cultural 


Resource Report (CRR), if any which shall be prepared according 


to Archaeological Resource Management Report (ARMR) 


guidelines. 


Verification: Upon approval of the CRS proposed by the project owner, the 


CPM will provide to the CRS an electronic copy of the draft model CRMMP. 


At least 30 days prior to the start of ground disturbance, the project owner shall 


submit the subject CRMMP to the CPM for review and approval of the entire 


CRMMP. 


At least 30 days prior to the start of ground disturbance, in a letter to the CPM, 


the project owner shall agree to pay curation fees for any materials collected as a 


result of the archaeological investigations (survey, testing, and data recovery). 


CUL-4 If any archaeological monitoring or data recovery activities are 


conducted during project construction, the project owner shall submit 


the final Cultural Resources Report (CRR) to the CPM for approval. 


The final CRR shall be written by or under the direction of the CRS and 


shall be provided in the ARMR format. The final CRR shall report on 


all field activities including dates, times and locations, evaluations, data 


recovery, samplings, analyses, and results. All survey reports, DPR 







 


52 
LEC FOF.DOC 


523 forms, data recovery reports, and any additional research reports 


not previously submitted to the California Historical Resource 


Information System (CHRIS) and the State Historic Preservation 


Officer (SHPO) shall be included as appendices to the final CRR. 


If the project owner requests a suspension of ground disturbance 


and/or construction activities, then a draft CRR that covers all cultural 


resources activities associated with the project shall be prepared by 


the CRS and submitted to the CPM for review and approval on the 


same day as the suspension/extension request. The draft CRR shall 


be retained at the project site in a secure facility until ground 


disturbance and/or construction resumes or the project is withdrawn. If 


the project is withdrawn, then a final CRR shall be submitted to the 


CPM for review and approval at the same time as the withdrawal 


request. 


Verification: Within 90 days after completion of ground disturbance (including 


landscaping), the project owner shall submit the final CRR to the CPM for review 


and approval. If any reports have previously been sent to the CHRIS, then 


receipt letters from the CHRIS or other verification of receipt shall be included in 


an appendix. 


Within 90 days after completion of ground disturbance (including landscaping), if 


cultural materials requiring curation were collected, the project owner shall 


provide to the CPM a copy of an agreement with, or other written commitment 


from, a curation facility that meets the standards stated in the California State 


Historical Resources Commission’s Guidelines for the Curation of Archaeological 


Collections, to accept cultural materials, if any, from this project. Any 


agreements concerning curation will be retained and available for audit for the life 


of the project. 


Within 10 days after CPM approval of the CRR, the project owner shall provide 


documentation to the CPM confirming that copies of the final CRR have been 


provided to the SHPO, the CHRIS, the curating institution, if archaeological 


materials were collected, and to the Tribal Chairpersons of any Native American 


groups requesting copies of project-related reports. 


Within 30 days after requesting a suspension of construction activities, the 


project owner shall submit a draft CRR to the CPM for review and approval. 


CUL-5 Prior to and for the duration of ground disturbance, the project owner 


shall provide Worker Environmental Awareness Program (WEAP) 


training to all new workers within their first week of employment at the 


project site, laydown area, and along the linear facilities routes. The 


training shall be prepared by the CRS, may be conducted by any 


member of the archaeological team, and may be presented in the form 


of a video. The CRS shall be available (by telephone or in person) to 


answer questions posed by employees. The training may be 


discontinued when ground disturbance is completed or suspended, but 


must be resumed when ground disturbance, such as landscaping, 


resumes. The training shall include: 


1. A discussion of applicable laws and penalties under the law; 







 


53 
LEC FOF.DOC 


2. Samples or visuals of artifacts that might be found in the project 


vicinity; 


3. A discussion of what such artifacts may look like when partially 


buried, or wholly buried and then freshly exposed; 


4. A discussion of what prehistoric and historical archaeological 


deposits look like at the surface and when exposed during 


construction, and the range of variation in the appearance of such 


deposits; 


5. Instruction that the CRS, alternate CRS, and CRMs have the 


authority to halt project-related ground disturbance in the area of a 


discovery to an extent sufficient to ensure that the resource is 


protected from further impacts, as determined by the CRS; 


6. Instruction that employees are to halt work on their own in the 


vicinity of a potential cultural resources discovery and shall contact 


their supervisor and the CRS or CRM, and that redirection of work 


would be determined by the construction supervisor and the CRS; 


7. An informational brochure that identifies reporting procedures in the 


event of a discovery; 


8. An acknowledgement form signed by each worker indicating that 


they have received the training; and 


9. A sticker that shall be placed on hard hats indicating that 


environmental training has been completed. 


No ground disturbance shall occur prior to implementation of the 


WEAP program, unless such activities are specifically approved by the 


CPM. 


Verification: At least 30 days prior to the beginning of ground disturbance, 


the CRS shall provide the training program draft text and graphics and the 


informational brochure to the CPM for review and approval. 


At least 15 days prior to the beginning of ground disturbance, the CPM will 


provide to the project owner a WEAP Training Acknowledgement form for each 


WEAP-trained worker to sign. 


On a monthly basis, until ground disturbance is completed, the project owner 


shall provide in the Monthly Compliance Report (MCR) the WEAP Training 


Acknowledgement forms of workers who have completed the training in the prior 


month and a running total of all persons who have completed training to date. 


CUL-6 Based on the findings of the geoarchaeological study, no 


archaeological monitoring is required unless WEAP-trained 


construction workers identify cultural resources materials during 


excavations. In that event, construction shall cease in the vicinity of 


the discovery, the CRS shall be notified, and CUL-7 shall apply. When 


construction is resumed in the vicinity of a discovery, the project owner 


shall ensure that the CRS, alternate CRS, or CRMs monitor ground 


disturbance in the vicinity of the discovery until the CRS requests 


approval from the CRS to change the level of monitoring. The 


provisions of this Condition shall apply to any monitoring necessitated 


by cultural resources discoveries. 







 


54 
LEC FOF.DOC 


The research design in the CRMMP shall govern the collection, 


treatment, retention/disposal, and curation of any archaeological 


materials encountered. 


A Native American monitor shall be obtained to monitor ground 


disturbance if Native American artifacts are encountered during ground 


disturbance. Contact lists of interested Native Americans and 


guidelines for monitoring shall be obtained from the Native American 


Heritage Commission. Preference in selecting a monitor shall be given 


to Native Americans with traditional ties to the area that shall be 


monitored. If efforts to obtain the services of a qualified Native 


American monitor are unsuccessful, the project owner shall 


immediately inform the CPM. The CPM will either identify potential 


monitors or will allow ground disturbance to proceed without a Native 


American monitor. 


Full-time archaeological monitoring for this project shall be the 


archaeological monitoring of the earth-removing activities in the areas 


specified in the previous two paragraphs, for as long as the activities 


are ongoing. Full-time archaeological monitoring shall require at least 


two monitors per excavation area, where excavation equipment is 


actively removing dirt and hauling the excavated material further than 


fifty feet from the location of active excavation. In such a scenario, one 


monitor shall observe the location of active excavation and a second 


monitor shall inspect the dumped material. For excavation areas 


where the excavated dirt is dumped no further than 50 feet from the 


location of active excavation, one monitor shall both observe the 


location of active excavation and inspect the dumped material. 


On forms provided by the CPM, CRMs shall keep a daily log of any 


monitoring and other cultural resources activities and any instances of 


non-compliance with the Conditions and/or applicable LORS. Copies 


of the daily monitoring logs shall be provided by the CRS to the CPM, if 


requested by the CPM. From these logs, the CRS shall compile a 


monthly monitoring summary report to be included in the MCR. If there 


are no monitoring activities, the summary report shall specify why 


monitoring has been suspended. 


During monitoring the CRS or alternate CRS shall report daily to the 


CPM on the status of cultural resources-related activities at the project 


site, unless reducing or ending daily reporting is requested by the CRS 


and approved by the CPM. 


In the event that the CRS believes that the current level of monitoring 


is not appropriate in certain locations, a letter or e-mail detailing the 


justification for changing the level of monitoring shall be provided to the 


CPM for review and approval prior to any change in the level of 


monitoring. 


The CRS, at his or her discretion, or at the request of the CPM, may 


informally discuss cultural resources monitoring and mitigation 


activities with Energy Commission technical staff. 







 


55 
LEC FOF.DOC 


Cultural resources monitoring activities are the responsibility of the 


CRS. Any interference with monitoring activities, removal of a monitor 


from duties assigned by the CRS, or direction to a monitor to relocate 


monitoring activities by anyone other than the CRS shall be considered 


non-compliance with these Conditions. 


Upon becoming aware of any incidents of non-compliance with the 


Conditions and/or applicable LORS, the CRS and/or the project owner 


shall notify the CPM by telephone or e-mail within 24 hours. The CRS 


shall also recommend corrective action to resolve the problem or 


achieve compliance with the Conditions. When the issue is resolved, 


the CRS shall write a report describing the issue, the resolution of the 


issue, and the effectiveness of the resolution measures. This report 


shall be provided in the next MCR for the review of the CPM. 


Verification: At least 30 days prior to the start of ground disturbance, the 


CPM will provide to the CRS an electronic copy of a form to be used as a daily 


monitoring log. 


Monthly, while monitoring is on-going, the project owner shall include in each 


MCR a copy of the monthly summary report of cultural resources-related 


monitoring prepared by the CRS and shall attach any new DPR 523A forms 


completed for finds treated prescriptively, as specified in the CRMMP. 


At least 24 hours prior to implementing a proposed change in monitoring level, 


the project owner shall submit to the CPM, for review and approval, a letter or email 


(or some other form of communication acceptable to the CPM) detailing the 


CRS’s justification for changing the monitoring level. 


Daily, as long as no cultural resources are found, the CRS shall provide a 


statement that ―no cultural resources over 50 years of age were discovered‖ to 


the CPM as an e-mail or in some other form of communication acceptable to the 


CPM. 


At least 24 hours prior to reducing or ending daily reporting, the project owner 


shall submit to the CPM, for review and approval, a letter or e-mail (or some 


other form of communication acceptable to the CPM) detailing the CRS’s 


justification for reducing or ending daily reporting. 


No later than 30 days following the discovery of any Native American cultural 


materials, the project owner shall submit to the CPM copies of the information 


transmittal letters sent to the Chairpersons of the Native American tribes or 


groups who requested the information. Additionally, the project owner shall 


submit to the CPM copies of letters of transmittal for all subsequent responses to 


Native American requests for notification, consultation, and reports and records. 


Within 15 days of receiving them, the project owner shall submit to the CPM 


copies of any comments or information provided by Native Americans in 


response to the project owner’s transmittals of information. 


CUL-7 The project owner shall grant authority to halt project-related ground 


disturbance to the CRS, alternate CRS, and the CRMs in the event of 


a discovery. Redirection of ground disturbance shall be accomplished 


under the direction of the construction supervisor in consultation with 


the CRS. 







 


56 
LEC FOF.DOC 


In the event a cultural resource over 50 years of age (or if younger, 


determined exceptionally significant by the CPM) is found, or impacts 


to such a resource can be anticipated, ground disturbance shall be 


halted or redirected in the immediate vicinity of the discovery sufficient 


to ensure that the resource is protected from further impacts. The 


halting or redirection of ground disturbance shall remain in effect until 


the CRS has visited the discovery, and all of the following have 


occurred: 


1. The CRS has notified the project owner, and the CPM has been 


notified within 24 hours of the discovery, or by Monday morning if 


the cultural resources discovery occurs between 8:00 AM on Friday 


and 8:00 AM on Sunday morning, including a description of the 


discovery (or changes in character or attributes), of the action taken 


(i.e., work stoppage or redirection), a recommendation of CRHR 


eligibility, and recommendations for data recovery from any cultural 


resources discoveries, whether or not a determination of CRHR 


eligibility has been made. 


2. If the discovery would be of interest to Native Americans, the CRS 


has notified all Native American groups that expressed a desire to 


be notified in the event of such a discovery. 


3. The CRS has completed field notes, measurements, and 


photography for a DPR 523 ―Primary‖ form. The ―Description‖ entry 


of the DPR 523 ―Primary‖ form shall include a recommendation on 


the CRHR eligibility of the discovery. The project owner shall 


submit completed forms to the CPM. 


4. The CRS, the project owner, and the CPM have conferred, and the 


CPM has concurred with the recommended eligibility of the 


discovery and approved the CRS’s proposed data recovery, if any, 


including the curation of the artifacts, or other appropriate 


mitigation; and any necessary data recovery and mitigation have 


been completed. 


Verification: At least 30 days prior to the start of ground disturbance, the 


project owner shall provide the CPM and CRS with a letter confirming that the 


CRS, alternate CRS, and CRMs have the authority to halt project-related ground 


disturbance in the vicinity of a cultural resources discovery, and that the project 


owner shall ensure that the CRS notifies the CPM within 24 hours of a discovery, 


or by Monday morning if the cultural resources discovery occurs between 8:00 


AM on Friday and 8:00 AM on Sunday morning. 


Within 48 hours of the discovery of an archaeological or ethnographic resource, 


the project owner shall ensure that the CRS notifies all Native American groups 


that expressed a desire to be notified in the event of such a discovery. 


Unless the discovery can be treated prescriptively, as specified in the CRMMP, 


completed DPR523 forms for resources newly discovered during ground 


disturbance shall be submitted to the CPM for review and approval no later than 


24 hours following the notification of the CPM, or 48 hours following the 


completion of data recordation/recovery, whichever the CRS decides is more 







 


57 
LEC FOF.DOC 


appropriate for the subject cultural resource. 


 


D.  Geological and Paleontological Resources 


Findings 


Based on the uncontroverted evidence, we make the following findings and reach the 


following conclusions: 


1. Although there are no known paleontologic resources on the site, such resources 


may be discovered during project construction. If so, any potential impacts to 


paleontologic resources will mitigated to less than significant through 


implementation of the Conditions of Certification. 


2. The Conditions of Certification ensure that activities associated with construction 


and operation of the project will cause no significant adverse impacts to 


geological or paleontological resources. 


3. The Conditions of Certification are sufficient to ensure that the project complies 


with all applicable laws, ordinances, regulations, and standards identified in the 


appropriate portion of Appendix A of this Decision. 


 


Conclusions 


1. We therefore conclude that the project will not cause any significant adverse 


direct, indirect, or cumulative impacts to geological, mineralogic, or 


paleontological resources. 


 


Conditions of Certification 


PAL-1 The project owner shall provide the Compliance Project Manager (CPM) with 


the resume and qualifications of its Paleontological Resource Specialist 


(PRS) for review and approval. If the approved PRS is replaced prior to 


completion of project mitigation and submittal of the Paleontological 


Resources Report, the project owner shall obtain CPM approval of the 


replacement PRS. The project owner shall keep resumes on file for qualified 


Paleontological Resource Monitors (PRMs). If a PRM is replaced, the 


resume of the replacement PRM shall also be provided to the CPM. 


The PRS resume shall include the names and phone numbers of references. 


The resume shall also demonstrate to the satisfaction of the CPM the 


appropriate education and experience to accomplish the required 


paleontological resource tasks. 


As determined by the CPM, the PRS shall meet the minimum qualifications 


for a vertebrate paleontologist as described in the Society of Vertebrate 


Paleontology (SVP) guidelines of 1995. The experience of the PRS shall 


include the following: 


1. Institutional affiliations, appropriate credentials, and college degree; 







 


58 
LEC FOF.DOC 


2. Ability to recognize and collect fossils in the field; 


3. Local geological and biostratigraphic expertise; 


4. Proficiency in identifying vertebrate and invertebrate fossils; and 


5. At least three years of paleontological resource mitigation and field 


experience in California and at least one year of experience leading 


paleontological resource mitigation and field activities. 


The project owner shall ensure that the PRS obtains qualified paleontological 


resource monitors to monitor as he or she deems necessary on the project. 


Paleontologic Resource Monitors (PRMs) shall have the equivalent of the 


following qualifications: 


• BS or BA degree in geology or paleontology and one year of experience 


monitoring in California; or 


• AS or AA in geology, paleontology, or biology and four years’ experience 


monitoring in California; or 


• Enrollment in upper division classes pursuing a degree in the fields of 


geology or paleontology. 


Verification: At least 60 days prior to the start of ground disturbance, the project 


owner shall submit a resume and statement of availability of its designated PRS for onsite 


work. Prior to the termination or release of a PRS, the project owner shall submit 


the resume of the proposed new PRS to the CPM for review and approval. 


PAL-2 The project owner shall provide to the PRS and the CPM, maps and drawings 


showing the footprint of the power plant, construction laydown areas, and all 


related facilities. Maps shall identify all areas of the project where ground 


disturbance is anticipated. If the PRS requests enlargements or strip maps 


for linear facility routes, the project owner shall provide copies to the PRS and 


CPM. The site grading plan and plan and profile drawings for the utility lines 


would be acceptable for this purpose. The plan drawings should show the 


location, depth, and extent of all ground disturbances and be at a scale 


between 1 inch = 40 feet and 1 inch = 100 feet. If the footprint of the project 


or its linear facilities change, the project owner shall provide maps and 


drawings reflecting those changes to the PRS and CPM. 


If construction of the project proceeds in phases, maps and drawings may be 


submitted prior to the start of each phase. A letter identifying the proposed 


schedule of each project phase shall be provided to the PRS and CPM. 


Before work commences on affected phases, the project owner shall notify 


the PRS and CPM of any construction phase scheduling changes. 


At a minimum, the project owner shall ensure that the PRS or PRM consults 


weekly with the project superintendent or construction field manager to 


confirm area(s) to be worked the following week and until ground disturbance 


is completed. 


Verification: At least 30 days prior to the start of ground disturbance, the project 


owner shall provide the maps and drawings to the PRS and CPM. 


If there are changes to the footprint of the project, revised maps and drawings shall be 


provided to the PRS and CPM at least 15 days prior to the start of ground disturbance. 


If there are changes to the scheduling of the construction phases, the project owner 


shall submit a letter to the CPM within five days of identifying the changes. 







 


59 
LEC FOF.DOC 


PAL-3 If after review of the plans provided pursuant to PAL-2, or during subsequent 


construction, the PRS determines that materials with moderate or high 


paleontological sensitivity could be impacted, the project owner shall ensure 


that the PRS prepares, and the project owner submits to the CPM for review 


and approval, a paleontological resources monitoring and mitigation plan 


(PRMMP) to identify general and specific measures to minimize potential 


impacts to significant paleontological resources. The PRMMP shall function 


as the formal guide for monitoring, collecting, and sampling activities and may 


be modified with CPM approval. This document shall be used as the basis of 


discussion when on-site decisions or changes to mitigation or monitoring 


procedures are proposed. Copies of the PRMMP shall reside with the PRS, 


each monitor, the project owner’s on-site manager, and the CPM. 


The PRMMP shall be developed in accordance with the guidelines of the 


Society of Vertebrate Paleontology (SVP 1995) and shall include, but not be 


limited to, the following: 


1. Assurance that the performance and sequence of project-related tasks, 


such as any literature searches, pre-construction surveys, worker 


environmental training, fieldwork, flagging or staking, construction 


monitoring, mapping and data recovery, fossil preparation and collection, 


identification and inventory, preparation of final reports, and transmittal of 


materials for curation will be performed according to PRMMP procedures; 


2. Identification of the person(s) expected to assist with each of the tasks 


identified within the PRMMP and the names and qualifications of 


paleontological resource monitors (PRMs); 


3. A thorough discussion of the anticipated geologic units expected to be 


encountered, the location and depth of the units relative to the project 


when known, and the known sensitivity of those units based on the 


occurrence of fossils either in that unit or in correlative units; 


4. An explanation of why, how, and how much sampling is expected to take 


place and in what units. Include descriptions of different sampling 


procedures that shall be used for fine-grained and coarse-grained units; 


5. A discussion of the locations of where the monitoring of project 


construction activities is deemed necessary, and a proposed plan for 


monitoring and sampling; 


6. A discussion of procedures to be followed in the event of a significant 


fossil discovery, halting construction, resuming construction, and how 


notifications will be performed; 


7. A list of equipment and supplies necessary for collection of fossil 


materials and any specialized equipment needed to prepare, remove, 


load, transport, and analyze large-sized fossils or extensive fossil 


deposits; 


8. Procedures for inventory, preparation, and delivery for curation into a 


retrievable storage collection in a public repository or museum, which 


meet the Society of Vertebrate Paleontology’s standards and 


requirements for the curation of paleontological resources; 


9. Identification of the institution that will be approached to receive data and 







 


60 
LEC FOF.DOC 


fossil materials collected, requirements or specifications for materials 


delivered for curation, and how they will be met, and the name and phone 


number of the contact person at the institution; and 


10. A copy of the paleontological Conditions of Certification. 


Verification: Not more than 5 days after notice from the PRS that 


paleontologically sensitive sediments are, or are likely to be impacted, the project owner 


shall provide a copy of the PRMMP to the CPM. The PRMMP shall include an affidavit 


of authorship by the PRS and acceptance of the PRMMP by the project owner 


evidenced by a signature. 


PAL-4 If after review of the plans provided pursuant to PAL-2, the PRS determines 


that materials with moderate, high, or unknown paleontological sensitivity 


could be impacted then, prior to ground disturbance and for the duration of 


construction activities involving ground disturbance, the project owner and the 


PRS shall prepare and conduct weekly CPM-approved training for the 


following workers: project managers, construction supervisors, foremen, and 


general workers involved with or who operate ground-disturbing equipment or 


tools. Workers shall not excavate in sensitive units prior to receiving CPMapproved 


worker training. Worker training shall consist of a CPM-approved 


video or in-person presentation. The training program may be combined with 


other training programs prepared for cultural and biological resources, 


hazardous materials, or other areas of interest or concern. No ground 


disturbance shall occur prior to CPM approval of the Worker Environmental 


Awareness Program (WEAP), unless specifically approved by the CPM. 


The WEAP shall address the possibility of encountering paleontological 


resources in the field, the sensitivity and importance of these resources, and 


legal obligations to preserve and protect these resources. 


The training shall include: 


1. A discussion of applicable laws and penalties under the law; 


2. Good quality photographs or physical examples of vertebrate fossils for 


project sites containing units of high paleontologic sensitivity; 


3. Information that the PRS or PRM has the authority to halt or redirect 


construction in the event of a discovery or unanticipated impact to a 


paleontological resource; 


4. Instruction that employees are to halt or redirect work in the vicinity of a 


find and to contact their supervisor and the PRS or PRM; 


5. An informational brochure that identifies reporting procedures in the event 


of a discovery; 


6. A WEAP certification of completion form signed by each worker indicating 


that he/she has received the training; and 


7. A sticker that shall be placed on hard hats indicating that environmental 


training has been completed. 


Verification: Not more than 5 days prior to ground disturbance, after 


implementation of a PRMMP, the project owner shall submit the proposed WEAP, 


including the brochure, with the set of reporting procedures for workers to follow. 


Not more than 20 days after implementation of a PRMMP, the project owner shall 


submit the script and final video to the CPM for approval if the project owner is planning 







 


61 
LEC FOF.DOC 


to use a video for interim training. 


If the owner requests an alternate paleontological trainer, the resume and qualifications 


of the trainer shall be submitted to the CPM for review and approval prior to installation 


of an alternate trainer. Alternate trainers shall not conduct training prior to CPM 


authorization. 


In the monthly compliance report (MCR), the project owner shall provide copies of the 


WEAP certification of completion forms with the names of those trained and the trainer 


or type of training (in-person or video) offered that month. The MCR shall also include a 


running total of all persons who have completed the training to date. 


PAL-5 Subject to PAL-3, the project owner shall ensure that the PRS and PRM(s) 


monitor consistent with the PRMMP all construction-related grading, 


excavation, trenching, and augering in areas where potential fossil-bearing 


materials have been identified, both at the site and along any constructed 


linear facilities associated with the project. 


Upon the implementation of a PRMMP (see PAL-3), the project owner shall 


ensure that the PRS and PRM(s) have the authority to halt or redirect 


construction if paleontological resources are encountered. The project owner 


shall ensure that there is no interference with monitoring activities unless 


directed by the PRS. Monitoring activities shall be conducted as follows: 


1. Any change of monitoring from the accepted schedule in the PRMMP shall 


be proposed in a letter or email from the PRS and the project owner to the 


CPM prior to the change in monitoring and will be included in the monthly 


compliance report. The letter or email shall include the justification for the 


change in monitoring and be submitted to the CPM for review and 


approval. 


2. The project owner shall ensure that the PRM(s) keeps a daily monitoring 


log of paleontological resource activities. The PRS may informally discuss 


paleontological resource monitoring and mitigation activities with the CPM 


at any time. 


3. The project owner shall ensure that the PRS notifies the CPM within 24 


hours of the occurrence of any incidents of non-compliance with any 


paleontological resources Conditions of Certification. The PRS shall 


recommend corrective action to resolve the issues or achieve compliance 


with the Conditions of Certification. 


4. For any significant paleontological resources encountered, either the 


project owner or the PRS shall notify the CPM within 24 hours, or Monday 


morning in the case of a weekend event where construction has been 


halted because of a paleontological find. 


Upon implementation of a PRMMP, the project owner shall ensure that the 


PRS prepares a summary of monitoring and other paleontological activities 


placed in the monthly compliance reports. The summary will include the 


name(s) of PRS or PRM(s) active during the month; general descriptions of 


training and monitored construction activities; and general locations of 


excavations, grading, and other activities. A section of the report shall include 


the geologic units or subunits encountered, descriptions of samplings within 


each unit, and a list of identified fossils. A final section of the report will 







 


62 
LEC FOF.DOC 


address any issues or concerns about the project relating to paleontologic 


monitoring, including any incidents of non-compliance or any changes to the 


monitoring plan that have been approved by the CPM. If no monitoring took 


place during the month, the report shall include an explanation in the 


summary as to why monitoring was not conducted. 


Verification: After implementation of a PRMMP, the project owner shall ensure 


that the PRS submits the summary of monitoring and paleontological activities in the 


MCR. When feasible, the CPM shall be notified 10 days in advance of any proposed 


changes in monitoring different from the plan identified in the PRMMP. If there is any 


unforeseen change in monitoring, the notice shall be given as soon as possible prior to 


implementation of the change. 


PAL-6 The project owner, through the designated PRS, shall ensure that all 


components of the PRMMP are adequately performed including collection of 


fossil materials, preparation of fossil materials for analysis, analysis of fossils, 


identification and inventory of fossils, the preparation of fossils for curation, 


and the delivery for curation of all significant paleontological resource 


materials encountered and collected during project construction. 


Verification: The project owner shall maintain in his/her compliance file copies of 


signed contracts or agreements with the designated PRS and other qualified research 


specialists. The project owner shall maintain these files for a period of three years after 


project completion and approval of the CPM-approved paleontological resource report 


(see PAL-7). The project owner shall be responsible for paying any curation fees 


charged by the museum for fossils collected and curated as a result of paleontological 


mitigation. A copy of the letter of transmittal submitting the fossils to the curating 


institution shall be provided to the CPM. 


PAL-7 The project owner shall ensure preparation of a Paleontological Resources 


Report (PRR) by the designated PRS. The PRR shall be prepared following 


completion of the ground-disturbing activities. The PRR shall include an 


analysis of the collected fossil materials and related information and submit it 


to the CPM for review and approval. 


The report shall include, but is not limited to, a description and inventory of 


recovered fossil materials; a map showing the location of paleontological 


resources encountered; determinations of sensitivity and significance; and a 


statement by the PRS that project impacts to paleontological resources have 


been mitigated below the level of significance. 


Verification: Within 90 days after completion of ground-disturbing activities, 


including landscaping, the project owner shall submit the PRR under confidential cover 


to the CPM. 


 


 







 


63 
LEC FOF.DOC 


VII.  LOCAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT 


A.  Land Use 


Findings 


Based on the uncontroverted evidence, the Commission makes the following 


findings: 


1. Local land use ordinances and policies applicable to the Lodi Energy 


Center (LEC) include the City of Lodi General Plan and Municipal Code, 


the San Joaquin County General Plan 2010, San Joaquin County 


Development Title 9 (Zoning Ordinance), and the San Joaquin County 


Council of Governments Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP). 


2. The LEC site, laydown and parking areas, and portions of the gas pipeline 


route are situated on land designated Public/Quasi-Public by the city’s 


General Plan, and zoned Public and Community Facilities (PF), which 


allows power plants and gas pipelines under the category of ―Utility 


Facility.‖ 


3. Most of the gas pipeline route is located in unincorporated San Joaquin 


County on land designated General Agriculture; however, under San 


Joaquin County Development Title 9, ―Utility Services‖ are a permitted use 


in the General Agriculture zone subject to site approval. 


4. The LEC site is not subject to a Williamson Act contract and will not result 


in conversion of farmland to non-agricultural uses. 


5. The LEC’s natural gas pipeline crosses agricultural properties in San 


Joaquin County that are subject to Williamson Act contracts; however, 


―Utility Services‖ are a permitted use on Williamson Act properties. 


6. Construction of the LEC’s gas pipeline within the existing STIG gas 


pipeline corridor will not convert farmland to non-agricultural uses because 


the corridor follows a straight alignment along agricultural field boundaries 


and does not interfere with agricultural operations. 


7. To ensure that no permanent impacts to agriculture result from installation 


of the LEC’s gas pipeline, the topsoil removed during excavation will be 


used to restore the land to its pre-construction condition. 


8. There is no evidence that the project will physically divide or disrupt an 


established community. 


9. The LEC is subject to the San Joaquin County Multi-Species Habitat 


Conservation and Open Space Plan (SJMSCP) but construction at the site 


does not require mitigation because the site has been disturbed by 


adjacent industrial development, which has already provided SJMSCP 


mitigation; however, construction of the LEC’s gas pipeline and 


transmission line on agricultural land requires mitigation as described in the 


Biological Resources section of this Decision 


10. The LEC is consistent with applicable land use LORS. 


11. The LEC is compatible with surrounding industrial uses and will not result 


in any unmitigated public health or environmental impacts to sensitive 


receptors. 







 


64 
LEC FOF.DOC 


12. The LEC will comply with City of Lodi requirements for 100-year floodplain 


construction as described in Condition LAND USE-1, below. 


13. The LEC gas pipeline will comply with the San Joaquin County’s Airport 


Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP) requirements for installation of the 


pipeline more than 36 inches below ground level to avoid conflict with 


Kingdon Airport safety concerns. 


14. There is no evidence of any direct, indirect, or cumulative land use impacts 


resulting from development of the Lodi Energy Center. 


 


Conclusions 


1. With implementation of the mitigation measures specified in this Decision, 


and in the Condition of Certification below, we conclude that construction and 


operation of the Lodi Energy Center will not result in significant adverse 


direct, indirect, and cumulative land use impacts. 


2. The record contains an adequate analysis of the land use laws, ordinances, 


regulations, and standards that are relevant to the project and establishes 


that the project will not create any unmitigated, significantly adverse land 


effects as defined under the California Environmental Quality Act. 


3. The Condition of Certification, below, ensures that Lodi Energy Center will 


designed, constructed, and operated in conformance with the applicable land 


use laws, ordinances, regulations, and standards identified in the evidentiary 


record and listed in the pertinent portion of Appendix A of this Decision. 


 


Conditions of Certification 


LAND-1 The project owner shall design and construct the project in accordance 


with applicable development standards in the City of Lodi Municipal 


Code, Title 15 Buildings and Construction, Chapters 15.16.140 and 


15.60 Flood Damage Prevention, and Title 17 Zoning, Chapter 17.51 


FP Floodplain District and all other applicable LORS. 


1. All new construction and substantial improvements shall be 


anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, or lateral movement of the 


structure resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, including 


the effects of buoyancy. 


2. All new construction and substantial improvements shall be 


constructed with materials and utility equipment resistant to flood 


damage using methods and practices that minimize flood damage. 


3. All new construction and substantial improvements shall be 


constructed with electrical, heating, ventilation, plumbing, and air 


conditioning equipment and other service facilities that are designed 


and/or located so as to prevent water from entering or accumulating 


within the components during conditions of flooding. 


4. New construction and substantial improvement of any structure 


shall have the lowest floor, including basement, elevated to or above 







 


65 
LEC FOF.DOC 


the base flood elevation. Nonresidential structures may meet the 


standards in paragraph 2, above, of Condition LAND-1. Upon the 


completion of the structure the elevation of the lowest floor including 


basement shall be certified by a registered professional engineer or 


surveyor, or verified by the community building inspector to be properly 


elevated. Such certification or verification shall be provided to the 


floodplain administrator. 


5. Nonresidential construction shall either be elevated in conformance 


with paragraphs 1 and 2, above, of Condition LAND-1, or together with 


attendant utility and sanitary facilities: (a) be flood proofed so that 


below the base flood level the structure is watertight with walls 


substantially impermeable to the passage of water; (b) have structural 


components capable of resisting hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads 


and effects of buoyancy; and (c) be certified by a registered 


professional engineer or architect that the standards of this subsection 


are satisfied. Such certifications shall be provided to the floodplain 


administrator. New nonresidential structures shall be flood proofed or 


elevated eighteen inches or more above the level of the base flood. 


6. Require, for all new construction and substantial improvements, 


that fully enclosed areas below the lowest floor that are subject to 


flooding shall be designed to automatically equalize hydrostatic flood 


forces on exterior walls by allowing for the entry and exit of 


floodwaters. Designs for meeting this requirement must either be 


certified by a registered professional engineer or architect, or meet or 


exceed the following minimum criteria: either a minimum of two 


openings having a total net area of not less than one square inch for 


every square foot of enclosed area subject to flooding shall be 


provided. The bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one foot 


above grade. Openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, valves 


or other coverings or devices; provided, that they permit the automatic 


entry and exit of floodwaters; or are certified to comply with a local 


flood proofing standard approved by the Federal Insurance 


Administration. 


Verification: At least 60 days prior to the start of construction the project 


owner shall submit to the Compliance Project Manager (CPM) written 


documentation including evidence of review by the city of Lodi that the project 


conforms to the standards in the City of Lodi Municipal Code, Title 15 Buildings 


and Construction, Chapters 15.16.140 and 15.60 Flood Damage Prevention, and 


Title 17 Zoning, Chapter 17.51 FP Floodplain District and all other applicable 


LORS. 


 


B.  Traffic and Transportation 


Findings 


Based on the uncontroverted evidence, we find and conclude as follows: 







 


66 
LEC FOF.DOC 


1. The total average construction traffic impact will be 365 vehicle trips with a 


total peak construction impact of 558 vehicle round trips. 


2. Development and implementation of a construction traffic control program 


will offset any temporary, short-term increases in congestion resulting from 


construction of the project and its linear facilities. 


3. During operation, seven full-time employees will generate 14 one-way 


trips to and from the site daily. 


4. The additional traffic associated with construction and operation of the 


LEC Project will not have a significant adverse effect on existing levels of 


service for roads and intersections in the project vicinity. 


5. Potential adverse impacts associated with the transportation of hazardous 


materials during construction and operation of the project will be mitigated 


to insignificance by compliance with applicable federal and state laws. 


6. The project will not result in significant impacts to nearby airports or 


aviation safety. 


 


Conclusions 


1. The LEC will comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, regulations, and 


standards regarding traffic and transportation as identified in the pertinent 


portion of Appendix A of this Decision. 


2. Construction and operation of the LEC project, as mitigated herein, will not 


result in any significant, direct, indirect, or cumulative adverse impacts to 


the local or regional traffic and transportation system. 


 


Conditions of Certification 


TRANS-1 The project owner shall submit the proposed traffic control and 


implementation plan to the affected local jurisdiction, San Joaquin 


County, the California Highway Patrol, and Caltrans for review and 


comment. If no comments are received from the County, the 


California Highway Patrol, or Caltrans within 30 days of submittal, 


the project owner may proceed with preparation of final documents. 


The project owner shall provide to the CPM a copy of the transmittal 


letter submitted to the affected local jurisdiction, the California 


Highway Patrol, and Caltrans requesting their review of the traffic 


control and implementation plan. The project owner shall provide 


any comment letters to the CPM for review and approval. 


Verification: At least 60 days prior to start of site mobilization, the project owner 


shall provide to the city of Lodi and county of Joaquin, Caltrans, and the 


California Highway Patrol for review and comment and to the CPM for review and 


approval, a copy of the construction traffic control plan. The plan must document 


consultation with these agencies. The CPM shall review and approve the final 


traffic control plan within thirty (30) days of submission. 


TRANS-2 Prior to site mobilization activities, the project owner shall prepare a 







 


67 
LEC FOF.DOC 


mitigation plan for Eight Mile Road, North Thornton Road, I-5 


Frontage Road, and Cord Road. The intent of this plan is to ensure 


that if these roadways are damaged by project construction, they 


will be repaired and reconstructed to original or as near original 


condition as possible. This plan shall include: 


• Documentation of the pre-construction condition of Eight 


Mile Road, North Thornton Road, I-5 Frontage Road, and 


Cord Road. Prior to the start of site mobilization, the project 


owner shall provide to the CPM photographs or videotape of 


these roadways. 


• Documentation of any portions of Eight Mile Road, North 


Thornton Road, I-5 Frontage Road, and Cord Road that may 


be inadequate to accommodate oversize or large 


construction vehicles and identification of necessary 


remediation measures; and 


• Reconstruction of portions of Eight Mile Road, North 


Thornton Road, I-5 Frontage Road, and Cord Road that are 


damaged by project construction due to oversize or 


overweight construction vehicles. 


Verification: At least 90 days prior to the start of site mobilization, the 


project owner shall submit a mitigation plan focused on restoring Eight Mile 


Road, North Thornton Road, I-5 Frontage Road, and Cord Road to its pre-project 


condition to the San Joaquin County Planning Department for review and 


comment and to the CPM for review and approval. If no comments are received 


from the County Planning Department and the CPM within 30 days of submittal, 


the project owner may proceed with preparation of final documents. 


 


C.  Socioeconomics 


Findings 


Based on the persuasive weight of the evidence, we find as follows: 


1. The LEC will draw primarily upon the local labor force from San Joaquin 


County for the construction and the operation workforce. 


2. The project will not cause an influx of a significant number of construction or 


operation workers into the local area. 


3. The project is not likely to have a significant adverse effect upon local 


employment, housing, schools, medical resources, or fire and police 


protection. 


4. The project will have a construction payroll of approximately $26.8 million. 


5. LEC will result in local direct, indirect, and induced benefits – both fiscal and 


non-fiscal. 


6. The project will likely result in generation of secondary jobs and income and 


increased revenue from sales taxes due to construction activities. 


7. Construction and operation of the project will not result in any direct, 


indirect, or cumulative adverse socioeconomic impacts. 







 


68 
LEC FOF.DOC 


8. Federal environmental justice guidelines are not binding in this case. 


Nevertheless, the analysis of record has been performed in conformity 


therewith. 


9. Minority and low income populations exist within a six mile radius of the site; 


however, the LEC will not cause or contribute to disproportionate impacts 


upon minority or low income groups 


10. Siting of the LEC, and the analysis thereof, are consistent with the principles 


underlying environmental justice. 


11. The LEC’s contribution to cumulative impacts, in conjunction with the 


impacts from other reasonably foreseeable projects, is adequately 


addressed in the evidence of record and in appropriate portions of this 


Decision. 


 


Conclusions 


1. We therefore conclude that the project construction and operation 


activities will create some degree of benefit to the local area and will 


conform to principles of environmental justice. No Conditions of 


Certification are required for this topic because no significant adverse 


socioeconomics impacts will occur as a result of construction and 


operation of the LEC. 


 


D.  Noise and Vibration 


Findings 


Based on the uncontroverted evidence of record, the Commission makes the 


following findings and reaches the following conclusions: 


1. Construction and operation of the LEC will not significantly increase noise 


levels above existing ambient levels in the surrounding community. 


2. Construction noise levels are temporary and transitory in nature and will 


be mitigated to the extent feasible by employing measures such as sound 


reduction devices and limiting construction to day-time hours in 


accordance with local noise control laws and ordinances. 


3. Measures contained in the Conditions of Certification and compliance with 


local LORS will assure that pile driving activities are mitigated to below a 


level of significance. 


4. Operational noise will not cause significant adverse impacts to nearby 


residences. 


5. The project owner will implement measures to protect workers from injury 


due to excessive noise levels. 


6. The LEC will not create ground or airborne vibrations which cause 


significant off-site impacts. 


7. Implementation of the Conditions of Certification, below, ensure that 


project-related noise emissions will not cause significant adverse impacts 







 


69 
LEC FOF.DOC 


to sensitive noise receptors. 


 


Conclusions 


1. The Commission concludes that implementation of the following 


Conditions of Certification ensure that the LEC will comply with the 


applicable laws, ordinances, regulations, and standards on noise and 


vibration as set forth in the pertinent portion of Appendix A of this 


Decision, and that the project will not cause indirect, direct, or cumulative 


significant adverse noise impacts. 


 


Conditions of Certification 


NOISE-1 At least 15 days prior to the start of ground disturbance, the project 


owner shall notify all residents within two miles of the site and one mile 


of the linear facilities, by mail or other effective means, of the 


commencement of project construction. At the same time, the project 


owner shall establish a telephone number for use by the public to 


report any undesirable noise conditions associated with the 


construction and operation of the project and include that telephone 


number in the above notice. If the telephone is not staffed 24 hours 


per day, the project owner shall include an automatic answering 


feature, with date and time stamp recording, to answer calls when the 


phone is unattended. This telephone number shall be posted at the 


project site during construction in a manner visible to passersby. This 


telephone number shall be maintained until the project has been 


operational for at least one year. 


Verification: Prior to ground disturbance, the project owner shall transmit to 


the Compliance Project Manager (CPM) a statement, signed by the project 


owner’s project manager, stating that the above notification has been performed 


and describing the method of that notification, verifying that the telephone 


number has been established and posted at the site, and giving that telephone 


number. 


NOISE COMPLAINT PROCESS 


NOISE-2 Throughout the construction and operation of The LEC, the project 


owner shall document, investigate, evaluate, and attempt to resolve all 


project-related noise complaints. The project owner or authorized 


agent shall: 


• Use the Noise Complaint Resolution Form (below), or a 


functionally equivalent procedure acceptable to the CPM, to 


document and respond to each noise complaint; 


• Attempt to contact the person(s) making the noise complaint 


within 24 hours; 


• Conduct an investigation to determine the source of noise 


related to the complaint; 







 


70 
LEC FOF.DOC 


• Take all feasible measures to reduce the noise at its source if 


the noise is project related; and 


• Submit a report documenting the complaint and the actions 


taken. The report shall include: a complaint summary, 


including final results of noise reduction efforts, and if 


obtainable, a signed statement by the complainant stating that 


the noise problem is resolved to the complainant’s satisfaction. 


Verification: Within five days of receiving a noise complaint, the project owner 


shall file a copy of the Noise Complaint Resolution Form with the CPM, 


documenting the resolution of the complaint. If mitigation is required to resolve a 


complaint, and the complaint is not resolved within a three-day period, the project 


owner shall submit an updated Noise Complaint Resolution Form when the 


mitigation is implemented. 


NOISE-3 The project owner shall submit to the CPM for review and approval a 


noise control program and a statement, signed by the project owner’s 


project manager, verifying that the noise control program will be 


implemented throughout construction of the project. The noise control 


program shall be used to reduce employee exposure to high noise 


levels during construction and also to comply with applicable OSHA 


and Cal/OSHA standards. 


Verification: At least 30 days prior to the start of ground disturbance, the 


project owner shall submit to the CPM the noise control program and the project 


owner’s project manager’s signed statement. The project owner shall make the 


program available to Cal/OSHA upon request. 


NOISE RESTRICTIONS 


NOISE-4 The project design and implementation shall include appropriate noise 


mitigation measures adequate to ensure that the noise levels due to 


operation of the project alone will not exceed: an hourly average of 


45 dBA, measured at or near monitoring locations M1 (approximately 


4,250 feet north of the project site boundary) and M2 (approximately 


5,500 feet northeast of the project site boundary); an hourly average of 


44 dBA, measured at or near monitoring location M3 (approximately 


7,000 feet southeast of the project site boundary); and an hourly 


average of 42 dBA, measured at or near monitoring location M4 


(approximately 10,000 feet south of the project site boundary). 


No new pure-tone components shall be caused by the project. No 


single piece of equipment shall be allowed to stand out as a source of 


noise that draws legitimate complaints. 


A. When the project first achieves a sustained output of 85 percent or 


greater of rated capacity, the project owner shall conduct a 


community noise survey at monitoring location M4, or at a closer 


location acceptable to the CPM. This survey during the power 


plant’s full-load operation shall also include measurement of onethird 


octave band sound pressure levels to ensure that no new 


pure-tone noise components have been caused by the project. 


During the period of this survey, the project owner shall conduct a 







 


71 
LEC FOF.DOC 


survey of noise at monitoring locations M1, M2, and M3, or at 


closer locations acceptable to the CPM. The short-term noise 


measurements at this location shall be conducted during the nighttime 


hours of 10:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m. 


The measurement of power plant noise for the purposes of 


demonstrating compliance with this Condition of Certification may 


alternatively be made at a location, acceptable to the CPM, closer 


to the plant (e.g., 400 feet from the plant boundary) and this 


measured level then mathematically extrapolated to determine the 


plant noise contribution at the affected residence. The character of 


the plant noise shall be evaluated at the affected receptor locations 


to determine the presence of pure tones or other dominant sources 


of plant noise. 


B. If the results from the noise survey indicate that the power plant 


noise at the affected receptor sites exceeds the above values, 


mitigation measures shall be implemented to reduce noise to a 


level of compliance with these limits. 


C. If the results from the noise survey indicate that pure tones are 


present, mitigation measures shall be implemented to eliminate the 


pure tones. 


Verification: The survey shall take place within 30 days of the project first 


achieving a sustained output of 85 percent or greater of rated capacity. Within 


15 days after completing the survey, the project owner shall submit a summary 


report of the survey to the CPM. Included in the survey report shall be a 


description of any additional mitigation measures necessary to achieve 


compliance with the above listed noise limit, and a schedule, subject to CPM 


approval, for implementing these measures. When these measures are in place, 


the project owner shall repeat the noise survey. 


NOISE-5 Following the project’s first achieving a sustained output of 85 percent 


or greater of rated capacity, the project owner shall conduct an 


occupational noise survey to identify the noise hazardous areas in the 


facility. 


The survey shall be conducted by a qualified person in accordance 


with the provisions of Title 8, California Code of Regulations sections 


5095–5099 and Title 29, Code of Federal Regulations section 1910.95. 


The survey results shall be used to determine the magnitude of 


employee noise exposure. 


The project owner shall prepare a report of the survey results and, if 


necessary, identify proposed mitigation measures that will be 


employed to comply with the applicable California and federal 


regulations. 


Verification: Within 30 days after completing the survey, the project owner 


shall submit the noise survey report to the CPM. The project owner shall make 


the report available to OSHA and Cal/OSHA upon request. 


STEAM BLOW RESTRICTIONS 


NOISE-6 The project owner shall equip the steam blow piping with a temporary 







 


72 
LEC FOF.DOC 


silencer. The project owner shall conduct steam blows only during the 


hours of 7:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m. 


Verification: At least 15 days prior to the first steam blow, the project owner 


shall submit to the CPM drawings or other information describing the temporary 


steam blow silencer and a description of the steam blow schedule. 


NOISE-7 At least 15 days prior to the first steam blow(s), the project owner shall 


notify all residents or business owners within one miles of the site of 


the planned steam blow activity, and shall make the notification 


available to other area residents in an appropriate manner. The 


notification may be in the form of letters to the area residences, 


telephone calls, fliers or other effective means. The notification shall 


include a description of the purpose and nature of the steam blow(s), 


the proposed schedule, the expected sound levels, and the 


explanation that it is a one-time operation and not a part of normal 


plant operations. 


Verification: Within five days of notifying these entities, the project owner 


shall send a letter to the CPM confirming that they have been notified of the 


planned steam blow activities, including a description of the method(s) of that 


notification. 


CONSTRUCTION TIME RESTRICTIONS 


NOISE-8 Heavy equipment operation and noisy construction work relating to any 


project features shall be restricted to the times delineated below: 


• Any Day: 6:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m. 


Haul trucks and other engine-powered equipment shall be equipped 


with adequate mufflers. Haul trucks shall be operated in accordance 


with posted speed limits. Truck engine exhaust brake use shall be 


limited to emergencies. 


Verification: Prior to ground disturbance, the project owner shall transmit to 


the CPM a statement acknowledging that the above restrictions will be observed 


throughout the construction of the project. 


 







 


73 
LEC FOF.DOC 


 


 


E.  Visual Resources 


Findings 


Based on the evidence of record, we find and conclude as follows: 


1. Construction will occur over approximately 24-months. 


2. The newly-installed transmission lines will visually blend with the existing 


transmission structures and wires currently used by the existing STIG 


plant. 


3. Construction activities will not result in a long-term visual degradation. 


4. The project’s potential impacts on visual resources were analyzed from 







 


74 
LEC FOF.DOC 


three defined key observation points (KOP) at different locations 


surrounding the project site 


5. No scenic vistas exist in the KOP 1, KOP 2, and KOP 3 viewsheds. 


6. LEC will not result in a substantial new source of light and glare that could 


adversely affect day-time and night- time views. 


7. LEC will not have a significant impact on scenic resources, including the 


county-designated scenic highway, I-5, and the Sacramento-San Joaquin 


Delta estuary. 


8. LEC will not result in a significant visual impact from any of the KOPs. 


9. The combustion turbine generators (CTGs) include a cooling tower which will result in 


minimal plume formation and less than significant visible plume frequencies. 


10. The project owner will treat project surfaces with colors that minimize 


visual intrusion and contrast. 


11. No long-term visual impacts will occur as a result of the construction of the 


pipeline and transmission line. 


12. The visual effects of the LEC in combination with past, present, and 


reasonably foreseeable projects in the area will not be cumulatively 


considerable because the projects are not in the same viewshed as the 


LEC. 


 


Conclusions 


1. Implementation of the following Conditions of Certification will result in the 


project causing no significant direct, indirect, or cumulative impacts to 


visual resources. 


2. The project will comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, regulations 


and standards regarding project design, architecture, landscaping, 


signage, and other requirements related to Visual Resources. 


 


Conditions of Certification 


CONSTRUCTION LIGHTING 


VIS-1 The project owner shall ensure that lighting for construction of the 


power plant is used in a manner that minimizes potential night lighting 


impacts, as follows: 


a. All lighting shall be of minimum necessary brightness consistent 


with worker safety and security. 


b. All fixed position lighting shall be shielded/hooded, and directed 


downward and toward the area to be illuminated to prevent direct 


illumination of the night sky and direct light trespass (direct light 


extending outside the boundaries of the power plant site or the site 


of construction of ancillary facilities, including any security related 


boundaries). 


c. Wherever feasible and safe and not needed for security, lighting 


shall be kept off when not in use. 







 


75 
LEC FOF.DOC 


Verification: Within seven days after the first use of construction lighting, the 


project owner shall notify the CPM that the lighting is ready for inspection. If the 


CPM requires modifications to the lighting, within 15 days of receiving that 


notification the project owner shall implement the necessary modifications and 


notify the CPM that the modifications have been completed. 


Within 48 hours of receiving a lighting complaint, the project owner shall provide 


the CPM with a complaint resolution form report as specified in the General 


Conditions section including a proposal to resolve the complaint, and a schedule 


for implementation. The project owner shall notify the CPM within 48 hours after 


completing implementation of the proposal. A copy of the complaint resolution 


form report shall be included in the subsequent Monthly Compliance Report. 


LANDSCAPE SCREENING 


VIS-2 Deleted. 


PLUME FORMATION 


VIS-3 The project owner shall ensure that the cooling tower is designed and 


operated as presented to the Energy Commission during the licensing 


of the Lodi Energy Center Power Plant Project. 


Verification: The cooling tower shall be designed and operated to meet the 


plume fogging frequency curve received into evidence as Exhibit 5 at the 


evidentiary hearing held at the Energy Commission on January 5, 2010. 


At least 90 days prior to ordering the cooling tower, the project owner shall 


provide to the CPM for review the final design specifications of the cooling tower 


to confirm that the fogging frequency curve for the cooling tower cells matches 


Exhibit 5. The project owner shall not order the cooling tower until notified by 


the CPM that this design requirement has been satisfied. 


The project owner shall provide the CPM written documentation demonstrating 


that the cooling tower has consistently been operated to meet above-specified 


fogging frequency curve (except as necessary to prevent damage to the cooling 


tower) in the project’s Annual Compliance Report and at anytime as requested by 


the CPM. If requested by the CPM, the project owner shall provide the 


requested cooling tower operating data to the CPM at a date determined by the 


CPM. 


If determined that the cooling tower has not operated within the specified design 


parameters, the project owner shall provide proposed remedial actions for CPM 


review and approval. 


PERMANENT EXTERIOR LIGHTING 


VIS-4 To the extent feasible, consistent with safety and security 


considerations, the project owner shall design and install all permanent 


exterior lighting such that (a) lamps and reflectors are not visible from 


beyond the project site, including any off-site security buffer areas; (b) 


lighting does not cause excessive reflected glare; (c) direct lighting 


does not illuminate the nighttime sky; (d) illumination of the project and 


its immediate vicinity is minimized, and (e) the plan complies with local 


policies and ordinances. 


The project owner shall submit to the CPM for review and approval and 


simultaneously to city of Lodi Community Development Department 







 


76 
LEC FOF.DOC 


and San Joaquin County Community Development Department for 


review and comment a lighting mitigation plan that includes the 


following: 


a) Location and direction of light fixtures shall take the lighting 


mitigation requirements into account. 


b) Lighting design shall consider setbacks of project features from the 


site boundary to aid in satisfying the lighting mitigation 


requirements. 


c) Lighting shall incorporate fixture hoods/shielding, with light directed 


downward or toward the area to be illuminated. 


d) Light fixtures that are visible from beyond the project boundary shall 


have cutoff angles that are sufficient to prevent lamps and 


e) All lighting shall be of minimum necessary brightness consistent 


with operational safety and security. 


f) Lights in high illumination areas not occupied on a continuous basis 


(such as maintenance platforms) shall have (in addition to hoods) 


switches; timer switches, or motion detectors so that the lights 


operate only when the area is occupied. 


Verification: At least 90 days prior to ordering any permanent exterior 


lighting, the project owner shall contact the CPM to discuss the documentation 


required in the lighting mitigation plan. 


At least 60 days prior to ordering any permanent exterior lighting, the project 


owner shall submit to the CPM for review and approval and simultaneously to city 


of Lodi Community Development Department and San Joaquin County 


Community Development Department for review and comment a lighting 


mitigation plan. 


If the CPM determines that the plan requires revision, the project owner shall 


provide to the CPM a revised plan for review and approval by the CPM. 


The project owner shall not order any exterior lighting until receiving CPM 


approval of the lighting mitigation plan. 


Prior to commercial operation, the project owner shall notify the CPM that the 


lighting has been completed and is ready for inspection. If after inspection the 


CPM notifies the project owner that modifications to the lighting are needed, 


within 30 days of receiving that notification the project owner shall implement the 


modifications and notify the CPM that the modifications have been completed 


and are ready for inspection. 


Within 48 hours of receiving a lighting complaint, the project owner shall provide 


the CPM with a complaint resolution form report as specified in the Compliance 


General Conditions including a proposal to resolve the complaint, and a schedule 


for implementation. The project owner shall notify the CPM within 48 hours after 


completing implementation of the proposal. A copy of the complaint resolution 


form report shall be submitted to the CPM within 30 days. 


SURFACE TREATMENT OF PROJECT STRUCTURES AND BUILDINGS 


VIS-5 The project owner shall treat the surfaces of all project structures and 


buildings on site, including those of the existing power plant, visible to 


the public such that (a) their colors minimize visual intrusion and 







 


77 
LEC FOF.DOC 


contrast by blending with the landscape; (b) their colors and finishes do 


not create excessive glare; and (c) their colors and finishes are 


consistent with local policies and ordinances. The transmission line 


conductors shall be nonspecular and nonreflective; and the insulators 


shall be nonreflective and nonrefractive. 


Verification: The project owner shall submit for CPM review and approval, a 


specific surface treatment plan that will satisfy these requirements. The 


treatment plan shall include: 


a. Description of the overall rationale for the proposed surface 


treatment, including the selection of the proposed colors and 


finishes 


b. List of each major project structure, building, tank, pipe, and wall; 


the transmission line towers and/or poles; and fencing, specifying 


the color(s) and finish proposed for each. Colors must be identified 


by vendor, name, and number; or according to a universal 


designation system 


c. One set of color brochures or color chips showing each proposed 


color and finish 


d. One set of 11‖ x 17‖ color photo simulations at life size scale, of the 


treatment proposed for use on project structures, including 


structures treated during manufacture as well as those of the 


existing on-site power plant, from Key Observation Points 1 and 2 


(locations shown on Figure 1 of the Preliminary Staff Assessment) 


e. Specific schedule for completion of the treatment 


f. Procedure to ensure proper treatment maintenance for the life of the 


project 


The project owner shall not specify to the vendors the treatment of any buildings 


or structures treated during manufacture, or perform the final treatment on any 


buildings or structures treated in the field, until the project owner receives 


notification of approval of the treatment plan by the CPM. Subsequent 


modifications to the treatment plan are prohibited without CPM approval. 


At least 90 days prior to specifying to the vendor the colors and finishes of the 


first structures or buildings that are surface treated during manufacture, the 


project owner shall submit the proposed treatment plan to the CPM for review 


and approval and simultaneously to the city of Lodi Community Development 


Department and San Joaquin County Community Development Department for 


review and comment. 


If the CPM determines that the plan requires revision, the project owner shall 


provide to the CPM a plan with the specified revisions for review and approval by 


the CPM before any treatment is applied. Any modifications to the treatment 


plan must be submitted to the CPM for review and approval. 


Prior to the start of commercial operation, the project owner shall notify the CPM 


that surface treatment of all listed structures and buildings has been completed 


and they are ready for inspection and shall submit one set of electronic color 


photographs from the same key observation points identified in (d) above. 


The project owner shall provide a status report regarding surface treatment 







 


78 
LEC FOF.DOC 


maintenance in the Annual Compliance Report. The report shall specify (a): the 


condition of the surfaces of all structures and buildings at the end of the reporting 


year; (b) maintenance activities that occurred during the reporting year; and (c) 


the schedule of maintenance activities for the next year. 


 








April 22, 2010                                                  Final


BART New Vehicle Procurement
Project Overview  - April 22, 2010







April 22, 2010                                                  Final


Mission Statement


PROCURE A NEXT GENERATION BART VEHICLE THAT 


ADDRESSES SYSTEM CAPACITY REQUIREMENTS 


AND CUSTOMER COMFORT FOR THE NEXT 30 YEARS 


AND BEYOND.


1







April 22, 2010                                                  Final


Agenda


 Project Status Susan Presley


 Selection Process Susan Presley


 Engineering Overview Henry Kolesar


 Funding Plan Stacey Perkins


 Design & User Input Aaron Weinstein


 Next Steps Susan Presley


222







Project Status


April 22, 2010                                                  Final


3


33







April 22, 2010                                                  Final


Project Status


 Scope


 RFP Status


 Schedule Overview


 Selection Process


 Design, Manufacture & Test Pilot Vehicles


 Manufacture/Deliver Production Vehicles


444







April 22, 2010                                                  Final


Project Status - Scope


 Provide design, engineering, manufacturing, testing, 


warranty and training for a 200 vehicle Base Contract


 Two Options of 250 vehicles each, and three additional 


Options of 60, 75 and 165 vehicles, respectively


 Options will be exercised 15 months prior to the end of 


production for the Base Contract, or preceding Option 


Order, as applicable


555







April 22, 2010                                                  Final


Project Status - RFP


 RFP was issued on Sep 10, 2009 


 12 Potential Proposers; 66 Planholders


 332 questions received to date from Planholders


 question cutoff date Apr 29, 2010


 14 addenda issued to date 


 additional addenda are anticipated


 Proposal Due Date extended by 6 months


 no further extension anticipated


666







April 22, 2010                                                  Final


Project Status - RFP
Reasons for Schedule Extension 


 Other transit agencies’ procurements running slightly 


ahead of BART, have garnered the attention of potential 


Proposers (WMATA, Miami, NYCT, PATCO, NJ Transit)


 Various Proposers requested an extension


 Questions from Proposers and internal BART review has 


generated changes to the RFP documents


77







April 22, 2010                                                  Final


Project Status - RFP
Potential Proposers


Proposer Location


Alstom France/USA


Ansaldo Breda Inc. Italy/USA


Bombardier Canada/USA


Construcciones Auxiliar Ferrocarriles (CAF) Spain/USA


China North Corporation (CNR) China


China South Corporation (CSR) China


Kawasaki Japan /USA


Kinki Sharyo Japan/USA


Nippon Sharyo Japan


Rotem Korea /USA


Sojitz Japan


Sumitomo Corporation Japan


88







April 22, 2010                                                  Final


Project Status – Schedule Overview


 Selection Process – 20 month duration


 anticipated Notice to Proceed                             Jul 2011


 Pilot Vehicle Program – 65 month duration


 anticipated Pilot Vehicle acceptance                Nov 2016


 Production - 101 month duration


 anticipated final delivery for 1000 vehicles      Jun 2025


99







April 22, 2010                                                  Final


Project Status – Schedule Overview


1010


J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D


Issue RFP


Proposal Preparation 8


Receive Proposals


Proposal Evaluation 2


Determination of Competitive Range/Negotiations 2


BAFO Process 5


Buy America Pre-Award Audit 1


Recommendation for Award 2


Notice to Proceed (NTP)  


J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D


S
e
l
e
c
t
i
o


n
 
P


r
o


c
e
s
s


20122008 2009 2010 2011


2012


BART New Vehicle Procurement - Selection Process


2011
Tasks


2008 2009 2010Duration 


(Months)


September 2009


June 29, 2010


NTP July 2011 


10







April 22, 2010                                                  Final


Project Status – Schedule Overview 


1111


J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D


Approval of Initial Program Plans 4


Conceptual Design Review 4


Preliminary Design Review 10


Final Design Review & Mock-Ups 12


System and Subsytem Qualification Test 12


Manufacture/Deliver Pilot Vehicles (3 D-Cars, 1 E-Car) 2


Manufacture/Deliver Pilot Vehicles (1 D-Car, 5 E-Cars) 4


Vehicle Qualification &  Acceptance Testing 24


Pre-Production Design Review 1


J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D


2015


D
e
s
ig


n
 P


il
o


t
 V


e
h


ic
le


s


20142011 2012 2013Duration 


(Months)


BART New Vehicle Procurement - Design, Manufacture & Test Pilot Vehicles


2016


T
e
s
t
/M


a
n


u
f
a
c
t
u


r
e
 


P
il


o
t
 V


e
h


ic
le


s


2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016


Tasks


 


 


 


11







April 22, 2010                                                  Final


Project Status – Schedule Overview


121212







Selection Process


April 22, 2010                                                  Final 1313







April 22, 2010                                                  Final


Selection Process 
Competitive Negotiation


 Negotiations will allow selection of the Proposer that 


offers the most advantageous proposal including price 


and technical factors


 This will be a firm fixed price Contract with economic 


adjustments


 FTA Common Grant Rules prohibit solicitation 


requirements that contain features that unduly restrict 


competition such as, specifying in-State or local 


geographic preferences


141414







April 22, 2010                                                  Final


Selection Process 
Evaluation and Award


 Price and Technical Proposals are evaluated and scored 
separately


 Minimum Technical Requirements (Go/No Go Criteria) 
include Key Vehicle Parameters


 Evaluation Factors (descending order of importance)
 Price


 Experience


 Vehicle Subsystem Design Details


 Approach to the Work


 Delivery Schedule and Narrative


 Staffing


 Energy Figure of Merit 


151515







April 22, 2010                                                  Final


Selection Process


Evaluation and Award


 The Price proposal evaluation will include proposed 


prices for 200 vehicles and five options, totaling 1000 


vehicles


 Determination of Competitive Range


 Negotiations with Short Listed Proposers


 Request for Best and Final Offer(s), if necessary


 Recommendation for Award


161616







Engineering Overview


April 22, 2010                                                  Final 1717







April 22, 2010                                                  Final


Engineering Overview
Vehicle Design


 BART Vehicles are unique among US transit agencies


 unique car weight and profile requirements 


 unique truck design and wheel-set requirements 


 unique car-borne electrical systems 


 unique VATC and vehicle/wayside interface requirements 


 unique vehicle performance & subsystem requirements


1818







April 22, 2010                                                  Final


Engineering Overview
Vehicle Design


 The vehicle design is constrained by the existing 
infrastructure which in-turn drives the per-vehicle cost 
upwards compared to other agencies’ procurements


 The design of the new BART vehicles presents 
formidable complex technical challenges 


 The design of the new BART vehicles also presents the  
opportunity for technical innovation, as compared to the 
technologically-dated existing fleet


1919







April 22, 2010                                                  Final


Engineering Overview
Technical Challenges


 Vehicle weight constraints


 Crash Energy Management compatibility


 Interior design to address capacity growth


 Vehicle ATC interface to existing wayside


 Reliability, maintainability & availability enhancements


 Energy consumption improvements


 Sustainability 


202020







April 22, 2010                                                  Final


Engineering Overview
Technical Innovations


 Three doors per side for faster customer ingress/egress


 Wider aisles


 Modular, easily reconfigurable seating


 Exterior color-coded destination signs 


 Interior destination/information signs


 Automatic audible/visual station announcements


 Lower energy consumption requirements


 Dual-platform loading/unloading capability


 Vehicles upgradable to higher performance for future needs  


212121







Funding Plan


April 22, 2010                                                  Final 2222







April 22, 2010                                                  Final 23


Funding Plan
History


 EDD and Joint BART-MTC Resolution for Funding of the 


BART Rail Car Replacement Program


 Negotiations with MTC began in 2005 with a goal of 


providing policy-level commitment of funding to allow 


BART to award the new vehicle procurement contract 


 Largest transit capital project region has undertaken-


funding potentially over many years


 T2035 fully funds region’s vehicle replacement needs 


through 2035  – no capacity or expansion vehicles


2323







April 22, 2010                                                  Final 24


Funding Plan
History


 Phased funding plan developed with primary focus on 


Phase 1 at cost of $1 billion; funds base order 200 


vehicles 


 Unprecedented commitment from region – Bay Area 


Partnership, transit operators, CMAs, etc. agreed


 Phase 2 funding plan provides a policy framework and 


principles for funding the remainder of the program


 Board Resolution for Phase 2 funding prior to first Option 


for Phase 2 in 2017


2424







April 22, 2010                                                  Final 25


Funding Plan
MTC Resolution


 Joint BART-MTC Resolution details the funding sources 


for the $3.2 billion total project cost


 Primary funding source is MTC’s Transit Capital Priorities 


(TCP) federal formula funds, funds BART’s renovation 


program


 Resolution modeled after Res. 2672 funded A/B Rehab 


program; MTC provides $2.4 billion or 75% of total Project 


cost; BART provides $805 million or 25%


 Assumes VTA funds vehicles necessary for SVRT Project 


 Funding for additional cars for capacity expansion is TBD 


2525







Funding Plan
Phase 1


 Resolution provides a commitment from MTC to program 


$871 million through FY19 for Phase 1


 In 2006 began “banking” STP funds - $90 million thus far, 


another $80 million to be “banked” in TCP funds


 Beginning in FY13 provides up to $94 million annually in 


addition to approx. $50 million/year currently received for 


BART’s renovation program


 Requires Letter of No Prejudice (LONP) from FTA for 


award of base contract 


April 22, 2010                                                  Final 26







April 22, 2010                                                  Final 27


Phase 1= MTC Regional funds $871M, BART funds $155M  


 Phase 2= MTC Regional funds $1,545M, BART funds $651M


Phase 1 & 2= MTC Regional $2,416M, BART funds $805M


0


0.5


1


1.5


2


2.5


3


3.5


Phase 1 Phase 2 Total VTA  Capacity


BART & Region


VTA Funded


BART


Regional


Funding Plan
(in billions of escalated dollars)







April 22, 2010                                                  Final 28


Funding Plan
Phase 2


2828


 Resolution provides policy framework and principles for Phase 2 


funding for remaining 469 replacement vehicles at a cost of $2.2 


billion


 MTC Regional funding begins in FY20, following Phase 1


 MTC funds include federal formula, STP, or any other current or 


future MTC-controlled funds


 BART to contribute $650 million, source under development


 BART funds include High Speed Rail, STA, parcel tax, federal 


reauthorization or any other BART-pursued or controlled 


revenue augmentation







April 22, 2010                                                  Final 29


Funding Plan
Election Thresholds


2929


2010 Nov :  Off year US Congressional Elections; CA Governorship


2012 Feb:  CA Presidential Primary 


Nov:  Presidential, Congressional Election


2014 Jun:  CA Primary


Nov:  Off Year US Congressional Elections; CA Governorship


2016 Feb:  CA Presidential Primary 


Nov:  Presidential, Congressional Election


2018 Jun:  CA Primary


Nov:  Off Year, US Congressional; CA Governorship


2020 Feb:  CA Presidential Primary


Nov:  Presidential, Congressional Election


2022:  Jun:  CA Primary


Nov:  Off Year, US Congressional; CA Governorship







Design and User Input


April 22, 2010                                                  Final 3030







April 22, 2010                                                  Final


Design and User Input
Objectives


 Establish a robust user input process


 Ensure that public feedback is integral to the design 


process


 Engage the public and key stakeholders to build 


support for the project


3131







April 22, 2010                                                  Final


Design and User Input


 Future activities based on user input to date:


 peer agency seating review 


 seat density mock-up  


 bike stand conceptual design


 District may provide further design clarification during 


final negotiations


 Design committee will review seat layouts during the 


design review process


3232







April 22, 2010                                                  Final


Design and User Input


 Secure additional public input, via:


 posting information / soliciting comments via the website


 random sample surveys


 stakeholder meetings


 Full mockup planned post-award:


 public will be invited to experience the new interiors 


 public will be invited to provide feedback


3333







April 22, 2010                                                  Final


Next Steps 


34


 Finalize Engineer’s Estimate May 2010


 MTC Approves Resolution (Phase 1) May 2010


 Pursue New Revenue Sources On-going


 Complete Q&A and Addendum Processes May 2010


 Receive Proposals Jun  2010


 Complete Proposal Evaluation Mar  2011


 Staff Recommendation of Award to Board May 2011


 Anticipated NTP Jul   2011


 MTC Approves Resolution (Phase 2) Jan  2017


34







April 22, 2010                                                  Final


- END-


3535





